
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Performance 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
22 December 2016 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be 
held at 9.30 am on FRIDAY, 6 JANUARY 2017 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, COUNTY 
HALL, WYNNSTAY ROAD, RUTHIN, LL15 1YN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 

 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 5 - 18) 

 To receive the minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting held 
on 29 September 2016 (copy attached). 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

5 UPDATE ON OPTIONS APPRAISALS FOR IN-HOUSE CARE SERVICES  
(Pages 19 - 142) 

 To consider the results of the analysis undertaken with respect to potential for 
future provision of the services at the Awelon site in Ruthin.  
 

9.35am – 10.20am 
 

6 PROCUREMENT STRATEGY AND REVISED CONTRACT PROCEDURE 
RULES  (Pages 143 - 176) 

 To consider a report (copy attached) on how the Strategy is being 
implemented, its impact on the Authority’s finances and on the local 
economy, and an assessment on whether all services are consistently 
applying and adhering to the Strategy and CPRs. 
 

10.20am – 10.50am 
 

BREAK 
 
 

7 CORPORATE PLAN (Q2) 2016/17  (Pages 177 - 216) 

 To consider a report (copy attached) monitoring the Council’s progress in 
delivering the Corporate Plan 2012-17. 

 
11am – 11:30am 

 

8 'YOUR VOICE' COMPLAINTS PERFORMANCE (Q2)  (Pages 217 - 228) 

 To scrutinise information (report attached) on Services’ performance in 
complying with the Council’s complaints procedure.  
 

11.30am – 12pm 
 

9 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 229 - 254) 

 To consider a report by the Scrutiny Coordinator (copy enclosed) seeking a 
review of the committee’s forward work programme and updating members 
on relevant issues. 

 

10 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES   

 To receive any updates from Committee representatives on various Council 
Boards and Groups 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Councillor Barry Mellor (Chair) 
 

 

Raymond Bartley 
Meirick Davies 
Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
Colin Hughes 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
 

Dewi Owens 
Arwel Roberts 
Gareth Sandilands 
Joe Welch 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held in Conference Room 
1a, County Hall, Ruthin on Thursday, 29 September 2016 at 9.30 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillors Raymond Bartley, Meirick Davies, Huw Hilditch-Roberts, Geraint Lloyd-
Williams, Dewi Owens, Arwel Roberts, Gareth Sandilands and Joe Welch 
 
Cabinet Members – Councillors Hugh Irving, David Smith, Julian Thompson-Hill, Eryl 
Williams and Bobby Feeley attended at the Committee’s invitation for items relating to 
their portfolio.   
 
Councillor Win Mullen-James was in attendance for business item number 10, in her 
capacity as the Chair of the Adult In-house Social Care Task and Finish Group.  
 
Observer – Councillor Gwyneth Kensler 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Corporate Director: Communities (NS), Service Manager: Specialist Services (AP), Head 
of Community Support Services (PG), Interim Principal Manager: Services  Support (MS), 
Head of Planning & Public Protection (GB), School Effectiveness Performance Officer: 
Secondary (JM), Head of Education (KIE), Programme Manager: Housing Development 
(MD), Strategic Planning & Policy Manager (AL), Head of Facilities, Assets & Housing 
(JG), Contract Management and Review Officer (EJ-D), Strategic Planning Team 
Manager (VR), Democratic Services Manager (SP), Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RE), and 
Committee Administrator (SLW) 
 
Also in Attendance – Marc Berw Hughes, Senior Challenge Advisor GwE  
 
Co-opted Members Debra Houghton, John Piper and Gareth Williams attended for 
agenda item 5.  

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Barry Mellor and Colin 
Hughes for both sessions.  Councillors Raymond Bartley, Meirick Lloyd-Davies and 
Dewi Owens sent apologies for the morning session only, all three were present 
during the afternoon session. 
 

In the absence of the Chair (Councillor Barry Mellor), the Vice-Chair (Councillor Arwel 
Roberts) chaired the Committee’s proceedings. 
 
2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 
Co-opted Members Debra Marie Houghton and John Piper declared a personal 
interest in Item 5, Teacher Assessments and Provisional Examination Results. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
No urgent matters. 
 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held on 14 July 2016 were 
submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2016 be received and 
approved as a correct record. 
 

5 TEACHER ASSESSMENTS AND PROVISIONAL EXAMINATION RESULTS  
 
The Head of Education introduced the report (previously circulated) to provide 
Performance Scrutiny Committee with the information regarding the performance of 
Denbighshire’s schools in recent teacher assessments and external examinations. 
 
The Senior Challenge Advisor, GwE (Conwy and Denbighshire Hub), summarised 
the report which detailed the result of final teacher assessments for 2015/16 and 
the provisional external examination results for the same period.   
 
During the introduction, he: 
 

 detailed the data contained within the report; 

 confirmed that the + / - figure for Ysgol Brynhyfryd in the unverified external 
examination results table should read plus and not minus 4.8%; 

 advised that Denbighshire’s results were demonstrating an overall 
improvement on the previous year’s results, nevertheless the majority of 
schools had not met the very ambitious targets they had set themselves; 

 performance in Welsh Language skills had declined in all stages of teacher 
assessments and because of this, GwE would be monitoring this area very 
closely for the foreseeable future. 

 
Discussion took place and responding to Members’ concerns and questions, the 
Senior GwE Advisor, Lead Member for Education, and other senior officers: 
 

 advised that the number of pupils who did not achieve Core Subject Indicator 
(CSI) in each stage and who had not been identified as having Additional 
Learning Needs (ALN) were reducing.  This was because the County had 
detailed data on every pupil and were able to intervene at an early stage in 
their education.  This provided the support required to ensure that they did 
achieve the CSI; 

 confirmed they did have concerns with respect to the potential to lose a 
number of pupils from the Welsh medium sector to the English medium 
sector during the transition from primary to secondary education, and during 
the early stage of their secondary education.  Officers would be supporting 
pupils identified as “at risk” at this stage.  The Lead Member for Education 
cited Ysgol Dinas Bran’s Welsh-medium stream’s success in supporting 
pupils to achieve better results and outcomes; 

Page 6



 outlined the process followed by schools when setting targets, emphasising 
that the targets were extremely ambitious and were unlikely to be met.  If a 
school achieved within 5% of the set target it was regarded as having met its 
target; 

 the majority of schools had achieved within 5% of the target they had set 
themselves, with Ysgol Brynhyfryd exceeding its set target by 4.8%.  
However, three schools had missed their target by more than 5%.  The three 
schools were: 

 Prestatyn High School 
 Denbigh High School, and 
 Blessed Edward Jones High School. 

Blessed Edward Jones High School had missed their target, despite showing 
a 15.4% improvement in performance on the previous year.  GwE would be 
working closely to support these individual schools; 

 a new Headteacher had recently been appointed to Prestatyn High School.  
He had been working alongside the former Headteacher for a period of time 
and would be applying similar teaching strategies as the new Headteacher of 
Ysgol Brynhyfryd had been utilising.  The Lead Member and Officers were, 
therefore, confident that Prestatyn High School results would improve 
considerably in the future; 

 detailed GwE’s school categorisation process, where schools were given 
either a Red, Amber or Green (RAG) status. 

 
The Head of Education and Members both registered their concerns about the 
potential detrimental effect of the RAG system.  They felt that schools awarded 
“green” status were at risk of not achieving their targets in future as all support from 
GwE would be channelled to the “red” and potentially some “amber” schools.  There 
was a collective feeling that all schools should receive an element of support in 
order to achieve continuous improvement. 
 
Prior to the conclusion of the discussion, Members commended Ysgol Brynhyfryd’s 
excellent achievement, particularly bearing in mind that the new Headteacher had 
only been in post for two full terms. 
 
It had also been noted that a number of pupils across the county received extra 
tuition outside school hours in order to achieve their excellent grades. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion it was: 
 
RESOLVED, subject to the above observations: 

(i) to congratulate the county’s pupils on their educational achievements this 
year as outlined in the report, and the county on its performance against 
external benchmarks; and 

(ii) that all schools should be supported accordingly with a view to achieving the 
best possible outcomes for their pupils. 

 
 
 

 

Page 7



6 PROGRESS ON DELIVERING DENBIGHSHIRE'S HOUSING STRATEGY:  
THEME 2 - CREATING A SUPPLY OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING  
 
The Lead Member for Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance, introduced the 
report (previously circulated) in the absence of the Lead Member for Modernisation 
and Housing.  The Lead Member confirmed the report was an update to Scrutiny 
Members on the progress made to date in delivering the key outcomes and actions 
in relation to affordable housing identified in Denbighshire’s Housing Strategy.  The 
Strategy had been adopted by Council on 1 December 2015. 
 
The Lead Member advised that the Housing Strategy Delivery Group regularly 
monitored the delivery of the Housing Strategy in its entirety, and identified 
solutions for addressing any barriers to delivery.  He advised that all targets in the 
Action Plan were on target at present.  A key strand for creating a supply of 
affordable housing, and the development of locality plans for social housing needs 
in all areas of the county, was underway.  A number of sites had been acquired for 
the purpose of building new homes.  In addition, properties had also been 
purchased with a view to increasing the number of social housing units in the 
county.  These purchases included former local authority houses previously sold 
under the “Right to Buy” scheme.   
 
The Strategic Planning and Housing Manager outlined the background to the 
Housing Strategy’s development via a PowerPoint presentation.  The five themes 
which made up the Strategy were: 

(i) More homes to meet local need and demand; 
(ii) Creating a supply of affordable homes; 
(iii) Ensuring safe & healthy homes; 
(iv) Homes and support for vulnerable people; and 
(v) Promoting and supporting communities. 

 
The Strategic Planning and Housing Manager explained how the five themes had 
been incorporated into an action plan, and the progress to date with the 
implementation of themes 1 and 2.  She advised that with respect to Theme 2, 57 
new properties had been enabled as affordable dwellings during 2015-16 (these 
comprised of 7 homebuys; 10 empty homes; 24 new builds; 6 privately financed by 
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) and 10 leased as accommodation for 
homeless people).  Feedback received from residents who had benefited from 
these schemes had been extremely positive.   
 
It had been acknowledged that major housing developments, which would trigger 
the affordable housing provision requirement on site, had not been built in recent 
years due to the economic downturn.  However, there had been indications that 
developers were looking to build in the near future.  Therefore, the Council had 
produced housing site prospectuses and issued them to developers in a bid to 
entice them to start developing the sites.   
 
With a view to increasing the number of affordable housing units available 
throughout the county, the Council had approved a Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 30 year business plan and applied for permission to suspend the “Right to 
Buy” scheme.  The Planning Policy and Housing Strategy teams had also been 

Page 8



consolidated under one Head of Service in a bid to reduce the time involved in 
delivering housing related projects. 
 
Responding to Members’ questions the Lead Member for Public Realm, the Lead 
Member for Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance, and Officers: 
 

 advised that the new staffing structure in place should contribute towards the 
delivery of the Housing Strategy within the intended timescale; 

 confirmed that some residents were now objecting to planning applications 
submitted for large developments, but as the sites had already been 
designated under the Local Development Plan (LDP), as housing 
development land, they had insufficient grounds to object to the application 
unless they veered considerably from the agreed designation or major safety 
concerns came to light; 

 advised that now the Council had opted out of the Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) Subsidy System and was administering its own HRA, it would again 
be facilitating/enabling the building of affordable homes.  As a housing 
enabler the council would be delivering housing developments to provide 
homes which reflected the local demography and which were sustainable in 
the long-term.  It was felt that this approach would give the authority the 
maximum return on its HRA investments; 

 confirmed that the term a housing “unit” was a self-contained home; 

 advised that a number of units had been purchased to date and other 
purchases were in the pipeline pending new developments being built.  The 
latter element would require a longer period of time for delivery; 

 outlined plans currently under consideration for the development of larger 
affordable homes; 

 confirmed that RSLs were regulated in the same way as local authority 
housing departments providing homes for local people; 

 advised that, in addition to funding provided to local authorities via the Social 
Housing Grant (SHG), the Welsh Government (WG) had a tendency to 
announce quite substantial additional funding for housing related matters late 
in the financial year.  This timing meant it was very difficult to utilise the 
money effectively at such short notice, hence the Council’s decision to have 
development briefs adopted in advance to enable the authority to utilise the 
money to its maximum potential if and when it was awarded; 

 confirmed that officers would be discussing and consulting on the Locality 
Plans for each area with all Member Area Groups (MAGs) once the initial 
analyses had been undertaken. 

 
RESOLVED that subject to the above observations: 
 

(i) to endorse the progress made to date with delivering Theme 2 of the Local 
Housing Strategy: Creating a Supply of Affordable Homes: and 

(ii) instruct the Scrutiny Co-ordinator to liaise with the Lead Member for 
Modernisation and Housing and the Heads of Service to schedule regular 
monitoring of the delivery of each of the Local Housing Strategy’s Action 
Plan themes into the Committee’s Forward Work Programme. 

 
 

Page 9



At this juncture (10.55 a.m.) there was a 20 minute break. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 11.15 a.m. 
 
 
7 YOUR VOICE REPORT - QUARTER 1 2016/17  

 
The Lead Member for Customers and Libraries introduced the report (previously 
circulated) to provide an overview of compliments, suggestions and complaints 
received by Denbighshire County Council under the Council’s Customer feedback 
policy “Your Voice” during Q1 2016/17. 
 
The Interim Principal Manager: Support Services detailed the reports contents and 
explained the areas of performance highlighted within the report.  Responding to 
Members’ questions, the Lead Member, Corporate Director: Communities, and 
officers advised that: 
 

 if the Committee had concerns on the number of complaints received with 
respect to services administered on the Council’s behalf by external 
providers e.g. Civica, Kingdom etc., or their performance in dealing with 
those complaints, the Committee could invite the external providers to a 
future meeting to discuss those concerns.  Members were advised that the 
types of services delivered by these providers tended to be “unpopular” 
services and, therefore, they were more likely to register a higher number of 
complaints.  Officers undertook to provide data on the number of complaints 
lodged against the Revenues and Benefits Service whilst it was part of the 
Finance Department in comparison to the number received since it had been 
under the management of Civica; 

 enquiries would be made as to whether appeals lodged against the issue of 
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) for parking offences were classed as 
“complaints”; 

 with regard to potential financial risk to the Council having outstanding 
unresolved complaints, the Committee had been informed that there would 
always be a risk that the Public Services Ombudsman may impose a fine on 
the Council.  However, the Council required to balance this risk against the 
need to obtain a satisfactory resolution that would eventually lead to 
improving things for the customer and residents generally in the long-term; 

 all complaints had to be logged as individual complaints, even if they were 
lodged by the same individual.  Nevertheless, the Council did have a Difficult 
Customer Policy for the purpose of dealing with vexatious complaints. 

 
Attached to the report at Appendix 2 was the Social Services Customer Feedback 
Annual Report for 2015/16.  The Corporate Director: Communities, advised that this 
was a key report for the Service as it summarised the Service’s effectiveness in 
dealing with feedback and complaints and learning from them.  This was now a key 
requirement of Social Services’ work as per the provisions of the Social Services 
and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014.   
 
An extract from a recent report published by the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales was read out by the Interim Principal Manager: Support Services, in which it 

Page 10



was reported that the number of complaints lodged with the Ombudsman against 
Denbighshire had increased by 10 last year in comparison to the previous year.   
 
The number lodged in relation to Social Services in Denbighshire had increased to 
7, which had been 2 above the national average.  There had also been 5 code of 
conduct complaints against Denbighshire Councillors, none of which had 
proceeded to investigation by the Ombudsman.  Responding to the statistic relating 
to the number of complaints lodged against Denbighshire’s Social Services 
Department, the Corporate Director: Communities, advised that these related to the 
implementation of an unpopular policy.  In response to complaints received, the 
Service had listened to families and were working with them to address the 
situation. 
 
Following detailed discussion, the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above observations, to receive the report on the 
Council’s performance in dealing with complaints, compliments and suggestions 
under the “Your Voice” corporate procedure during the first quarter of the 2016/17 
year. 
 

8 ANNUAL REPORT ON SAFEGUARDING ADULTS IN DENBIGHSHIRE:  1 
APRIL 2015 - 31 MARCH 2016  
 
The Head of Community Support Services introduced the report (previously 
circulated) to provide Members with an overview of the impact of local Safeguarding 
arrangements and practice and to review progress in this key area of work over the 
last 12 months.  Members were also to refer to data which reflected figures 
submitted by the Local Authority on an annual basis to the Welsh Government Data 
Unit.  The report also showed the progress made in response to the areas of 
concern raised by CSSIW in their Annual Review and Evaluation of Performance 
2014-15. 
 
He advised that the number of referrals received during 2015/16 under the 
Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA) arrangements had been similar to the 
number received during the preceding year.  The majority of referrals did not pass 
the threshold for further investigation.   However, during 2015/16 there had been a 
significant increase in the number of referrals made by Social Services staff, those 
reported within a hospital setting, and those referred by care regulators.  There had 
been a decline in referrals received direct from care providers.  It was emphasised 
that complaints on quality of care were dealt with under a separate process.  The 
Committee was advised that the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales 
(CSSIW) had raised concerns in its Annual Review and Evaluation of Performance 
2014-15 in relation to the Council’s performance in areas of the protection of 
vulnerable adults.  In light of the CSSIW’s findings, a decision was made to change 
the approach taken in Denbighshire regarding POVA arrangements.  The changes 
implemented included: 
 

 Training more social workers to be Designated Lead Managers (DLMs) for 
the purpose of undertaking POVA enquiries and to chair Strategy Meetings; 

Page 11



 Strengthening the Team’s capacity to meet the requirements of the POVA 
process, and confidence building when dealing with multi agency work; 

 Strengthening links with the Safeguarding Team at Ysbyty Glan Clwyd to 
enable poor quality or incomplete referrals to be effectively challenged; and 

 The appointment of a Team Manager to ensure that process deadlines were 
met and statistics reported on time to Welsh Government. 

 
Council representatives had recently met with the CSSIW to discuss the measures 
taken to improve processes in Denbighshire.  Nevertheless, the regulators still had 
concerns in relation to DLMs’ confidence in chairing Strategy meetings.  It had 
recently emerged that similar concerns had been raised by the CSSIW in relation to 
the same matter across North Wales and consequently the matter would be 
referred to the North Wales Adults Safeguarding Board for consideration.  The 
Council’s capacity to deal with Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) requests, 
which had increased drastically in the wake of a Supreme Court Judgement in 
March 2014, and which would continue to increase in the future due to the 
requirement to review each case every 12 months, was an added pressure on the 
Service.  Whereas in previous years, the Local Authority would have received 
between 10 and 15 DoLS assessment requests annually, this had increased last 
year to in excess of 300 requests for DoLS assessments.  In a bid to address this 
demand, circa 15 social workers had been trained to undertake DoLS assessments 
and each trained individual was expected to undertake a minimum of 8 DoLS 
assessments per year in addition to their day to day duties.  In addition to the 
workload pressures caused by the DoLS assessments, they also entailed financial 
pressures on the Local Authority as they were required to pay for the mandatory 
medical assessments associated with the process.  In Denbighshire, this cost was 
anticipated to be in the region of £50,000 per annum, but no additional funding had 
been allocated towards this cost.  The Association of Directors of Social Services 
(ADSS) in England had appealed the above judgement, and the outcome of the 
appeal was awaited.   
 
Responding to Members’ questions, officers advised that: 
 

 they had raised concerns with the Welsh Government via ADSS Cymru and 
the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) on the financial 
implications of the DoLS Judgement on social care budgets, including the 
fairness of medical assessments being paid for from social care budgets; 

 figures would shortly be available that would enable comparisons to be made 
between North Wales Local Authorities with respect of the number of POVA 
referrals and DoLS assessment requests for 2015/16; and 

 it was anticipated that a number of the provisions in the Social Services and 
Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 would in the near future be subject to legal 
challenges and would, therefore, in due course, become case law. 

 
At the conclusion of an in-depth discussion, the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED that subject to the above observations and the concerns raised in 
relation to the additional resource and financial pressures placed upon the Social 
Services budget and social care staff: 

Page 12



(i) to commend the excellent work and leadership undertaken by 
Denbighshire’s Social Services Department to date in order to protect 
vulnerable adults in the county and to address issues raised by CSSIW; 
and 

(ii) acknowledged the important nature of a corporate approach to the 
safeguarding of adults at risk and the responsibility of the Council to view 
this as a key priority area and to place it alongside the commitment and 
significance given by the Council to Child Protection. 

 
9 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  

 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator submitted a report (previously circulated) seeking 
Members to review the Committee’s Forward Work Programme and providing an 
update on relevant issues. 
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator elaborated upon forthcoming items to be considered at 
future meetings and responded to Members’ questions thereon. 
 
It was agreed that Lead Members be invited to attend the next Performance 
Scrutiny Committee scheduled to take place on 8 December 2016. 
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator asked for a Member of the Committee to serve on the 
Community Support Services – Service Challenge Group.  Councillor Joe Welch 
volunteered to sit on the Group. 
 
RESOLVED that:  

 the Forward Work Programme as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report be 
approved and the relevant Lead Members be invited to attend for items 
within their portfolio at the next meeting on 8 December 2016. 

 Councillor Joe Welch be appointed to be the Committee’s representative on 
the Community Support Services – Service Challenge Group. 

 
 

At this juncture (12.20 p.m.) there was a break for lunch. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 2.00 p.m. 
 
 
10 IN-HOUSE CARE SERVICES UPDATE  

 
The Chair of the Task and Finish (T&F) Group established to examine the future 
delivery of in-house social care services presented the Committee with a progress 
report on the Group’s work to date (previously circulated), which included its 
recommendations in relation to the future provision of services at Hafan Dȇ g Day 
Centre, Rhyl and Dolwen Day Centre and Residential Care Home, Denbigh.   
 
In her introduction the Chair outlined the background to the Group’s establishment, 
the process followed to date and the key democratic milestones and decisions 
which had led to the report being presented to the Committee at the current 
meeting.  She also read out the Cabinet’s decision of the 26 May 2016 which 

Page 13



authorised the T&F Group to undertake the exploratory work, the conclusions of 
which were detailed in the report to the Committee.  The exploratory work was 
continuing in relation to potential proposals for Awelon, in Ruthin and Cysgod y 
Gaer in Corwen.  The conclusions of those would be reported to the Committee at a 
later date, when the requested information was available and all options had been 
fully explored.   
 
The Head of Community Support Services explained that whilst an initial 
engagement event had been held for potential providers for services at both Hafan 
Dȇ g and Dolwen, the level of comparative detail elected members had requested in 
order to formulate recommendations in relation to the future of both establishments 
could only be achieved if the Council commenced a formal tender process.  
Instigating such a process would not commit the Council to transferring the services 
over to an external provider, but it would provide it with sufficient detailed 
information to enable an informed decision to be taken on a way forward for the 
future.  All risks identified with the entire project were detailed in the report.  
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member for Social Care (Adults and 
Children’s Services), T&F Group members and officers confirmed in relation to the 
recommendations put forward for both establishments: 

 that all tenders would be evaluated by the T&F Group before 
recommendations were formulated and presented to Performance Scrutiny 
Committee and then Cabinet on the future service provision; 

 if following the tender process none of the tenders met the required criteria 
for the services the Council wanted to deliver, the Authority would need to 
review its approach to the delivery of these services.  It was emphasised that 
none of the establishments would close and that services would continue as 
at present; 

 statutory care quality monitoring arrangements would apply to both 
establishments if they were transferred over to external providers.  They 
would also be subject to Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales 
(CSSIW ) care monitoring arrangements, in the same way as public and 
private care providers would be inspected by the Regulator; 

 the Council paid external providers £50 per day for the provision of day 
care.  The proposed tender documentation for both establishments would 
specify the fee payable by the Council; 

 the Social Care Welsh Language Champion and the ‘Mwy Na Geiriau’ (‘More 
Than Words’) Working Group would ensure that the tender documentation 
clearly specified the Welsh Language requirements for the provision of 
services at both establishments.  They would also be involved in the tender 
evaluation process to ensure that all specified criteria were met; 

 that Transfer of Undertakings (Provision of Employment) (TUPE) 
arrangements would apply to all staff members employed at both 
establishments if, and when, the services were transferred to an external 
provider; 

 if potential providers were identified during the tender process, and all 
required criteria were met, the Council could potentially transfer the assets 
and the services within two years; 

 confirmed that clauses would be included in any legal transfer 
documentation to protect the Council in the event of a successful tenderer 
withdrawing from delivering the commissioned services within a specified 

Page 14



period of time, or the owner/leaseholder of the building attempting to change 
its use from that it was sold/leased to them to be used for; 

 care would be commissioned on an individual basis, as was the current 
practice, as it was tailored to each individual’s needs.  The provision of care 
in an establishment was purchased via a framework agreement which 
formed a contract for care.  The terms and conditions of the contract with a 
provider was the key document;  

 the Council already had contingency plans in place to deal with unforeseen 
closures and emergency situations which required residents to be re-homed 
at very short notice.  These plans had been tried and tested and worked well; 
and 

 service-users and their advocates would be included in the consultation 
process on the future provision of services at both establishments. 
 

In relation to Hafan Dȇ g it was confirmed that: 

 the facility was not utilised to its full capacity at present, this was due to 
financial constraints on the Council.  A number of the interested parties who 
had attended the engagement event had listed an array of different types of 
services they would like to deliver at the centre, a number of which would 
deliver the requirements and aspirations of the Social Services and Well-
being Act (Wales) 2014 in relation to supporting independence and resilience 
and reducing isolation; 

 
In relation to Dolwen it was confirmed that: 

 the sole provider who had expressed an interest at the engagement event in 
taking over Dolwen and providing services there was not at present 
delivering services in Wales.  However, if they proceeded to the formal 
tender stage the tender would be evaluated against the set criteria which 
would include, amongst other criteria, standards measuring quality of care; 

 the potential interested party had confirmed his intention to carry out 
essential maintenance work at Dolwen and had aspirations to increase the 
building’s capacity, by applying for planning permission, to extend the 
building to accommodate a 50 bed unit, which would include Elderly Mental 
Health (EMH) beds.  The interested provider had also indicated that his 
preference for increasing capacity would be to build an additional floor on 
the building rather than extend outwards into the grounds; and 

 whilst only one potential provider had attended the engagement event, the 
Council was confident that other providers were interested.  These would 
probably register their interest during the formal tender process; 

 
Members emphasised the need for the Council to safeguard provision for residents 
within the local area and to seek assurances that any contracts it entered into would 
not have a detrimental effect on those requiring services and those providing them 
in Denbighshire. Councillor Hilditch-Roberts emphasised the need for any contracts 
to safeguard the services so they would not leave the area. 
 
Prior to the conclusion of the discussion the Chair invited a member of the public in 
attendance to address the committee and ask questions.  In response to those 
questions officers confirmed that: 

Page 15



 Hafan Dȇ g was not utilised to its full potential at present due to low demand 
for the services the Council had been able to deliver there in recent years.  
However, the preventative services which interest parties wanted to deliver 
there in future should be in high demand as they met the requirements of the 
Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014; and 

 If a provider withdrew from delivering a service in a building transferred 
either to them or a third party it would be the responsibility of the building 
owner/leaseholder to provide the same type and level of service from that 
establishment as they were legally bound by their contract to do so; 

 
The above individual stated that he felt that all scrutiny related to the transfer of 
services should be undertaken independently. 
 
In thanking T&F Group members and officers for their work to date the Chair of the 
T&F Group emphasised that the proposals put forward represented a way to 
preserve current services whilst also enhancing them to meet future needs in the 
field of social care.  She referred to the success of the Extra Care facility in Rhyl 
and her wish to see similar provision available across Denbighshire.  The Lead 
Member emphasised that the proposed approach was futuristic and forward 
looking. 
 
At the conclusion of an in-depth discussion the Committee: 
 
Resolved: to recommend to Cabinet that it should undertake: 
 

(i) a formal tender process with respect to the provision of services at Hafan 
Dȇ g (Rhyl) with a view to transferring the building to an external 
organisation, commissioning a day care service within the building and, in 
addition, enabling 3rd sector agencies to provide early intervention 
activities for older people that reduce social isolation, support 
independence and promote resilience; 

(ii) a formal tender process with respect to the provision of services at Dolwen 
(Denbigh) with a view to transferring the building and the whole service to 
an external organisation that would register Dolwen to provided elderly 
mental health (EMH) day and residential care services; 

(iii) that all tender documentation specify requirements to evidence the quality of 
care and Welsh language provision that would be provided at both 
establishments; and  

(iv) that at the conclusion of the tender process bids are evaluated and analysed 
for potential impacts by Performance Scrutiny Committee before being 
presented to Cabinet with recommendations on the preferred provider for 
each establishment prior to potential appointment in order to gain 
Cabinet’s full approval and to achieve the most advantageous outcome.  
(All appointments would be subject to Cabinet being satisfied that the 
transfer of assets and the planned provision of services at those 
establishments would be in the best interest of services-users, residents 
and the Council).    

 
 
 

Page 16



11 CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 1 2016/17  
 
Introducing the report on the Council’s performance in delivering its Corporate Plan 
during the first quarter of the 2016/17 financial year (previously circulated) the Lead 
Member for Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance informed the Committee that 
performance to date was good overall, with only one outcome, the one in relation to 
educational attainment, not being met.   
 
There had been improved performance in a range of measures relating to the 
corporate priority of ‘ensuring access to good quality housing’ i.e. performance in 
delivering Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) – Denbighshire was now the best 
performing Council in Wales for this Performance Indicator (PI).  Performance in 
relation to the ‘number of calendar days taken to let empty properties (council 
housing stock only)’ was still being monitored.  However, Scrutiny had already 
satisfied itself that there were valid reasons for not meeting this national target.  The 
Committee at an earlier meeting had endorsed the Service’s approach in this area, 
of refurbishing houses to a high quality before re-letting, as they were of the view 
that this delivered better long-term outcomes for residents.   
 
Data in relation to carbon emissions was now available, and whilst carbon 
emissions from the Council’s office buildings was reducing, it had increased in 
schools.  Work was now underway to try and improve performance in this area.   
 
Attached to the report was an appendix: the Local Government Data Unit (Wales) 
Local Government Performance Bulletin for 2015-16.  This report illustrated 
Denbighshire’s performance in comparison to all authorities in Wales in relation to 
the statutory Performance Indicators (KPIs).  Denbighshire was in the top quartile 
for 18 of the KPIs and in the bottom quartile for 7KPIs.  Performance against the 
remaining 15 KPIs was either in the upper middle quartile or the lower middle 
quartile.  The Lead Member emphasised that a decline in performance for a 
particular indicator did not necessarily mean that the Council was performing badly, 
just that there had been a slight decline in comparison to previous years e.g. 
sickness absence.  The Data Unit’s analysis of relative performance across Wales 
for 2015-16 ranked Denbighshire third best performing authority in relation to 
having the most indicators in the top quartile.  Responding to members’ questions 
and observations the Lead Member and officers: 

 confirmed that initially all public buildings would be radon tested.  Only 
Council housing in the areas identified on radon maps as ‘risk areas’ would 
be required to be tested.  If all Council owned accommodation was required 
in due course to be radon tested then there would be substantial cost 
implications for the authority; 

 acknowledged that the nature of data reported from surveys tended to just 
state raw data – it did not quantify or justify the reasons behind the 
performance or the work underway to address declining or poor 
performance; 

 in the current Corporate Plan the Council had chosen ‘improving 
performance in education and the quality of our school buildings’ as one of 
its corporate priorities, with the latter element of the priority focussing on 
building new schools/school facilities.  Looking ahead to the new Council and 

Page 17



its Corporate Plan it may wish to focus on improving all schools across 
Denbighshire and not concentrate on a small number of school projects; and 

 confirmed that the Council had set itself a very ambitious target for sickness 
absences, one that was comparable to private sector industries, hence the 
reason it was registering ‘amber’ for its performance in this area.  No other 
local authority in Wales had yet met the target set by Denbighshire.  

 
At the conclusion of the discussion the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED subject to the above observations to receive the report on the 
Council’s performance in delivering its Corporate Plan during Quarter 1 of the 
2016/17 year, and note the County’s performance in relation to the National 
Strategic Indicators (NSIs) and Public Accountability Measures (PAMs) for 2015/16 
 

12 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES  
 
No relevant meetings had been held since the Committee’s last meeting for 
members to feedback to the Committee on the discussions. 
 
 
 
Meeting concluded at 3.50pm 

Page 18



Report To:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  6 January 2017  
 
Lead Officer:  Phil Gilroy 
 
Report Author:  Member Task & Finish Group  
 
Title: Report on the Feasibility Report Regarding the Options for 

Future Use of Awelon Residential Care Home 

 

 
 
1 What is the report about? 
 

The report is a summary of the feasibility report regarding the options for future use of 
Awelon Residential Care Home.   

 
2  What is the reason for making this report? 
 
2.1 To provide Performance Scrutiny Committee Members with the recommendations of 

the Task & Finish Group regarding the information gathered in the Feasibility Report in 
order for it in turn to make recommendations to Cabinet, on the future services to be 
provided on the Awelon site.  For reference, the options that Cabinet asked to be 
considered for the site itself were: 

 
2.2 (Cabinet’s preferred option): The council will enter into a partnership with the owner of 

Llys Awelon (the extra care blocks built by Grŵp Cynefin on part of the Awelon site) to 
develop additional extra care apartments on the site, replacing the existing residential 
and community provision. 

 
2.3 To work in partnership with a registered social landlord, health services and the 3rd 

sector to develop a range of services, transferring half of the building to develop 
additional extra care flats, possibly as an extension to Llys Awelon, while using the 
remainder as a small residential unit which could be used to meet the needs of respite 
care. 

 
2.4 In both cases, the resolution stated that no existing resident would be required to leave 

/ move if they don’t want to do so, and while their needs can still be met in the 
residential provision. 

 
3 What are the Recommendations? 
 
3.1 That Members confirm that they have taken account of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment as part of their considerations.  
 
3.2 That Members agree with the Task & Finish group’s recommendation and recommend 

to Cabinet that Options 1 and 3b are not viable options and that discussions take place 
between local Members, officers, Grŵp Cynefin and the committee of Canolfan 
Awelon to work through Options 2a, 2b & 3a to implement the best configuration for 
the site that meets all parties needs and provides least disruption for existing 
residents/tenants. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



(At a suitable point, this would enable the remaining Awelon Site to be cleared and for 
work to begin on the extension. The task and finish group were of the view that 
maximising the number of Extra Care units developed  (as set out in Option 2a) would  
deliver the optimum arrangements for providing Extra Care Housing with Community 
Facilities on the Awelon site. However, it was acknowledged that further discussions 
need to take place with the committee for Canolfan Awelon to ensure the final scheme 
can deliver the community activities they already provide. 

This meets the preferred option of Cabinet following discussion in May 2016 (see 2.2 
above) and will secure up to 35 additional Extra Care apartments on the site whilst 
enabling those residents who are currently receiving residential care services to 
remain on site through the development if that is their wish, as well as continuing to 
provide community facilities to promote independence and reduce social isolation.)  

  
4 Report Details 
 
4.1 On 24 May 2016, a report was presented to Cabinet providing the outcome of a 

consultation exercise in respect of externalising in house provision. With regard to the 
service provided at Awelon Care Centre, Cabinet asked that the officers explore in 
detail the options put forward, including comparative costs, quality of care and Welsh 
language provision analysis between the current service and each of the options. 

 
4.2 In addition, Cabinet stated that the report should assume that on-site community 

facilities should be included which are at least as good as those on offer at Canolfan 
Awelon, the community centre currently located on the site. 

 
4.3 The identified Registered Social Landlord is Grŵp Cynefin who are DCC Partners in 

the existing Llys Awelon Extra Care Housing scheme on the Awelon site and the 
scheme and Awelon Residential Home share a number of communal facilities 
including the dining room and kitchen. 

 
4.4 With regard to the Welsh Language provision Grŵp Cynefin has adopted and is 

implementing a comprehensive Welsh language policy, and are able to provide every 
aspect of their services bilingually, and that approach would be applied diligently to the 
face to face housing, care and support services at the scheme as well as other 
aspects such as signage and literature. 

 
4.5 Based on the DCC brief as outlined above, Grŵp Cynefin commissioned a Design 

Team representing the relevant professional disciplines to carry out the practical 
feasibility work. The Team comprised the following companies, experienced in large 
and complex schemes, and familiar with housing / care provision: 

 Ainsley Gommon - architects 

 Carpenter Davies - mechanical and electrical engineering consultants 

 Datrys - structural engineering consultants  

 Metrics - cost consultants and quantity surveyors 
Their combined input is included in the attached comprehensive report (appendix 6) 
which is fronted by Ainsley Gommon. The feasibility work involved research, 
inspections and surveys of the site, the existing buildings and the services, as 
discussed in detail in the report.   

 
4.6 The brief to the Design Team was to respect the spirit of the Cabinet resolutions and 

take very seriously their wish, if at all possible, to bring forward proposals that assume 
the residential care residents as well as those in Llys Awelon (the new extra care 

Page 20



blocks) can remain on-site and be safely accommodated there if they wish, while the 
building work takes place. 

 
4.7 Working around the residents will involve complicated phasing of the work, and the 

practical and cost implications of doing so are discussed and illustrated in the various 
redevelopment options presented by the Team of consultants in the report. The 
comparable situation, should residents not wish to stay and the buildings can be 
cleared and redeveloped as one phase, is also presented. 

 
4.8 The full report is attached at appendix 6 and has been structured to enable logical 

consideration of the options. The first 3 sections provide context and analyse the site 
and existing buildings. The site analysis considers matters such as proximity and 
character and relative levels and height of neighbouring properties, access and site 
logistics during building work (for residents and for contractors), availability of services, 
and orientation. The buildings analysis is in effect an ‘MOT’ of the existing buildings to 
assess their suitability for retention and conversion to serve future residential and extra 
care needs. 

 
4.9 While Cabinet’s resolutions set out 2 options for the site, the report identifies 5 

possible routes to redeveloping Awelon, each with its set of construction and resident 
welfare assumptions and cost implications. These are discussed individually and in 
detail in sections 4 – 6 of the full report, with indicative layouts and plans and costings 
for each. The 5 options are then summarised and compared at the end of the report, 
having considered their design implications in section 7. For the purpose of this report 
each option is summarised as separate appendix 1 – 5. 

 
4.10 Generally, the anticipated construction costs for each option increase in relation to the 

size of the scheme being considered. For example, Option 2a has the greatest floor 
area while providing the largest number of new units from all of the options being 
considered and is therefore expected to be the most expensive overall. However the 
quality of new accommodation provided and value for money needs to be carefully 
evaluated when comparing Option 1 (with partial refurbishment) and the New build 
Options 2a, 2b and 3. The complexity of phasing needs to be considered, as do 
implications for health and safety in the options that include residents of Awelon 
remaining on site. This will inevitably impact on costs and the ability to deliver the 
project within guaranteed timescales. 

 
4.11 Grŵp Cynefin  have considered carefully the relative merits, drawbacks, risks and 

costs of each possible option, drawing on the discussion and findings of the Team of 
consultants, and their own experience with elderly provision and large refurbishment 
and new build construction projects over many years. This has involved giving due 
regard to the health and safety, care and wellbeing of residents during the construction 
period as well as the considerable practical risks for the contractor and construction 
workforce, and the cost, programme management and contractual implications. 

 
4.12 As the design team’s Report shows, all the options are possible on paper, at a cost. 

However, Grŵp Cynefin have concluded that the refurbishment option (option 1) fails 
too many of the tests above, and they therefore would not be prepared to take that 
option forward. Grŵp Cynefin would however be prepared to pursue any of the other 
options, or any variants of them that may emerge from more detailed discussion 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



4.13 Summary of options 
 
 The table below shows the key points for each option.  Additional information to 

support Members’ considerations can be found in appendices 1 – 5. 
 

Options 
considered 

Option 1  Option 2a Option 2b Option 3a Option 3b 

Total 
Estimated 
Cost 
(excluding 
VAT) 

£6,280,000 £7,125,000 £6,905,000 £7,035,000 £6,659,000 

Number of 
Residential 
Care 
Bedrooms 

15 permanent 
(within 

Awelon) 

8 temporary 
 

8 temporary 
 

8 temporary 
 

Nil 

Number of 
additional 
Extra Care 
Flats created 
initially 

21 31 25 25 
 

29 

Number of 
extra Care 
flats once 
need for 
Residential 
Care ended 

42 56 50 50 50 

Floor area 3,683m2 4,277m2 4,010m2 4,010m2 4,010m2 

Comparable 
estimated cost 
per square 
metre 

£1,705/m2 £1,666/m2 £1,722/m2 £1,754/m2 £1,661/m2 

Estimated 
Time to 
complete in 
weeks 

Too many 
variables and 
too complex to 
estimate 

122 116 120 82 

Recommende
d 

No 
due to risk of 
adapting an 
old  building, 
the length, 
complexity of 
the phasing 
and option not 
considered 
viable by RSL.  
In addition, 
revenue costs 
are 
unsustainable 
and provision 
will not meet 
future demand. 

To be 
considered 
 

To be 
considered 
 

To be 
considered 
 

No 
Does not 
meet 
requirement 
that 
residents 
can remain 
at Awelon 
for as long 
as they 
need to 
without an 
unrealistic 
timescale  

Page 22



5 How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
This decision will directly contribute to three of the council’s corporate priorities: 
 
i. Vulnerable people are protected and are able to live as independently as possible; 
ii. Modernising the council to deliver efficiencies and improve services to our customers 
iii. Ensuring access to good quality housing 
 
6 Cost Implications 
 
6.1 There is a cost relating to officer time to facilitate the partnership and development of 

this project.  This is contained within existing roles. 
 
6.2  Failure to re-provide the service will result in on-going costs to Denbighshire.  To 

maintain an individual in a 15 bed DCC Residential Care Home costs a minimum of 
£760 per week at full occupancy (see appendix 8), whilst maintaining individuals with 
the same level of need in Extra Care Housing has a cost of £300 per week, assuming 
a high care need of 20 hours per week and a unit cost of £15 per hour.  

 
6.3 If option 1 was agreed there would also be a capital cost of the refurbishment of the 

existing building which, assuming the space occupies 1/3 of the building, would 
reasonably be expected to be in the region of £2m.  None of the options would have a 
revenue cost to the Council but it is envisaged that there would be no capital receipt 
for the land. 

 
7  Efficiencies and Revenue Savings 
 
 As shown above, the use of Extra Care to provide for ‘standard’ care needs will enable 

the Council to realise some of the £700k savings already identified. Assuming 23 
people were provided with residential care in the independent sector at £508 per 
week, this represents a reduction in expenditure compared to current Awelon costs of 
£200k.  If all 23 people had Extra Care instead, the reduction would be over £450k 

  
8 What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  
 
8.1 The Well-being Impact Assessment is attached at Appendix 7 and demonstrates that 

the recommended option would have a positive impact on the well-being of 
Denbighshire’s citizens.  

 
8.2 The impact on staff in Awelon will be considered as part of implementing any actions 

agreed by Cabinet. 
 
9 What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
9.1 In May 2016, a report was presented to Cabinet providing the outcome of a thorough 

consultation exercise in respect of the future of in house provision. All stakeholders 
were consulted as part of the exercise and Cabinet requested that Officers explore the 
options for developing extra care Housing on the Awelon site. 

 
9.2 If Cabinet agree to the Task & Finish Group recommendation, further consultation 

would take place with staff and unions in line with Council policy. 
 
 
 

Page 23



10 Chief Finance Officer Statement 
  

The report sets out the capital costs and other service implications of several options. 
It is also important that any council contributions required are considered as well as 
the revenue cost implications when developing the formal recommendation. Although 
not the primary factor, it is important that the decision supports the service budget 
strategy and assists with the management of ongoing budget pressures and delivery 
of agreed savings.  
 

11 What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
11.1 The risk of not agreeing the proposal will lead to a sustainability of care services within 

Ruthin given the age and condition of the Awelon building and limited capital to 
refurbish it. 

  
11.2 There will also be a risk to achieving the previously agreed £700K budget savings and 

will continue to contribute to ongoing budget pressures in relation to meeting the care 
needs of older people. 

 
12 Power to make the Decision 
 
12.1. S123 of the Local Government Act 1972 gives the power to dispose of land. 
 
12.2 S3 of the Local Government Act 1972: Duty to secure continuous improvements in the 

way in which functions are exercised. 
 
12.3 Section 7.19 of the Council’s Constitution outlines scrutiny’s powers with respect of 

policy review and development. 
  
Contact Officer: 
Head of Community Support Services 
Tel:  01824 706654 

Page 24



Option 1 Appendix 1              
 

Brief Summary of work involved with Option 1  
 

 Refurbishment of the existing Awelon Care Centre (West Wing and part of the 
existing East Wing) to provide 15 upgraded residential care bedrooms with en-suite 
facilities.  

 Provision of a temporary kitchen.  

 Partial demolition of existing East Wing to make way for new build extra care 
development to be linked to Llys Awelon.  

 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon.  

 New three-storey building provides 21 extra care apartments made up of 8  one-
bedroom and 13  two-bedroom, dining room, kitchen and shared communal facilities.  

 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 260m2 at ground floor level with separate 
entrance.  

 
This is the smallest option in terms of floor area and accommodation provided and was 
expected to be the least expensive overall. However, the comparable cost/m2 is greater 
than that for the new-build Option 2a.  
 
While it may be assumed this option would deliver the shortest construction period, 
programme certainty would be difficult to predict and there is a significant project risk with 
retaining the existing structure given the age and condition of the existing Awelon building. 
Phasing complexity and unforeseen complications may arise when the proposed alteration 
and refurbishment works are undertaken. To reflect this greater risk, the highest allowance 
of £570,000 has been included for Contingencies/Design Reserve in Option 1. 
 
In summary Option 1 would provide: 
21 Extra Care Apartments 
15 upgraded residential bedrooms 
Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility of 260m2 with separate entrance 
A four phase development with uncertain timescales as the build time would be too 
unpredictable being dependent on the condition of the existing building.  
 
Estimate cost for Option 1 Works (excluding VAT)  £6,280,000 
 

Driving forces (pros) Restraining forces (cons) 

Would  deliver on the second 
option put forward by Scrutiny 
Committee by providing 15 
residential care beds  

Extra Care can meet the same level of needs as 
standard residential care while maintaining/promoting 
independence at greatly reduced cost 
 
Complex four phased development would be time 
consuming and carry greater health and safety risk for 
current  tenants and residents 
 
Reduced number of Extra Care apartments would 
render scheme unviable financially for RSL and fail to 
meet demand for future need 

 
 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Option 2a  Appendix  2                
 

Brief  Summary  Of Works for Option 2a 
 

 Forming new internal access from Awelon Care Centre to Llys Awelon. 

 Provision of a temporary kitchen. 

 Partial demolition of the existing East Wing. 

 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon. 

 New three-storey building comprising residential and extra care apartments, dining, 
kitchen and shared communal facilities. 

 Demolition of West Wing and remainder of East Wing. 

 New build West Wing constructed and linked to East Wing. 

 Completed development provides additional 35 extra care apartments (14 No. one-
bedroom and 21 No. two-bedroom), dining room, kitchen and shared communal 
facilities. 

 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 260m2 at ground floor level with separate 
entrance. 

 
This is the largest of the four potential options being considered and delivers 35 new 
apartments and shared communal facilities. A number of the apartments could be 
adapted to provide residential care for some of the existing Awelon residents wishing to 
remain on site, to be converted later to extra care. In terms of floor area being provided, it 
is therefore anticipated to be the most expensive overall. The new community centre is 
close to the site entrance with its own separate entrance.  
 
In summary Option 2a would provide: 
 
35 Extra Care Apartments 
8 Temporary En-suite Residential Care facilities if needed 
Replacement Canolfan Facility @ 260m2 with separate entrance 
A four phase development with predicted build time of 122 weeks 
 
Estimate cost for Option 2a Works (excluding VAT)  £7,125,000 
 

Driving forces (pros) Restraining forces (cons) 

Could begin as soon as planning 
permission is approved and 
arrangements have been made 
for temporary vacation of 
Canolfan Awelon 
 
Will enable current residents  to 
remain at Awelon if that is their 
choice 
 
Delivers maximum number of 
Extra Care Apartments, meeting 
demand for the future 

Costly and Complex four phase development and 
inherent risk to health and safety 
 
Disruption for current tenants and residents for 122 
weeks  

 
 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Option 2b  Appendix 3             
 

Brief Summary of work involved with Option 2b    
 

 Forming new internal access from Awelon Care Centre to Llys Awelon.  

 Existing kitchen located in East Wing to remain operational until first phase 
incorporating new kitchen is complete.  

 Modification of existing Care Centre entrance.  

 Demolition of the existing West Wing.  

 New three-storey building comprising Canolfan Awelon including temporary dining 
room and kitchen and 6 No. flexible residential or extra care apartments. New plant 
and switch rooms.  

 Demolition of East Wing, existing entrance and Canolfan Awelon.  

 New build East Wing constructed and linked to West Wing via new entrance.  

 Completed development to comprise of an additional 8 one-bedroom and 21 two- 
bedroom extra care apartments, dining room, kitchen and shared communal facilities.  

 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 360m2 at ground floor level with separate 
entrance.  

 

This option would deliver 29 new apartments with a number adapted to provide residential 
care for up to 8 relocated Awelon residents wishing to remain on site, to be converted later 
to extra care apartments. Shared communal facilities are provided and the new community 
centre is placed to the West with its own separate entrance. 
 
In summary Option 2b would provide: 
29 Extra Care Apartments 
8 Temporary En- suite Residential Care facilities if needed 
Replacement Canolfan Facility @ 360m2 with separate entrance 
A five phase development with predicted build time of 116 weeks 
 
Estimate cost for Option 2b Works (excluding VAT)  £6,905,000 
 

Driving forces (pros) Restraining forces (cons) 

Could begin as soon as planning 
permission is approved and 
arrangements have been made 
for temporary vacation of 
Canolfan Awelon 
 
Will enable  residents  to remain 
at Awelon if that is their choice 
 
Delivers a total of 50 Extra Care 
Apartments, making it financially 
viable for the Housing 
Association and delivering for 
future demand 

Increased size of Canolfan adding to costs to both the 
build and the Community Association at the detriment of 
additional accommodation 
 
Costly and Complex five phase development and 
inherent risk to health and safety 
 
Disruption for current tenants and residents for 116 
weeks 

 
 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Option 3a  Appendix  4                
 

29 Extra Care Apartments 
8 Temporary upgraded residential bedrooms 
Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility of 360m2 with separate entrance 
A five phase development over 120 weeks 
 
Estimate cost for Option 3 Works (excluding VAT)  £7,035,000 
 

Driving forces (pros) Restraining forces (cons) 

Remaining Awelon residents 
could be accommodated away 
from the building work  
 
 

Increased size of Canolfan adding to costs to 
both the build and the Community Association 
at the detriment of additional accommodation 
 
Complex 5 phase development will have 
negative impact on well-being of existing Llys 
Awelon Tenants 
 

 
 
 

Brief Summary of work involved with Option3    
 

 Alteration and extension of Llys Awelon Block B to accommodate residential care 
residents wishing to be decanted from Awelon Care Centre.  

 Existing kitchen located in Canolfan Awelon to provide temporary dining facility.  

 Demolition of the existing East and West Wings.  

 New three-storey building comprising Canolfan Awelon and extra care apartments. 
New kitchen within Canolfan Awelon used as temporary dining facility. New plant and 
switch rooms.  

 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon.  

 Completion of new build East Wing.  

 Completed development provides an additional 29 extra care apartments (8 one-
bedroom and 21 two- bedroom), dining room, kitchen and shared communal facilities.  

 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 360m2 at ground floor level with separate 
entrance.  

 
In summary Option 3 would provide: 
 
This option would deliver 29 new apartments with a number adapted to provide 
residential care for up to 8 relocated Awelon residents wishing to remain on site, to be 
converted later to extra care apartments. Shared communal facilities are provided and 
the new community centre is placed to the West with its own separate entrance.  A new 
community centre, (Canolfan Awelon @ 360m2 similar to Option 2b) is provided to the 
West with its own separate entrance and parking facilities. 

  

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Option 3b  Appendix  5 
 

Brief Summary of work involved with Option3b    
 

 Provision of a temporary kitchen.  

 Demolition of the Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon and erection of new three-
storey building comprising Canolfan Awelon and additional extra care apartments 
connected with Llys Awelon. New plant and switch rooms.  

 Contractor’s compound remains static for the duration of the project.  

 Completed development provides an additional 29 extra care apartments (8 one-
bedroom and 21 two- bedroom), dining room, kitchen and shared communal facilities.  

 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 360m2 at ground floor level with separate 
entrance.  

 
This variant of Option 3 represents the situation should the residents of Awelon Care 
Centre move elsewhere, and community centre activities currently undertaken at Canolfan 
Awelon are paused and temporally moved elsewhere but return later on completion. In that 
event, the demolition of the care centre and community building would be undertaken in a 
single operation. A temporary kitchen would be required to service the existing extra care 
residents and less remodelling work would be required to Llys Awelon but this is seen as 
feasible.  
 
The Construction Estimate of £6,659,000 is the lowest of the full new build options. The 
build period could be expected to be the shortest at around 82 weeks. 
 
In summary Option 3b would provide: 

29 Extra Care Apartments 
Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility of 360m2 with separate entrance 
A single  development over 82 weeks 
 

Estimate cost for Option 3 Works (excluding VAT)  £6,659,000 
 

Driving forces (pros) Restraining forces (cons) 

Less costly single phase 
development would be completed 
much faster and would have less 
risk for health and safety of Llys 
Awelon residents and staff 

Increased size of Canolfan adding to costs to 
both the build and the Community Association 
at the detriment of additional accommodation 
 
Awelon residents would need to move to 
alternative accommodation    

 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Gofal Ychwanegol yn Rhuthun - Llys Awelon - Extra Care in Ruthin 

Cynlluniau Arfaethedig/Options Appraisal for the Awelon Site - Tachwedd/November 2016 

P
age 35

Phi94517
Typewritten Text
Appendix 6



 02 

1.0  INTRODUCTION       03 

2.0  SITE ANALYSIS        15 

3.0  BUILDING ANALYSIS    20  

4.0  OPTION 1       41 

5.0  OPTION 2       53 

6.0  OPTION 3       75 

7.0       DESIGN IMPLICATIONS     87 

8.0  SUMMARY      96 

CONTENTS 

P
age 36



 03 

1.0  INTRODUCTION 

P
age 37



 04 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
SCOPE AND PURPOSE 

INTRODUCTION 

Ainsley Gommon have been instructed by Grŵp Cynefin, who are 

working in partnership with Denbighshire County Council,  to carry out 

an Option Appraisal for the potential of further development and 

improvements at Awelon in Ruthin. 

This document provides an overview and description of the current 

buildings known as the Awelon Care Centre and considers the feasibility 

of either refurbishment or redevelopment to provide additional extra 

care apartments and communal facilities, providing three main options 

for development in response to the brief provided by the Council.   

A key aspect of this report is to consider whether, and if so how, the  

existing residents living at Awelon Care Centre could be accommodated 

within these options. Outline proposals are also included to show how 

community facilities (currently housed in Canolfan Awelon) could be 

incorporated into the scheme.  

SCOPE 

The report provides an overview and broad analysis of the Awelon site’s 

potential for redevelopment and considers the following: 

 Fabric & Structural Condition 

 Physical Constraints & Space Limitations 

 Practical & Technical Considerations 

 Impact on Residents and Staff 

 External Appearance 

 Future Flexibility 

 Maintenance Implications 

 Energy Use & Running Costs 

 Future Maintenance 

 Services Considerations 

 Health and Safety 

 Cost Implications 

 

Following on from this analysis, a series of three potential options will 

be developed for consideration, along with an explanation of how 

each option could be delivered whilst attempting to minimise any 

disruption to existing Awelon residents.  

Indicative layout plans will then be presented to give an indication of 

the level of accommodation that could be provided for each of the 

three options. 

SITE LOCATION IN RUTHIN SHOWING ACCESS FROM SCHOOL ROAD 

P
age 38



 05 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
SITE LOCATION 

SITE LOCATION 

Accessed via School Road, Llys Awelon is located within the centre of 

Ruthin.  The site is owned by Denbighshire County Council, with a lease 

granted to Grŵp Cynefin for part of the site which enabled them to 

provide the adjoining extra care units completed some 5 years ago.  

The site is bounded by Park Road (A494) to the North, residential 

properties to the East and South, and by a Cemetery to the West. 

 

SITE DESCRIPTION 

A single access point from School Road leads you into the site, measuring 

circa 0.83ha, with 58 no. parking spaces (including  9 no. accessible car 

parking spaces). 

The site comprises the following facilities: 

 21no. 1 and 2 bedroom Extra Care apartments. 

 26no. Residential Care bedrooms and ancillary facilities. 

 Community Centre (Canolfan Awelon). 

 

A central dining area and commercial kitchen located within the Awelon 

Care Centre provides hot meals for both the residential care and extra 

care residents.  

The site gently slopes down from the main site entrance, with a line of 

mature trees along part of the western edge partially screening the 

Cemetery. Boundary treatments include hedgerows to the north and 

east, a stone wall along the boundary of School Road, and timber fencing 

to the west. 

There is a stark contrast between the original buildings on the site which 

are predominantly brick with flat roofs, and later additions with pitched 

roofs and rendered elevations with timber cladding,  providing relief to 

the principal elevations. 
SITE PLAN AS EXISTING 

P
age 39



 06 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE SITE 

AWELON CARE CENTRE ENTRANCE SOUTH ELEVATION OF CANOLFAN AWELON CANOLFAN AWELON ENTRANCE 

LLYS AWELON COURTYARD AMENITY  SPACE TO FRONT OF AWELON CARE CENTRE  
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS TO 

AWELON CARE CENTRE 

P
age 40



 07 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE SITE 

EXISTING SITE PLAN KITCHEN WITH BOILER HOUSE BEHIND LLYS AWELON (SECONDARY BUILDING) 

AWELON CARE CENTRE EAST ELEVATION AMENITY SPACE TO EAST OF SITE CAR PARKING ADJACENT TO LLYS AWELON (MAIN BUILDING) 

AWELON CARE CENTRE ENTRANCE WITH 

CANOLFAN AWELON BEHIND 

P
age 41



 08 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE BUILDING 

AWELON CARE CENTRE 

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

LLYS AWELON EXTRA  

CARE APARTMENTS 

P
age 42



 09 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE BUILDING 

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

AWELON CARE CENTRE 

LLYS AWELON EXTRA  

CARE APARTMENTS 

P
age 43



 10 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE BUILDING 

EXISTING SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 44



 11 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE BUILDING 

EXISTING CANOLFAN AWELON FLOOR PLAN EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN OF LLYS AWELON (BLOCK B) 

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN OF LLYS AWELON (BLOCK B) 

P
age 45



 12 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE BUILDING 

EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION 

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION 

P
age 46



 13 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
THE BUILDING 

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION 

EXISTING WEST ELEVATION 

P
age 47



 14 

Interior Views of Awelon Care Centre: 

Photos show the crampedness of some of 

the interior spaces at the Awelon Care 

Centre.  Small resident bedrooms with old 

fashioned vanity sink units and minimal 

wardrobe storage; long narrow corridors 

and basic cooking facilities in main kitchen 

with poor electric lighting and uncontrolled 

ventilation. 

P
age 48



 15 

2.0  SITE ANALYSIS 

P
age 49



 16 

2.0 SITE ANALYSIS 
ACCESS & LAYOUT 

ACCESS 

Awelon is accessed via School Road (Ffordd yr Ysgol).  A vehicular route 

through the site links the buildings with 58 car parking spaces (including 

9 accessible spaces) spread across the site in smaller clusters.  13 parking 

spaces to the north which are located over the rainwater attenuation 

tanks serve the main extra care provision, Llys Awelon.  The Awelon Care 

Centre and Canolfan Awelon community centre and four sheltered 

apartments at the front of the site share 45 spaces with a number of 

dedicated disabled parking spaces. 

The pedestrian route into the site (shown green) links with Church Walks 

and School Road. The main entrance of the Awelon Care Centre is clearly 

visible but the entrances to Llys Awelon and Canolfan Awelon are tucked 

around corners. Pedestrian access continues around the west wing of 

the Awelon Care Centre to the north west entrance of Llys Awelon (main 

building) but there is little defined footpath edge. 

Service access is provided centrally with a deliveries lay-by shared 

between the kitchens of Awelon Care Centre, and Canolfan Awelon. 

SCALE 

The buildings on site vary in height from single storey to two and three  

storey development, with the tallest being the Llys Awelon extra care 

complex, the more recent addition to the north.  

BOUNDARIES 

The site is bounded along the northern edge by Park Road  (A494, which 

is the main route through Ruthin). Abutting the eastern boundary edge  

are 9 adjoining residential properties. There is a 2m fall in level east 

between the site and these neighbouring properties. 

The site is bounded by an Abbeyfield home and a cemetery to the west. 

An established housing area exists to the south close to the town centre. 

TREES AND PLANTING 

Planting on the site is minimal, with the majority of trees and vegetation 

located within a group on the western site boundary with an area of soft 

landscaping stretching along the entire length of the eastern boundary, 

providing the majority of the usable open space.  

 

EXISTING ACCESS POINTS 

A
TTU

N
A

TIO
N

 TA
N

K
S
 

B
E
N

E
A

TH
 C

A
R

 P
A

R
K

 

P
age 50



 17 

2.0 SITE ANALYSIS 
ACCESS & LAYOUT 

 

AREA 

The total site area is approximately 0.83 ha (8,272sqm).  The nearby 

local distributor, A494 is close to the northern boundary of LLys Awelon.  

However, level differences and highway constraints preclude a new site 

access to be formed from the north.  

The current building footprint is 2418sqm (29% of site area) with the 

remainder laid to roads, parking, landscaping and amenity space.  The 

existing buildings comprise four separate demises with inter-related 

uses. The Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon were built around 

45 years ago, while the Llys Awelon extra care facility was completed by 

Grŵp Cynefin in 2011.  The Llys Awelon main building and Awelon Care 

Centre are separate structures, back to back with a link at ground floor. 

The current amount of usable amenity space is around 1243sqm or 15% 

of the Awelon site area, the bulk of this runs along the eastern site edge 

abutting the fences of rear gardens to private residences in Troed y Rhw.  

ORIENTATION 

The Lounge areas and 15 bedrooms in the existing Awelon Care Centre 

building face north, have poor outlook and receive little or no sunlight 

with only 11 bedrooms and dining area facing south. The 17 extra care 

apartments adjoining forming Llys Awelon have pleasant views towards 

Park Road (A494) and beyond with 8 apartments facing south or west.  

The main entrance to Awelon Care Centre is conspicuous and a covered 

residents sit out space off the dining area has views over a small garden 

area facing south. This area looks towards the main site entrance.  

Very little of the existing residential provision has views over gardens or 

amenity space to the east.  The central courtyard and lounge spaces 

serving Llys Awelon are overshadowed by the Awelon Care Centre. 

Canolfan Awelon and small block of four apartments are positioned 

prominently on the right as you enter the site. However the main 

entrance to the community centre is tucked around the corner and can 

be easily overlooked when entering the site for the first time.   EXISTING SITE DISPOSITION PLAN 

P
age 51



 18 

OPPORTUNITIES & CONSTRAINTS PLAN 

A 

B 

P
age 52



 19 

2.0 SITE ANALYSIS 
OPPORTUNITIES & CONSTRAINTS 

NEIGHBOURING PROPERTIES 

To the east of the site there are 9  neighbouring properties served from 

Troed y Rhiw, whose rear gardens back onto the Awelon site. Due to site 

topography, the floor levels of these dwellings are typically 2m lower 

than the main Awelon ground floor level. 

Planning guidance states that a minimum distance between habitable 

rooms facing each other should be 22 metres. This should be increased if 

there is a difference in building floor levels. We therefore need to 

consider a separation distance of 26 metres for new development. 

A similar situation arises with Abbey House to the west of the site. Here 

a separation distance of 22m is shown. 

ACCESS / PARKING 

There is a single point of site access via School Road – for both vehicular 

and pedestrian traffic. There is little potential for providing an additional 

access onto a main highway. 

The total number of car parking spaces on-site is 58 including 9 

accessible spaces for blue badge holders close to building entrances. 

LINKS / DIVISIONS 

Although the connection between Awelon Care Centre and the main 

Block A of Llys Awelon provides ground floor access between the two 

buildings and for the sharing of the dining hall and kitchen facilities, the 

central position of the Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon creates 

a  physical separation between the later built extra care apartments.   

Staff and residents have to walk outside if they wish to pass between  

Block A (containing 17 apartments) and smaller Block B (4 apartments). 

This is not ideal and needs to be addressed in any new proposals. 

The further redevelopment of the Awelon site should therefore allow for 

greater connectivity of the extra care provision and consider improved 

access between shared and communal facilities. 

 

SERVICES LOCATIONS 

The position of the existing Boiler House within the east wing of 

Awelon Care Centre provides a substantial constraint for any new 

development should part of the Awelon building be retained. The 

separation of the Switch Room away from the Boiler House adds 

further complexity when considering options for demolition and 

renewal and evaluating the possible diversion and relocation of mains 

services.  

Option 1 described later in the report considers the practicalities of 

retaining parts of the Awelon Building and potential phasing to help 

accommodate the Switch Room, boiler house and other spaces 

providing plant and equipment. 

The substation and back up generators would both require continued 

vehicular access, and this would need to be considered in any future 

development. 

SCALE 

The Awelon Care Centre building is predominantly two storeys, with 

the exception of the single storey section housing the Kitchen and 

Boiler House. 

Llys Awelon (Block A) is generally three storeys, with the exception of 

the east end of the building which reduces to two storeys and steps 

down to relate in scale, with the adjacent private dwellings in Treod y 

Rhiw.  Smaller Block B is two storeys at the front of the site. 

Canolfan Awelon is single storey but the hall is elevated to provide 

greater headroom over the main activity space 

DENSITY 

The overall site area is 8,272m2 or 0.827 hectares and contains three 

distinct buildings with a total footprint area of 2,416m2. This gives an 

as built footprint area of 29% of the total site area. 

 

APPEARANCE 

The Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon are both faced in 

brickwork, whilst the two later constructed blocks of Llys Awelon have a 

render and timber cladding finish. This contrast allows for a varied 

palette of materials to be considered for new development or 

refurbishment.  The primary focus of any new plans should be to provide 

a consistent appearance to the development as a whole. 

Similar materials can also be found on surrounding buildings, meaning 

that the development should fit in well contextually.  

LANDSCAPED AMENITY AREAS 

At 1082m2, the vast majority of the existing external space is to the east 

of the site (including the courtyard between the Awelon Care Centre and 

Llys Awelon). However little of this outside area appears to be used by 

residents except external terrace space (180m2) located adjacent to the 

Awelon Care Centre entrance. 

Due to the inefficient, and over-supply of car parking spaces on the site, 

the amount of usable external space for residents is limited. There is the 

potential to create additional soft landscaping to the north west of the 

site, in order to create a secure garden space which would be located 

over the present rainwater attenuation tanks. 

Redevelopment of the Awelon site provides opportunities for new 

buildings to face east, south and west with better external relationships. 

Currently landscaped areas to the east are located closer to service and 

ancillary areas and under-utilised by residents.   

ORIENTATION 

60% of residential care bedrooms within Awelon face north, while only 

40% of bedrooms face south.  Currently, no residents have views from 

their apartments or bedrooms over the landscaped area to the east.  

The position of Llys Awelon Block A to the north, and Block B to the 

south suggest that an east—west orientated building is most suitable in 

order to link the two buildings and to provide better outlook.  

P
age 53



 20 

3.0  BUILDING ANALYSIS 

P
age 54



 21 

FABRIC & STRUCTURE 

Commentary on structural form and fabric of existing building is 

provided by Datrys Consulting Engineers and Ainsley Gommon 

Architects.  These reports are not  based on invasive survey or in depth 

analysis but aim to provide an overview of the existing Awelon Care 

Centre Building. 

 

CONSTRAINTS & SPACE LIMITATIONS 

Commentary and illustrative sketch plans are provided by the architects 

to explain how design quality standards and residential care standards 

would impact upon the existing building should conversion,  remodelling 

or new development be contemplated . 

 

PRACTICAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The prospect of any works of improvement and development at Awelon 

requires careful consideration at every step to minimise disruption and 

inconvenience to residents, visitors and staff at Awelon.  This section 

outlines some of the practical  measures and constraints  to be 

overcome  before any future building work could take place.  

 

TECHNICAL CONSIDERATIONS 

An overview of Residential Care Standards, Building Accessibility,  

Building and Fire Regulations is provided and how they relate to the 

current layout found within the Awelon Care Centre.   This commentary 

provides an overview  and comparison with modern technical standards. 

 

 

 

 

IMPACT ON RESIDENTS & STAFF 

Grŵp Cynefin and their consultants recognise the acute sensitivity of 

planning and carrying out further improvements and development on 

the Awelon site.  The report touches on some of the issues that need 

to be addressed to ensure the wellbeing of residents and staff.  

 

EXTERNAL APPEARANCE 

This section discusses the appearance of the existing building  and 

scope for future improvement to align with the more recent  additions 

and any new development to be considered on the site.  It also 

considers the repetitive cellular form and impact on any potential 

remodelling. 

 

FUTURE FLEXIBILITY 

Commentary on the question of adaptability and future flexibility of 

the existing building is provided both in terms of meeting residential 

care needs now and in the future.  This section also considers the 

potential for modifying the existing structure.    

 

MAINTENANCE IMPLICATIONS 

This provides an overview of some of the implications concerning  

ongoing maintenance and issues affecting the upkeep and repairs in 

the refurbishment when compared with the new build options.  This 

highlights the need to compile a component renewal profile to 

properly evaluate the cost implications of ongoing maintenance.   

 

 

 

 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
 AWELON CARE CENTRE 

ENERGY USAGE & RUNNING COSTS 

An overview is provided on the likely impact of the fabric and structure 

due to the leaky nature of existing fabric etc. Commentary by Carpenter 

Davies Consulting Engineers is provided outlining the existing  services 

within Awelon and how it compares with the options for new build.  

 

SERVICES CONSIDERATIONS 

An overview of existing and proposed services is provided by Carpenter 

Davies Consulting Engineers. This is based on a visual survey of the site 

and prior knowledge of working on the earlier development. Option 

appraisals consider full replacement/improvement of services and any 

potential disconnections/diversions required.  

 

HEALTH AND SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS 

An overview of potential health and safety considerations relating to 

phased demolition / construction on a sensitive site. This part of the 

report will outline issues to do with the safety of residents, staff and 

visitors continuing to occupy the Awelon site while construction works 

take place. 

 

COST IMPLICATIONS 

A Cost Option Appraisal has been prepared by Metrics Consultants 

providing a comparison between the four options being considered 

(Options 1, 2A, 2B and 3). Summary breakdowns of the capital cost 

implications for refurbishment and newbuild situations are provided.  

Revenue costs implications are not reported at this stage. 

 

P
age 55



 22 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
STRUCTURE 

TYPICAL AREAS OF CRACKING 

C D 

B A 

 
 

C D 

B A 

The following provides an overview of the structural form of the existing 

Awelon Care Centre as provided by Datrys Consulting Engineers: 

 

FORM OF CONSTRUCTION  

The present building is of traditional load bearing masonry construction 

in a cellular arrangement as indicated on the attached drawings. The 

walls are generally continuous from Ground Floor to Roof levels with 

local beam and post construction. The details of this structure are as 

follows: 

FOUNDATIONS 

The foundations are considered to be conventional strip footings which, 

given the absence of distortion or settlement, are considered to be 

adequate. Any alterations to the load bearing structure would result in 

changes to the load paths and a possible increase in the loads carried by 

the foundations. Investigations would be required to ensure that such 

load changes are within acceptable limits or local strengthening would 

need to be carried out. 

GROUND FLOOR 

No intrusive investigation of the ground floor and foundations has been 

carried out. However the walkover survey indicated the floor to be of 

solid construction. This floor is therefore probably of a ground bearing 

slab with a bonded screed. At the time of construction of the building 

insulation was not placed beneath floor slabs which would therefore be 

cast directly onto a membrane on blinded hardcore.   

MASONRY  

The outer walls are of cavity construction with overall dimension of 

350mm. The outer skin is of fair-faced brickwork and the inner skin is 

likely to be of concrete blocks. The inner partition walls are also 

considered to be of blockwork. No movement joints were noted in either 

the brick or the blockwork and cracking was present in the outer 

brickwork. No significant cracking was noted in the inner skin possibly as 

a result of later repairs of drying shrinkage cracks in the blockwork which 

are associated with the period immediately after their construction. The 

cracking noted in the brickwork was generally vertical indicating thermal 

cracking due to the absence of movement joints. The crack widths were 

not of a magnitude that would cause concern as to the structural 

adequacy of the walls but suitable repairs should be allowed for. 

P
age 56



 23 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
 STRUCTURE 

 

STRUCTURAL PRINCIPLES DIAGRAM 

FIRST FLOOR 

STRUCTURAL PRINCIPLES DIAGRAM 

GROUND FLOOR 

C 

D 

B 
The cellular nature of the construction provides resistance to lateral 

loads. The dimensions of the masonry wind panels allow them to carry 

wind loading to the side walls and floor and roof plates. The Roof and 

First floor then transfer lateral loads to the cross wall which act as shear 

walls and provide a high degree of lateral stability.  

 

ROOF 

The flat roof construction is supported on a profiled metal decking which 

spans across the building cross section in a north-south direction. The 

profile is 60mm deep suggesting that its maximum span would be 

approximately 2m and that intermediate supports would be required. It 

is considered therefore that the roof spans from the outer masonry walls 

to those of the central corridor with purlins providing additional support 

which in turn span onto the cross-walls. As such most of the walls above 

the First Floor provide a cellular structure to support the roof. 

 

FIRST FLOOR 

The First Floor is of timber joist construction. The absence of down-stand 

beams over the corridors indicates that the joists span between the 

corridor walls in a north-south direction. Elsewhere it was noted that the 

joists span east-west. It is probable therefore that given the cellular 

construction of the walls that the shortest span would have been 

adopted within a given area and that the direction of span will vary in 

accordance with the local geometry of the masonry cells. 

 

BEAM AND POST CONSTRUCTION    

The Dining Area requires a large open area and to achieve this steel 

posts have been introduced under the line of the load bearing masonry 

walls above. No down-stand beams were noted indicating that the 

beams have been set within the floor space with their top flanges set at 

or near to the First Floor level. The steel posts are of relatively slender 

SHS sections. 

P
age 57



 24 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
FABRIC 

FELT ROOF AREAS TO AWELON  

The following provides an overview by Ainsley Gommon of the fabric 

condition and type of construction at the Awelon Care Centre: 

EXISTING MASONRY WALLS  

The Awelon Care Centre Building (and Canolfan Awelon) are faced with  

buff ‘Jacobean’ facing bricks made from clay extracted locally in Buckley.  

While generally regarded as quality facing bricks, with age they have 

darkened and become stained giving a shabby washed out appearance.  

The brick pointing is patchy and unattractive in places.  With the Buckley 

brickworks closing down it may be difficult to source a close match for 

necessary repairs and extensions/modification.   

As can be seen in the photos adjacent there are areas which have been 

subject to movement and some cracking which is highlighted in the 

structural engineer’s report and plans. The visible cracking and poor 

quality pointing is affecting the performance of the external skin and its 

ability to resist moisture while looking unsightly.  

Advice from Datrys Consulting Engineers has been sought on the 

possible reasons of the cracking but without carrying out invasive 

surveys it is not possible to be certain of the causes.  However it is 

possible to surmise that lack of movement joints and poor detailing may 

be contributing to the cracking taking place.  It could also be the result 

of perished wall ties, and it may be prudent to inspect the make up of 

the cavity wall to check condition of wall ties, cavity trays and damp 

courses of all exposed elevations using borescope surveying equipment. 

The engineer has also alerted us to technical guidance with an expected 

maximum design life of 50 years  for galvanized wall ties. Therefore it 

would be prudent to plan for future wall tie replacement ‘regardless of  

the project going ahead’ and subject to the survey findings. 

Lack of adequate insulation and exposed concrete lintels may be 

contributing to the very low energy ratings being achieved and should 

refurbishment or remodelling be considered, more detailed 

investigations would be needed to assess the wall make up and the 

causes of the cracking.  

C D 

B A 

VIEW FROM LLYS AWELON STAIRCASE 

TOWARDS AWELON CARE CENTRE ROOF 

AWELON CARE CENTRE ROOF AWELON CARE CENTRE ROOF 

P
age 58



 25 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
 FABRIC  

AWELON CARE CENTRE NORTH ELEVATION 

AWELON CARE CENTRE ENTRANCE 

CELLULAR NATURE OF EXISTING STRUCTURE 

As can be seen from the plans prepared by Datrys Consulting 

Engineers the existing building structure is predominantly cellular in 

nature with most of the internal partitions being loadbearing 

supporting upper floors and roofs. Larger spaces like the residents 

dining and lounge area  offer more generous spaces but these rooms 

are limited in number. If conversion or remodelling is contemplated 

existing floors and roofs would have to be propped and new beams 

and lintels inserted if rooms had to be enlarged or reconfigured. The 

removal of cross walls would reduce the cellular nature of the 

structure possibly requiring the introduction of additional wind posts 

locally to help stabilise the structure. Constructing cross-walls would 

be disruptive while offering new lines of buttressing to ensure the 

adequate lateral stability of the building as a whole. 

EXISTING FLAT ROOFS  

The Awelon Care Centre Building and Canolfan Awelon are both 

covered in flat roofs with small parapet walls.   As can be seen in the 

photos adjacent some of the roof areas hold water because falls are 

minimal and rainwater outlets can become blocked.  As the roof 

finishes are traditional bituminous roofing felt on  joists and decking, 

movement and cracking in the finishes can occur leading to 

degradation of the roof  finishes and water penetration into the 

structure if regular maintenance is not carried out. While we are 

unclear when repairs or upgrading of the roof finishes has been 

carried out, it is likely that substantial ongoing maintenance would be 

required or more substantial improvements carried out to improve 

both weather tightness and thermal performance to bring the fabric 

up to modern standards.  

Advice from Datrys has been sought on the potential for upgrading 

roof finishes and insulation but more invasive surveys would be 

required to check integrity of the existing roof structure and quality of 

existing decking and roof insulation which is expected to be of low 

quality. 

WINDOWS AND DOORS 

Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon have replacement uPVC 

windows with metal sub-cills. These windows are double glazed top 

hung with horizontal openings with trickle vents. However none of these 

windows are designed for egress and their style and makeup would 

suggest they were fitted some time ago when glazing methods and 

thermal standards  were less onerous.  

There is little ‘inside outside’ connection as most of these windows look 

out onto tarmac or footways directly abutting the building edge thereby 

limiting the distance opening lights can project to ventilate internal 

spaces. In all situations the top edge and reveal of window openings is 

minimal. Entrance doors and side panels  are timber single glazed and 

may be original with modifications top locks and operating gear. 

 

CONCRETE LINTELS AND PARAPETS 

At roof  level concrete lintels and parapet fascias have been cast 

together in-situ. Facings brick panels terminate at roof level with metal 

(possibly lead) cover flashings which appear to be dressed into the 

concrete fascia.  The concrete facia is capped in roofing felt raising the 

possibility of dampness penetrating the structure.  

If the facia and lintel are not separated and thermally broken with the 

inner wall and roof structure then it is possible that condensation and 

tracking moisture could penetrate the structure and considerable heat 

loss could occur. 

Concrete boot lintels over ground floor lintels have some weepholes, 

however it was common in the 1960’s and 1970’s for lintels of this type 

to support and span both leaves of the cavity wall, thus providing a cold 

bridge through the structure. Further investigation would be required to 

clarify the nature of the cavity construction, to check on cavity trays, 

damp courses, insulation and lintel makeup to calculate the heat loss 

and current u-value to predict future performance and weathering. 

P
age 59



 26 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
CONSTRAINTS + SPACE LIMITATIONS 

PHYSICAL CONSTRAINTS OF EXISTING STRUCTURE  

The cellular nature of the existing structure within Awelon Care Centre 

provides for small individual rooms accessed via a central corridor. 

Unfortunately the existing bedroom room sizes are typically 10m2 (or 

less if taking into account vanity units) and do not meet the current 

requirements for a minimum room area of 12m2 for residential care.  

None of the bedrooms have en-suite facilities which is the norm in 

modern facilities. 

There are a number of existing rooms that would meet the current 

space standards, but many of these rooms are currently utilised as 

shared lounges or small dining spaces. 

The central circulation corridor is generally 1.5m wide, which again 

falls below current standards. The fact that both walls of the corridor 

are supporting walls would make any attempt to widen the corridor 

extremely difficult, if not impossible. 

The east west orientation of the corridor with rooms facing either 

north or south also removes the possibility of bedrooms facing the 

landscaped area to the east of the site. 

Due to the development of the Llys Awelon extra care facility, 

attached to the north façade of Awelon Care Centre, a number of 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN—ROOM AREAS (SQM) 

rooms lost their access to natural light. The affected rooms have either 

been retained as sanitary facilities or are utilised as storage space. 

The main communal space within Awelon is the dining space with steel  

columns allowing greater spans creating 75m2 of shared space.  This 

area falls below the area expected in a modern building providing 

accommodation for the current and projected population figures 

together. 

The passenger lift and main stair are positioned centrally on the plan, 

which works well for vertical circulation close to the main entrance. 

However the current size of the lift shaft is very restrictive, not being 

large enough to provide a suitably sized lift car to meet current mobility 

standards or provide stretcher use. 

The staircase to the east wing is narrow, substandard, partially closed off 

and emergency access across a flat roof is unsuitable for evacuation of 

frail older people. 

Existing ceiling heights are lower than current standards, and would not 

allow for much improvement in the sound insulation between the first 

floor and ground floor. Any introduction of services within the ceiling 

void to corridors or highly serviced rooms would also be restrictive. 

P
age 60



 27 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
  FUTURE FLEXIBILITY 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN—ROOM AREAS (SQM) 

survey to prove the structural viability and cost effectiveness.   

The most suitable direction for lateral expansion of the existing extra 

care facility would be to the south. The position of the Canolfan Awelon 

building, kitchen and boiler house position make any expansion in this 

direction very difficult.  

CONVERSION TO AN EXTRA CARE FACILITY 

The configuration and overall depth of the existing Awelon Care Centre 

building, combined with its cellular construction would result in 

significant structural alterations and adaptation to provide extra care 

apartments within the existing building. The number of apartments 

created would be limited by the physical constraint of the structure, and 

their size and shape would not be as well suited as accommodation 

specifically design for such use to current standards. 

 

RESIDENTIAL CARE BEDROOMS 

Any development that proposes the retention of the Awelon Care Centre 

building would need to consider how to increase the floor area of the 

existing residential care bedrooms. The expectation may also be that any 

improved bedrooms should have access to en-suite facilities.   

In order to resolve these two related issues some structural work would 

be required, including the removal of some separating walls with the 

introduction of  lintels or steel beams to support the floor/roof above. 

This would inevitably mean the loss of some residential care bedrooms. 

If en-suite bathrooms were provided to each bedroom, there could be 

an opportunity to reduce the central sanitary provision, and therefore 

use some of those spaces as part of the residential care space. 

However, as many of these rooms do not have natural light, significant 

structural work would be needed to provide useable space. 

FUTURE EXPANSION 

The building is currently two storeys and due to the existing structural 

make-up of the building, it is unlikely that an additional floor over 

would be possible or cost effective.  Converting the existing flat roof  

to provide a new floor would be intrusive and would require a detailed 

P
age 61



 28 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
PRACTICAL CONSIDERATIONS 

POOR EGRESS AND NARROW CORRIDORS AT AWELON    

C D 

B A 

AWELON CARE CENTRE TYPICAL ROOFLIGHT 

AWELON CARE CENTRE STAIRCASE 

AWELON CARE CENTRE GROUND FLOOR CORRIDOR 

FIRE ESCAPE STAIR TO AWELON CARE CENTRE 

PLANS FOR REMODELLING OR REDEVELOPMENT 

The existing site layout and building relationships presents challenges. 

Maintaining  the ability to service the existing residential provision, both 

residential and extra care would be paramount in any plans for 

remodelling or redevelopment.  Providing hot food and maintaining 

access for staff, visitors and emergency vehicles  are key considerations. 

Llys Awelon is located behind the Awelon Care Centre and safe access 

would need to be maintained, and so any plans for improvement or 

development to the residential care provision needs to be carefully 

considered to avoid isolating parts of the site and impairing free 

movement, including emergency access.  Similarly building users and 

visitors accessing Canolfan Awelon and part of Llys Awelon at the front 

must be considered early in any proposals.  

 

MOVING OR DECANTING RESIDENTS   

The Awelon Care Centre currently provides residential care for 18 older 

persons, some of these being in their 80’ and 90’s and physically frail.  

Many of those would be very vulnerable to work being carried on 

around them or nearby on the site if this was not carefully planned and 

executed. The prospect of temporary decanting to accommodate the 

smallest building modifications or more significant works like demolition 

and new build raises real concerns that need to be addressed.  Careful 

forward planning and  phasing would be required  to minimise the 

disruption to residents comfort and wellbeing.   

This report will endeavour to explore the various possible scenarios 

whether and, if so, how concerns for those residents wishing to remain 

at Awelon could be met in practical terms without placing them and the 

staff who look after them at risk.   

 

FURTHER SURVEYS AND INVESTIGATIONS 

Before any firm plans or costs could be finalised it would be important 

to carry out further detailed surveys (some being intrusive) to ascertain 

the full nature of construction and to clarify existing services and 

whether there is asbestos present in the building.  This would apply in 

all the scenarios being considered. 

P
age 62



 29 

RESIDENTIAL CARE STANDARDS  

The Awelon Care Centre falls well short of modern care standards 

when compared with a modern building provision as espoused within  

latest Residential Care standards for Wales.    

Basic deficiencies include the size of residents bedrooms which are too 

small and fall well short of the 12m2 area required in most cases.  

Narrow long corridors with bedrooms off have been replaced with 

smaller more informal arrangements in later care standards so 

therefore Awelon falls short of new best practice for modern design 

and the layout is largely of an institutional appearance with poor space 

standards. 

 

BUILDING ACCESSIBILTY  

We are unclear whether a full Access Audit has been carried out at the 

premises in recent years but if it has it is likely to raise a number of 

important issues: 

Awelon Care Centre has narrow corridors of 1500mm wide including 

handrails both sides. This is narrower than modern standards and 

makes it difficult for wheelchairs and semi ambulant users to pass 

comfortably and creates a claustrophobic feel to circulation.  

Conversely the two main staircases are wider than desirable making it 

difficult for frail residents to reach out and support themselves using 

handrails on both sides of these staircases simultaneously.  

The staircase at the eastern end of Awelon is too narrow for safe 

egress during normal hours and has been segregated for use in 

emergencies only and replaced with an ‘over the roof’ external 

staircase which would be difficult to use by residents or staff and 

creating some ambiguity.  

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
 TECHNICAL CONSIDERATIONS  

BUILDING REGULATIONS 

Awelon Care Centre (and Canolfan Awelon) were both built at a time 

when Building Regulations were quite different.   

Wall, floor and roof construction methods 45 years ago gave very limited 

consideration to proper ventilation, insulation, thermal separation and 

air-tightness. Robust details had not been introduced to ensure weather 

tightness and many building materials used like in-situ concrete were 

generally inferior. 

Use of poured in-situ concrete in the building elevations and uninsulated 

cavity walls means that projected or anticipated u-values at Awelon are 

likely to be very high (poor) with excessive levels of heat loss through 

the existing structure and fabric.  Similarly existing ground floors are 

unlikely to be insulated and felted flat roofs are likely to be laid on poor 

quality materials which no longer achieve modern building regulations 

standards.   

Existing intermediate timber floors offer little sound insulation and are 

bound to fall short of Part E of the building regulations and currently 

allow unwanted noise to pass through separating construction between 

rooms and corridors on the ground and first floor.   

Improvements to install better thermal and sound insulation may not be 

possible, but in any event would involve impacting on residents’ rooms. 

 

FIRE REGULATIONS 

We are unclear when the last fire inspection was carried out at the 

premises but assume a current fire certificate exists. However, the 

suspended timber floors present a serious fire risk for evacuating the 

elderly residents. If options for redevelopment were explored beyond 

this report dialogue with Building Control and Fire Brigade to agree a 

suitable strategy for building evacuation and means of escape would be 

recommended. As such proposals incorporated in this report are only 

indicative and not fire engineered. 

AWELON CARE CENTRE NORTH ELEVATION 

AWELON CARE CENTRE FIRE ESCAPE DOOR 

P
age 63



 30 

Staff - The ability of staff to perform their jobs is also of key 

importance. The existing buildings already create a challenging 

environment and due to the position of existing catering facilities a 

temporary kitchen solution would be required during part of the 

works to maintain the flow of hot meals. Phasing and location of the 

temporary kitchen is described within the Options Appraisal later in 

this report. 

Disruption to Heating and Services - The age profile of the elderly 

resident population living within Awelon will always be of concern. 

Many residents are in their 80’s and 90’ and are bound to feel the 

cold if heating is turned off for prolonged periods.  Similarly if hot 

water services are disrupted then bathing and washing becomes more 

difficult and matters of staff hygiene may be affected when preparing 

hot meals or where carers help residents to perform daily living tasks.    

Services Engineers Carpenter Davies have raised concerns that  

disruption to heating and services is likely to intrude on the lives of 

residents and staff, particularly  where refurbishment  or extensive  

building remodelling takes place.  While careful forward planning 

would be needed, the more complex the phasing of building 

operations , the greater the risk that heating and services cannot be 

maintained at all times and this could have a significant bearing on 

any final choices that are made to improve facilities at Awelon.  

Further details are provided by Carpenter Davies in Section 3 - 

Services Considerations. 

Maintaining access - Ease of access and egress must be maintained at 

all times. Safe access for visitors needs to be maintained for vehicles 

and pedestrians including emergency services vehicles. The position 

of Awelon Care Centre in the middle of the site is restrictive but not 

insurmountable as witnessed by the earlier construction of Llys 

Awelon.   

Segregation of the building works to consider safe working corridors 

and development of a Construction Traffic Management Plan would 

require consideration at an early stage to manage health and safety.   

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
IMPACT ON RESIDENTS AND STAFF 

HEALTH AND WELL-BEING OF RESIDENTS AND STAFF 

Due to the age and frailty of many residents, before any development is 

planned and enacted, the well-being of occupants and staff must be 

considered first and foremost.  

With the existing Awelon Care Centre being constructed in a cellular 

form and placed centrally on the site, working with and around the 

existing building footprint would be challenging and clear strategies for 

redevelopment would need to be established.  

Any work contemplated, whether it be refurbishment or new build, 

would have an impact on residents lives and the staff who care for them 

to varying degrees dependent on proximity, scope and extent.  

The aim of any proposal should be to place the interests of residents and 

staff at the heart of the process so robust plans are put in place to 

minimise disruption and the effects of development as much as possible. 

There are cost implications in doing so and these would need to be fully 

considered as part of the development process. 

Decanting - It would be inevitable that some resident relocation or 

decanting would be required to a greater or lesser extent.  While it is 

hoped that the existing extra care residents would remain in-situ in the 

two blocks recently constructed, the residential care residents would 

need to move out from their current bedrooms on at least one occasion 

to carry out  basic improvements to bedrooms and care facilities.  

However with good planning this decant process should be possible, 

assuming residents’ health and wellbeing allows. 

Noise - Proximity of building operations and impact of noise on the well-

being of residents would require safe buffer zones to be retained during 

any planned construction works. Given that the existing structure has 

poor air tightness and sound is likely to travel through the cellular 

construction, it would impact on residents. 

 

 

P
age 64



 31 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
IMPACT ON RESIDENTS AND STAFF 

 CONSTRAINING FACTORS  

The photographs to the left illustrate a narrow corridor and one of the 

resident’s bedrooms which is fairly typical of the Awelon Care Centre. 

The constrained nature of the existing accommodation has serious 

implications for any plans for refurbishment, particularly if residents 

wish to be retained within part of the existing  building while works 

commence.  The level of noise and disruption residents and staff may 

have to endure would be exacerbated by the following:  

 Small undersized residents bedrooms would need considerable 

work undertaking to provide improved space standards. This work 

would effect every wall, ceiling and floor surface to every bedroom 

as well as major structural and services changes to create modern 

compliant rooms with adjoining en-suite bathrooms.   

 Already narrow corridors present real challenges to make them 

wider and more in line with modern technical standards, building 

regulations and to allow greater mobility.  Corridor walls support 

floors and roofs above. Not only would they require the upgrading 

of ceilings and fire compartments,  as corridor walls are structural 

it is not an easy task to widen them without having a major impact 

on the means of escape and building structure as a whole .  

 Existing staircases do not comply with modern building regulations 

and would make evacuation more difficult to achieve. While it 

would be possible to carry out some improvements, the stair to 

the east wing is far too narrow and cannot be upgraded without 

full demolition and remodelling taking place in this area.   

 Existing piped heating services are buried in a floor duct which 

runs the full length of the building and is not easily accessible. This 

would have to be replaced in any scheme of improvement and we 

understand from consulting engineers Carpenter Davies that 

disconnections and diversion of services would present difficulties 

in maintaining heating and hot water to residents bedrooms for 

prolonged periods.  

P
age 65



 32 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
EXTERNAL APPEARANCE 

EXISTING BUILDING ELEVATIONS  

The main entrance to Awelon Care Centre is located centrally within the 

south façade of the building which is largely facing brick with regular 

spaced openings. The whole elevation has a somewhat dated and bland 

appearance with patchy facing bricks capped off with a low concrete 

parapet. A slim frame canopy lean-to provides shelter to the entrance 

and the sitting area adjacent. The latter appears to be well used with a 

variety of bench seats, chairs and tables . Further along the south façade  

a large area of glazing provides views from the dining area. The south 

façade is then completed by the single storey boiler house and chimney. 

C D 

B 

COURTYARD VIEW COMPARING ‘NEW’  LLYS AWELON WITH ‘OLD’ AWELON  CARE CENTRE    AWELON CARE CENTRE ENTRANCE 

Apart from a few small window openings to the kitchen, and the 

lounges within LLys Awelon, the majority of the east façade is blank 

enclosing the kitchen or various ancillary rooms adjacent to the 

landscaped area to the east of the site. 

Part of the north façade of Awelon Care Centre was concealed when 

Llys Awelon was constructed in more recent times with the remaining 

section of the existing façade to the north and west remaining as a  

repetitive pattern of windows, which gives an overall blandness to the 

north façade which contains most of the residents bedrooms.    

Similar to the east façade, the west façade is mainly blank with only a 

single window at first floor level, and fire escape door at ground floor 

level (see below).  The close proximity of Awelon to the new extra care 

facility LLys Awelon is somewhat overpowering and contributes to a 

somewhat claustrophobic feel to the central Courtyard. 

FENESTRATION 

The north and south facades in particular have a regimented window 

pattern .  Rooms where only small windows were thought to be required 

add to the austere appearance of the north façade in particular. 

P
age 66



 33 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
  EXTERNAL APPEARANCE 

AWELON  CARE CENTRE NORTH ELEVATION AWELON CARE CENTRE SOUTH ELEVATION 

ROOFS AND PARAPETS 

Existing flat roofs in felt are not visible from the ground. Roof water is 

channelled to small hoppers and down pipes at regular intervals. Extract 

vents of differing sizes and quality and horizontal lead flashings at high 

level are the only features of adornment. 

The single level parapet emphasises the linear nature of the building. 

This presents a sharp contrast when compared with the softer ‘more 

friendly’  pallet of materials adopted later on Llys Awelon with its 

pitched roofs and stepped facades.  

P
age 67



 34 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
SERVICES CONSIDERATIONS 

PICTURES 

EXISTING SERVICES    

It is estimated that the existing building was constructed in the early 

1970s. The mechanical and electrical services within the building still 

remain largely as originally installed, particularly where access is 

restricted or impossible (e.g. services in concealed floor ducts). The 

existing heating within the main building is fed from 2 No. 225kW gas-

fired atmospheric boilers. These boilers are oversized (the heating load 

within the existing building is estimated at 150kW maximum, with the 

hot water fed from a dedicated gas-fired water heater.  

The main changes since initial installation have been the following:   

 Conversion of tanked water to mains water for the hot and cold 

services to the tenant areas. 

 Provision of LST radiators (still on the original pipework). 

 Provision of blending valves on hot water services to tenant areas. 

(still on the original pipework). 

 Modifications to electrics to change some socket heights in line 

with Care Standards requirements. 

 Installation of new boilers.  

 Installation of gas-fired water heater for tenant areas.  

 Replacement fire alarm which is  outdated and in need of renewal.  

The remaining services installations remain largely as originally installed 

and are generally in an extremely poor condition. The main areas of 

concern are:   

 There is only a single heating circuit to the entire existing building. 

This is run as a single-pipe installation using heavy steel and is in 

poor condition.  There have been instances where leaks have 

occurred in the pipework due to corrosion and, given the age of 

the system, these occurrences are certain to become more 

frequent, to the extent where entire replacement would be the 

only viable solution. This would necessitate closure of the building. 

P
age 68



 35 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
SERVICES CONSIDERATIONS 

 

 There is only a single gas-fired water heater to the tenant areas. 

Any failure, however minor, would result in no hot water.  

 The kitchen is still fed from a tanked supply with a dedicated single 

water heater. It is unlikely that the tank is in a satisfactory 

condition and the installation should be converted to mains water. 

The existing tank housings on the roof could then be removed. 

 The heating and domestic water services all run within an 

inaccessible service trench under the main building. This runs from 

the plant room, across the restaurant and down the main 

corridors. Any leak would necessitate breaking up of the concrete 

floor. As the pipework is over 40 years old this must be addressed 

urgently as failure could necessitate closure of the building. It is 

evident from the condition of the pipework in the boiler room that 

failures are likely to occur at any time. 

 There is no make-up air to the kitchen which can cause this area to 

overheat during busy periods. 

 The condition of the existing wiring dictates the need for 

replacement. It is likely that failure would result in forced isolation 

of circuits with the associated disruption caused by the need for 

full or partial re-wire. 

 Existing nurse/warden call system.  

 According to Denbighshire County Council’s asbestos register from 

a few years ago, asbestos is evident within the lift motor room and 

some other areas.  

 An inspection and report is required of the boiler flue as it appears 

to be in poor condition.  

In summary, the existing services are generally in poor condition and 

have exceeded their expected life.  This is particularly the case with 

heating and water services pipework and electrical wiring. All of these 

systems are critical to the operation of the building and therefore must 

not be considered suitable for continued use and extension.  

P
age 69



 36 

DRAINAGE / RAINWATER GOODS 

While rainwater goods look to be in a reasonable condition the design of 

rainwater outlets draining the main roof affecting is bound to affect 

performance and may contribute to leaf blockages. The position and 

make up of  rainwater downpipes along pedestrian routes makes them 

vulnerable to damage with ongoing repair and maintenance.   

 

DECORATION 

As well as ongoing cyclical decoration required in Awelon Care Centre, 

issues such as the poor construction detailing of the parapet walls, cold 

bridging and the like, means that re-decoration is likely to be more 

frequent to deal with the affects of damp penetration and mould 

growth. If heating is improved this can exacerbate problems with 

condensation if poorly insulated fabric remains.  Therefore an holistic 

approach is needed to evaluate the options. 

 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
MAINTENANCE IMPLICATIONS 

EXISTING FLAT ROOFS  

The existing traditional bituminous roofing material is ponding in places 

due to the minimal falls of the roof, and the small number of outlets. 

The roof requires regular inspection and may well be in need of 

replacement or repair to avoid issues relating to water ingress. The 

repair / replacement of the felt roofing material is an ongoing 

maintenance consideration, should all or part of the Awelon Care Centre 

building be retained.   

 

WINDOWS 

The original windows have been replaced with white uPVC double 

glazed windows but the date of this replacement is unclear.  Detailing of 

glazing units, drainage holes and  venting would suggest this took place 

15 or 20 years ago. While windows appear to be operational, they are 

mainly top hung and unsuitable for fire egress and therefore do not 

comply with current building regulations. They would therefore have to 

be replaced in any scheme of renewal .  

As building standards have significantly improved with better U–values, 

weather and airtightness now possible, full replacement would provide 

greater thermal comfort and  energy efficiency.  Modern friction stays 

fixed at lower levels would ensure windows would be easier to use by 

residents and staff. Replacement of these windows with an alternative 

style of window would have aesthetic benefits and increase the options 

for escape in the event of fire.  

 

FACING BRICKWORK 

As previously noted, the brickwork has a patchy appearance and has 

been affected by cracking which would need to be repaired in the not 

too distant future.  This undermines the appearance of the façade and 

could be an ongoing maintenance issue and should be monitored 

carefully. The cause of the cracking needs investigating and the 

brickwork pointing is in poor condition and re-pointing should be 

considered to maintain the water tightness of the building envelop. 

 

 

EXISTING BUILDING SERVICES 

Carpenter Davies Consulting Engineers have inspected the building 

and provided the following summary: 

Heating 

There are serious concerns with maintenance of the existing heating 

system, primarily due to the age of the existing pipework and the 

routing of the pipework within the floor construction.  

As stated previously, it is likely that failures would become more 

frequent and that, eventually, failure would result in the need to close 

the building as repairs would no longer be viable. 

Water services and drainage 

There are serious concerns with maintenance of the existing water 

services, primarily due to the age of the existing pipework and the 

routing of the pipework within the floor construction.  

As stated previously, it is likely that failures would become more 

frequent and that, eventually, failure would result in the need to close 

the building as repairs would no longer be viable. This is of particular 

concern with the water services as they are operating at mains water 

pressure but were originally designed and installed to operate as a 

gravity systems. 

The drainage within the building is generally as the original 

installation, ie dating back approximately 45 years. The internal 

drainage system is therefore approaching the end of its useful life. 

Electrics 

The age of the electrics is such that maintenance may soon no longer 

be viable or even permissible, due to the failure of circuits to meet 

require Standards when tested. 

P
age 70



 37 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
  ENERGY USAGE + RUNNING COSTS  

 

Energy Usage & Running Costs  

From an energy perspective, the existing fabric is extremely poor. There 

is no insulation within the floor and walls, and it is questionable as to 

whether there is any effective insulation under the flat roof. The 

windows are uPVC double glazed however they are of poor thermal 

performance. 

The heating pipework is run as ‘single pipe’ within the floor 

construction. Water services are also run within the floor construction. 

This makes them both relatively inaccessible. 

The boilers and water heaters are reasonably efficient, however the 

overall systems efficiency will be poor due to the age and configuration 

distribution of pipework. 

The lighting is a mish-mash of low and reasonable energy efficient 

fittings. Again, significant energy reduction could be realised by 

replacement with up-to-date LED fittings. 

In summary, it is estimated that the energy usage and running costs 

associated with this building would be at least 50% more than an 

equivalent new build, particularly if the new build were to be 

constructed to meet BREEAM ‘Excellent’ standards with the required 

25% improvement on ‘notional’ Building Regulations.  

 COSTLY UPKEEP: 

Photos showing areas of ongoing  maintenance  liability: 

 Above: the existing felt roof is poorly detailed and would need 

regular ongoing maintenance.  

 Right: the style and configuration of outmoded top hung windows 

are not well suited to this building use and cannot be used for fire 

egress.   

P
age 71



 38 

ISSUES RELATED TO PHASED DEMOLITION / CONSTRUCTION 

The close proximity of the more modern Llys Awelon building to the 

aged Awelon Centre (as illustrated in the photo to the right) is an 

important health and safety issue.   

The prospect of any building works would require a robust health and 

safety strategy to be employed to ensure the residents and staff  are 

protected for the duration of any works undertaken in the future at 

Awelon.  Whilst a building operation manual in some form is likely to 

exist,  a robust Health and Safety File would need to be prepared and 

collated with all building and service records gathered together 

before any building work is contemplated. 

This is particularly important in relation to existing buildings and 

services where alterations or demolition takes place and residents 

and staff may be decanted or relocated within an existing building. 

It should also be noted that one of the major challenges of planning 

and working around frail older people who wish to remain ‘in-situ’ 

and in relatively close proximity to the works, is that this invariably 

involves more complex phasing and greater potential exposure to risk, 

disturbance and disruption.  While measures can be taken to ‘shield’ 

or separate the works by using physical buffer zones, noise and dust 

suppression techniques etc., it is unlikely and often impossible to 

design out every hazard, particularly where an older generation may 

be more vulnerable and less able to tolerate change.   

For example some older residents may not be willing or strong 

enough to handle a double move and may prefer a move to new 

accommodation away from site following consultation with the care 

team. Others may be willing and believe they can endure a two stage 

decant process, but may find this more difficult and demanding  in 

reality despite the best efforts of the client and contractors to 

manage the process to minimize the impact of construction. 

In this case a single move option may be preferable. However even  a 

move or relocation to remain within the site development could be 

difficult to achieve particularly as some demolition or remodelling is 

anticipated close to the residents.  Therefore full consultation with 

residents and staff to better understand the nature of physical frailty 

and to explain the potential risks and hazards to residents wishing to 

remain on site should be considered at the outset.  

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
HEALTH + SAFETY CONSIDERATIONS 

EXISTING PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED  

The following issues were noted during our site inspection which may 

have a bearing on future options for development: 

 Awelon Care Centre Building and Canolfan Awelon have flat roofs 

in layered felt with small parapet walls.  Regular ongoing 

maintenance is required and due to the anticipated short time 

scales between the replacement of roof finishes, operatives would 

need regular access to the roof, which has no edge protection. 

 The eastern fire escape (below) egresses over a flat roof area at 

first floor level. This escape route is outside and exposed to the 

elements which means safety may be compromised in bad 

weather or bad light (see photograph to the right which further 

explains).  The adjoining narrow staircase has been taken out of 

use but there is  ambiguity at this location and it is far from ideal.  

 Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon have uPVC windows 

with metal sub-cills. These windows are double glazed top hung 

with horizontal openings with trickle vents. However none of these 

windows are designed for egress. Replacement windows would 

therefore be required to meet current standards. 

D 

B 

P
age 72



 39 

3.0 BUILDING ANALYSIS 
   COST IMPLICATIONS  

OPTION TO RETAIN PART OF AWELON (OPTION 1) 

Part of the Development Brief, when considering further extra care 

facilities on the Awelon site, is to consider the possible retention and 

refurbishment of part of the Care Centre building itself. 

This feasibility exercise requires us to consider whether a small 

residential unit could be created somewhere within the footprint of the 

existing building and ‘used to meet the need for respite care and to 

ensure that no existing resident would need to move unless they chose 

to do so’.   While this raises the prospect of major challenges in technical 

and practical terms as outlined in the report,  Option 1 overleaf explores 

this possibility and a costed summary is provided by Metrics. The 

briefing assumptions made in presenting this Option include: 

NEWBUILD OPTIONS  2A,  2B +  3 

Further feasibility options are then considered and presented on the 

basis of a newbuild replacement involving full demolition of the Awelon 

Care Centre itself to make way for new development (Options 2A, 2B 

and 3) while providing  opportunities for those residents currently living 

within Awelon to relocate to brand new purpose built accommodation 

without moving from the site.  Cost Summaries are provided by Metrics 

of these options for comparison purposes. 

IMPLICATIONS OF BUILDING OBSOLESCENCE  

The Awelon Care Centre Building is approximately 45 years old and 

represents design and construction from an earlier period when building 

regulations, construction techniques and expectations for services and  

thermal performance were quite different from today.   

As explained in the preceding pages in Section 3, at Awelon relatively 

inefficient building construction methods where adopted in the early 

1970’s when compared with modern construction. Much higher levels of 

design, comfort and environmental performance are expected today.   

When evaluating costs and viability there are many questions that need 

to be addressed before upgrading a building that is approaching 

obsolescence or reaching the end of its useful life as follows: 

 If viable how much would need to be spent on the existing Awelon 

Care Centre building to create new facilities to modern standards 

with comparable levels of comfort, amenity and finish? 

 Could the level of structural change envisaged be accommodated 

with a reasonable degree of practicability without de-stabilizing 

the existing building with the obvious knock on effects to Llys 

Awelon and those residents and staff residing there?   

 Could all the elements of fabric be upgraded to provide greater 

thermal efficiency and weather tightness or are there areas where 

this may not be possible?  

 Could new services be introduced readily to replace older services 

which need to be stripped out and renewed?   

 Are there opportunities to break through and extend the services 

from LLys Awelon? If so is it possible to evaluate the costs of 

linking  through and tapping into those services? 

 What would be the level of potential risk to residents who may 

wish to stay at Awelon and what would be the costs associated 

with providing measures to relocate and protect them for both 

refurbishment or newbuild options?  Would they be different?   

FUTURE MAINTENANCE AND RUNNING COSTS 

This report does not provide detailed figures for the likely running 

costs and future maintenance following possible refurbishment.  If  it 

was judged practical to retain part of the existing Awelon Care Centre 

building then efforts would need to be made to raise the retained 

parts to a higher standard of construction so the burden on future 

maintenance and frequency of repairs is significantly reduced. 

One of the first challenges faced by the commissioning team and their 

designers would be to consider which elements of fabric and structure  

can effectively be upgraded and how this would extend useful life? 

For example certain building elements might be changed and 

improved with a reasonable degree of cost certainty going forward. 

These might include:  

 Replacement windows and doors  

 New kitchens and bathrooms 

 Fixtures and fittings 

Other elements that are more difficult to predict financially because 

of the nature of the existing structure and fabric without further 

invasive surveys being carried out may include: 

 Improvements to cavity walls involving enveloping, improved 

insulation depends upon the condition of existing substrate  

when compared with new construction. 

 Difficulties attached to upgrading solid floors with buried service 

ducts where it may not be possible to replace damp membranes 

or improve thermal efficiency leading to greater frequency of 

replacement and lifting of finishes etc.. 

 Possible cold bridging  within the structure and impact on future 

energy bills and cleaning costs (e.g. black mould) due to the 

inclusion of in-situ concrete lintels and panels over windows and 

in parapets which are unlikely to be thermally broken.   

 Refurbishment of the existing building to provide 15No. residential 
care bedrooms with en-suite facilities. 

  
 Provision of a temporary kitchen to provide hot meals. 
  
 Partial demolition of the existing to make way for new build. 
   
 New extra care apartments with dining room, kitchen and shared 

communal facilities. 
  
 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon and replacement with new single-

storey community centre. 

P
age 73



 40 

P
age 74



 41 

4.0  OPTION 1 

‘To work in partnership with a registered social landlord, health services and 

the third sector to develop a range of services, transferring half of the building 

to develop additional Extra care apartments, possibly as an extension to Llys 

Awelon, while using the remainder as a small residential unit which could be 

used to meet the need for respite care and to ensure that no existing resident 

would need to move unless they chose to.’ 

P
age 75



 42 

4.0 OPTION 1 
PHASE 1 

PHASE 1 GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

 EXISTING RESIDENTS WISHING TO STAY AT AWELON TO RECEIVE  

RESIDENTIAL CARE TO BE RELOCATED WITHIN THE EAST WING OF 

AWELON CARE CENTRE AS SHOWN.  

 13 BEDROOMS ARE INDICATED FOR TEMPORARY DECANT WHILE 

WEST WING IS PREPARED FOR REFURBISHMENT. 

 KITCHEN AND DINING PROVISION IS RETAINED WITHIN EAST WING 

DURING PHASE 1. 

 LAUNDRY REMAINS OPERATIONAL DURING THE WORKS. 

 BUFFER ZONE ESTABLISHED BETWEEN EAST AND WEST WINGS IN 

READINESS FOR PHASE 2 DEMOLITION. 

 EXISTING LLYS AWELON LOUNGE SPACES TO BE SHARED WITH 

AWELON CARE CENTRE RESIDENTS.  (GREEN ARROW SHOWS 

POSSIBLE ROUTE FOR ACCESS). 

 EXISTING SWITCH ROOM AND PLANT REMAIN WOULD CONTINUE 

TO SERVE EAST WING FOR DURATION OF PHASES 1 + 2 IF THIS 

PROVES TO BE  FEASIBLE ALTHOUGH THERE ARE SERIOUS 

CONCERNS AS TO THE PRACTICAL VIABILITY OF CARE CENTRE 

BEING OPERATIONAL WHILST EXISTING SERVICES TO THE WEST 

WING ARE DISCONNECTED AND SYSTEMS RE-ALIGNED TO SERVE 

THE EAST WING.  

 CANOLFAN AWELON REMAINS OPEN INITIALLY TO SERVE THE 

LOCAL COMMUNITY. 

 

PHASE 1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 76



 43 

4.0 OPTION 1 
PHASE 2 

PHASE 2 GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

PHASE 2 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

 REFURBISHMENT WORK TO WEST WING COMMENCES. 

 15NO. EN-SUITE BEDROOMS CREATED OVER 2 FLOORS (SEE 

TYPICAL EN-SUITE BEDROOM BELOW). 

 LLYS AWELON ADAPTED SO LOUNGE AREA CAN BE MADE 

AVAILABLE FOR RESIDENTIAL CARE WITH ACCESS THROUGH 

(SHOWN  GREEN) 

 EXISTING LAUNDRY RETAINED. 

 THE PRACTICALITY OF TAPPING INTO THE EXISTING SECOND 

FLOOR BOILER ROOM IN LLYS AWELON TO BE INVESTIGATED TO 

SERVE WEST WING RESDENTIAL CARE.  THERE ARE SERIOUS 

CONCERNS AS TO THE DISRUPTION THAT WILL BE CAUSED TO THE 

EXISTING BUILDING AND RESIDENTS. 

 CANOLFAN AWELON FACILITIES MOVED OFF SITE AND RELOCATED 

TEMPORARILY. 

REFURBISHED RESIDENTIAL CARE EN-SUITE BEDROOM 

P
age 77



 44 

4.0 OPTION 1 
PHASE 3 

PHASE 3 SITE PLAN 

 TEMPORARY KITCHEN SET UP WITHIN CAR PARK AT THE NORTH OF 

THE SITE. 

 BULK OF EAST WING AND CANOLFAN AWELON DEMOLISHED TO 

MAKE WAY FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT. 

 AWELON ENTRANCE RETAINED WITHIN BUFFER ZONE TO PROVIDE 

ACCESS TO THE RETAINED RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY AND LLYS 

AWELON. 

 SWITCH ROOM AND LAUNDRY CONTINUE TO FUNCTION. 

 CONTRACTOR’S SITE COMPOUND ESTABLISHED. 

 DELIVERIES BROUGHT IN TO NORTH CAR PARK. 

 SAFE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE ESTABLISHED (SHOWN GREEN). 

 SITE LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO MAINTAIN SERVICE ACCESS AND TO 

MINIMISE LOSS OF CAR PARKING PROVISION. 

 EXISTING REFUSE POINT RELOCATED. 

 ACCESS MAINTAINED TO STANDBY GENERATOR, SUBSTATION AND 

SWITCHROOM. 

 ALL EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS OF LLYS AWELON FUNCTION 

THROUGHOUT BUILDING PROGRAMME. 

P
age 78



 45 

4.0 OPTION 1 
PHASE 4 

PHASE 4 SITE PLAN 

 NEW DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTED PROVIDING ADDITIONAL 

EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS,  NEW COMMUNITY CAFÉ, KITCHEN 

AND COMMUNAL SHARED FACILITIES. 

 ENTRANCE TO NEW COMMUNITY FACILITY HIGHLY VISIBLE FROM 

SITE ENTRANCE. 

 NEW PLANTROOM AND SERVICE ACCESS INCORPORATED.  

 LINKS THROUGH TO RETAINED AND REFURBISHED AWELON 

BUILDING AND EXISTING LLYS AWELON EXTRA CARE FACILITY. 

 NEW ENTRANCE FORMED TO ENLARGED EXTRA CARE AND IF 

REQUIRED SEPARATE ENTRANCE RETAINED TO RESIDENTIAL CARE. 

 REMNANT (BUFFER ZONE) TO EAST WING UPGRADED WHERE 

SWITCH ROOM IS LOCATED.  

 FINAL CAR PARKING LAYOUT ESTABLISHED. 

 REAR ENTRANCE TO MAIN BLOCK OF LLYS AWELON BECOMES 

SECONDARY BUT PROVIDES ACCESS TO GARDEN. 

 LINK TO LLYS AWELON (BLOCK B) AT FRONT IS REINFORCED. 

 NEW LANDSCAPED GARDEN CREATED TO THE EAST OF THE SITE. 

 

 

P
age 79



 46 

4.1 OPTION 1  
INDICATIVE LAYOUT 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

IN SUMMARY, THIS OPTION COMPRISES: 

 

 15 NO. RESIDENTIAL CARE BEDROOMS WITH EN-SUITE FACILITIES 
WITHIN ‘SHELL’ OF EXISTING WEST WING. 

 8 NO. NEW 1 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 50M2 

 13NO. NEW 2 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 65M2 

 NEW DINING, KITCHEN AND SHARED COMMUNAL FACILITIES 

 NEW CANOLFAN AWELON  

 

THEREFORE ON COMPLETION THE TOTAL NUMBER OF EXTRA CARE 
APARTMENTS CREATED WOULD BE 42, TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION 
EXISTING 21 APARTMENTS CURRENTLY ON-SITE WITHIN LLYS AWELON; 
PROVIDING FOLLOWING MIX: 

 

 11NO. 1 BEDROOM APARTMENTS  

 31NO. 2 BEDROOM APARTMENTS 

 

AREA SCHEDULE 

NEW BUILD EXTRA CARE  

Ground FLOOR  893sqm 

FIRST FLOOR   881sqm 

SECOND FLOOR   944sqm 

TOTAL   2718sqm 

 

RESIDENTIAL CARE (WEST WING) 

GROUND FLOOR  356sqm 

FIRST FLOOR  349sqm 

TOTAL   705sqm 

 

COMMUNITY FACILITY 

Total    260sqm 

P
age 80



 47 

4.1 OPTION 1 
INDICATIVE LAYOUT 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 81



 48 

4.1 OPTION 1 
INDICATIVE LAYOUT 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 82



 49 

4.2 OPTION 1 
MASSING 

MASSING MODEL SHOWING HOW NEW BUILDING RELATES 

TO RETAINED LLYS AWELON BUILDINGS 

P
age 83



 50 

4.3 OPTION 1 
ELEVATIONS 

EXISTING NORTH ELEVATION 

EXISTING EAST ELEVATION 

P
age 84



 51 

4.3 OPTION 1 
ELEVATIONS 

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION 

EXISTING WEST ELEVATION 

P
age 85



 52 

OPTION 1 - COST SUMMARY 

  
  

           £ 

Refurbishment Works to the Existing Building       520,000 

Demolition of the East Wing (in part) and Canolfan Awelon       120,000 

New Extra Care Facility (2,718m2)   2,212,000 

New single-storey Canolfan Awelon facility (260m2)       329,000 

Mechanical and Electrical Installations    1,250,000 

Temporary kitchen set up within car park to North (say)         75,000 

External Works       200,000 

Drainage       100,000 

External Services       128,000 

Sub Total £4,934,000 

Main Contractor’s General Preliminaries (Say)       776,000 

Sub Total  £5,710,000 

Enhanced Contingency & Design Reserve due to greater risk       570,000 

Estimated cost for Option 1 Works (Excluding VAT) £6,280,000 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF WORKS  
  
 Refurbishment of the existing Awelon Care Centre (West Wing and 

part of the existing East Wing) to provide 15No. upgraded residential 
care bedrooms with en-suite facilities. 

  
 Provision of a temporary kitchen. 
  
 Partial demolition of existing East Wing to make way for newbuild 

extra care development to be linked to Llys Awelon. 
  
 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon. 
  
 New three-storey building provides 21 extra care apartments  
           (8 No. one-bedroom and 13 No. two-bedroom), dining room, kitchen  
           and shared communal facilities. 
  
 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 260m2 at ground floor level 

with separate entrance.  
 
  

   

4.4 OPTION 1 
COSTINGS 

P
age 86



 53 

‘The Council would enter into a partnership with the owner of Llys 

Awelon to develop additional extra care apartments on the site, 

replacing the existing residential and community provision.  

 

However, it should be noted that Cabinet has agreed that no resident 

would be required to leave if they don’t want to and their needs can 

still be met in the residential provision.’ 

5.0  OPTION 2 

P
age 87



 54 

5.1 OPTION 2a 
PHASE 1 

 EXISTING RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS TO BE ACCOMMODATED 

WITHIN THE WEST WING OF AWELON CARE CENTRE DURING 

PHASES 1-3. 

 DINING PROVISION TO BE LOCATED WITHIN EXISTING LOUNGE 

SPACES OF LLYS AWELON. NEW ACCESS ROUTE CREATED (SHOWN 

IN GREEN). 

 EXISTING WEST WING LOUNGE SPACES RETAINED. 

 KITCHEN AND PLANT ROOM TO REMAIN OPERATIONAL DURING 

PHASE 1. 

 LAUNDRY TO REMAIN  OPERATIONAL DURING PHASES 1-3. 

 BUFFER ZONE BETWEEN EAST AND WEST WINGS CREATED IN 

READINESS FOR PHASE 2 DEMOLITION. 

 EXISTING WEST WING FIRE ESCAPE RETAINED. 

 DISRUPTION TO LLYS AWELON MINIMISED TO SOME INTERNAL 

REMODELLING WORKS. 

 CANOLFAN AWELON FACILITIES MOVED OFF SITE AND RELOCATED 

TEMPORARILY. 

PHASE 1 GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

PHASE 1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 88



 55 

5.1 OPTION 2a 
PHASE 2 

 EXISTING SECOND FLOOR BOILER ROOM WITHIN LLYS AWELON 

MODIFIED TO PROVIDE HEAT/POWER TO WEST WING 

RESIDENTIAL CARE PRIOR TO DEMOLITION. TEMPORARY DINING 

POSITION SHOWN. 

 TEMPORARY KITCHEN ESTABLISHED TO SERVE RESIDENTIAL CARE 

AND LLYS AWELON IN CAR PARK TO NORTH BEFORE DEMOLITION 

TAKES PLACE .  

 BUFFER ZONE BETWEEN WEST WING AND CONSTRUCTION SITE 

WITH MAIN ENTRANCE RETAINED. 

 SAFE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE RETAINED (SHOWN GREEN). 

 PARKING LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO MINIMISE LOSS OF CAR PARKING 

PROVISION. 

 CONTRACTOR’S SITE COMPOUND ESTABLISHED. 

 DELIVERIES BROUGHT IN TO NORTH CAR PARK. 

PHASE TWO SITE PLAN 

P
age 89



 56 

5.1 OPTION 2a 
PHASE 3 

 NEW DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTED (SHOWN BLUE) PROVIDING 

ADDITIONAL EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS ON FIRST AND SECOND 

FLOORS.  NEW COMMUNITY CAFÉ, KITCHEN, COMMUNITY CENTRE 

AND SHARED FACILITIES ON THE GROUND FLOOR. CANOLFAN 

AWELON REOPENS TO SERVE LOCAL COMMUNITY, WITH 

SEPARATE CAR PARKING AND ACCESS. 

 A NUMBER OF EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS DESIGNED TO BE 

ALLOCATED INITIALLY TO PROVIDE RESIDENTIAL CARE BEDROOMS 

FOR THOSE RESIDENTS WISHING TO REMAIN. (SEE DIAGRAM 

BELOW).   

 RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS DECANTED TO THE NEWLY BUILT 

EAST WING.  

 TEMPORARY KITCHEN REMOVED AS NO LONGER REQUIRED. 

 CAR PARKING LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO SUIT NEW SITE SET-UP. 

 SECURE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE RETAINED(SHOWN GREEN). 

 POTENTIAL LINK TO BLOCK B OF LLYS AWELON. 

 NEW LANDSCAPED GARDEN CREATED TO THE EAST OF THE SITE. 

 

PHASE THREE SITE PLAN 

CONVERSION OF 2 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENT TO 

PROVIDE 2 EN-SUITE RESIDENTIAL CARE BEDROOMS  

P
age 90



 57 

5.1 OPTION 2a 
PHASE 4 

 BEFORE DEMOLITION OF WEST WING, RETAINED RESIDENTIAL 

CARE RESIDENTS MOVE INTO NEW BUILDING. 

 CONTRACTOR’S SITE COMPOUND RE-ESTABLISHED TO THE 

NORTH WEST OF THE SITE. 

 DELIVERIES BROUGHT IN USING EXISTING ROADWAY. 

 WEST WING OF AWELON DEMOLISHED. 

 SECURE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ROUTE RETAINED (SHOWN GREEN)  

 TEMPORARY ACCESS CREATED TO EXISTING LLYS AWELON 

BUILDING, AND TO NEW BUILD EXTRA CARE FACILITY. 

 CAR PARKING ARRANGEMENT RETAINED AS PER PHASE 3. 

 REFUSE COLLECTION POINT RELOCATED. EMERGENCY 

GENERATOR RETAINED IN NORTH WEST CORNER OF THE SITE. 

PHASE FOUR SITE PLAN 

P
age 91



 58 

5.1 OPTION 2a 
PHASE 5 

PHASE FIVE SITE PLAN 

 NEWLY BUILT WEST WING CONSTRUCTED AND LINKED TO EAST 

WING COMPLETES DEVELOPMENT.   

 NEW CENTRALISED MAIN ENTRANCE TO COMPLETED LLYS 

AWELON  IS CONVENIENTLY LOCATED TO LINK DEVELOPMENT.   

 RESIDENTIAL CARE RETAINED WITHIN EXTENDED LLYS AWELON 

FOR AS LONG AS NEEDED.  BUILDING FLEXIBILITY ALLOWS FOR 

FUTURE ADAPTATION SHOULD RESIDENTIAL CARE NEEDS 

CHANGE AT LLYS AWELON. 

 FINALISED CAR PARKING LAYOUT SET OUT TO PROVIDE PARKING 

FOR EXTRA CARE AND NEW COMMUNITY CENTRE. 

 FORMER LLYS AWELON CARPARK TO NORTH BECOMES A NEW 

LANDSCAPED GARDEN FOR RESIDENTS. 

 EXTERNAL WORKS / SOFT LANDSCAPING COMPLETED WITH  

MOST OF APARTMENTS AND RESIDENTIAL CARE LOOKING OVER 

GREEN AREAS  

 DINING AND COMMUNAL FACILITIES PROVIDED WITHIN NEW 

EAST WING HAVE ACCESS TO SECURE LANDSCAPED GARDENS 

WITH SITTING OUT AREAS   

 COMMUNITY CENTRE HAS SEPARATE ENTRANCE AND PARKING 

ALLOCATION NEAR TO SITE ENTRANCE. P
age 92



 59 

5.2 OPTION 2a 
INDICATIVE PLANS 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

IN SUMMARY, THIS NEW BUILD OPTION ON COMPLETION COMPRISES: 
 
 14 NO. NEW 1 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 50M2 
 21NO. NEW 2 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 65M2 
 NEW DINING, KITCHEN AND SHARED COMMUNAL FACILITIES 
 NEW CANOLFAN AWELON  
 
THEREFORE ON COMPLETION THE TOTAL NUMBER OF EXTRA CARE 
APARTMENTS CREATED WOULD BE 56 TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION 
THE EXISTING 21 APARTMENTS CURRENTLY ON-SITE WITHIN LLYS 
AWELON; PROVIDING FOLLOWING MIX: 
 

 17NO. 1 BEDROOM APARTMENTS  

 39NO. 2 BEDROOM APARTMENTS 

 
NOTE : A NUMBER OF NEW APARTMENTS COULD BE SET ASIDE FOR 
RESIDENTIAL CARE INITIALLY AND DESIGNED FLEXIBLY TO ALLOW 
CONVERSION AS PREVIOUSLY DESCRIBED. 
 
AS BEFORE FINAL LOCATION AND SIZE OF ROOMS TO BE DEVELOPED 
WITH GRŴP CYNEFIN/DENBIGHSHIRE AND STAFF/END-USERS. 
 
AREA SCHEDULE 
NEW BUILD EXTRA CARE 

GROUND FLOOR   1336sqm 

FIRST FLOOR   1326sqm 

SECOND FLOOR   1355sqm 

TOTAL    4017sqm 

 

COMMUNITY FACILITY 

TOTAL     260sqm 

P
age 93



 60 

5.2 OPTION 2a 
INDICATIVE PLANS  

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 94



 61 

5.2 OPTION 2a 
INDICATIVE PLANS 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 95



 62 

5.3 OPTION 2a 
MASSING 

MASSING MODEL SHOWING HOW NEW BUILDING RELATES 

TO RETAINED LLYS AWELON BUILDINGS 

P
age 96



 63 

OPTION 2a - COST SUMMARY 
  
  

  £ 

Demolition and Minor Alterations        150,000 
  

New Extra-Care Apartments (4,017m2)  3,270,000 
  

New single-storey Canolfan Awelon facility (260m2)  329,000   

Mechanical and Electrical Installations  1,335,000   

Temporary kitchen set up within car park to North (say)  75,000   

External Works  200,000 
  

Drainage  100,000 
  

External Services  108,000 
  

Sub Total  £5,567,000 
  

Main Contractor’s General Preliminaries (Say)  1,218,000 
  

Sub Total  £6,785,000   

Contingency and Design Reserve (Say)  340,000   

Estimated cost for Option 2a Works (Excluding VAT)  £7,125,000   

 

BRIEF SUMMARY OF WORKS 
  
 Forming new internal access from Awelon Care Centre to Llys 

Awelon. 
  

 Modification of existing plant to Llys Awelon to provide temporary 
heat and power to West Wing. 

  
 Provision of a temporary kitchen. 

  
 Partial demolition of the existing East Wing. 

  
 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon. 

  
 New three-storey building comprising residential and extra care 

apartments, dining, kitchen and shared communal facilities. 
  

 Contractor’s compound relocated. 
  

 Demolition of West Wing and remainder of East Wing. 
  

 New build West Wing constructed and linked to East Wing. 
  

 Completed development provides additional 35 extra care 
apartments  (14 No. one-bedroom and 21 No. two-bedroom), dining 
room, kitchen and shared communal facilities.  

 
 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 260m2 at ground floor level 

with separate entrance.  
  

 Preliminaries reflect phasing requirements and relocation of 
Contractor’s compound. 

  

5.4 OPTION 2a 
COSTINGS 

P
age 97



 64 

5.5 OPTION 2b 
PHASE 1 

 EXISTING RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS TO BE ACCOMMODATED 

WITHIN THE EAST WING OF AWELON CARE CENTRE.  13 ROOMS  

ON FIRST FLOOR RETAINED AS BEDROOMS WITH EXISTING STORES 

AND BATHROOMS CLOSE BY. 

 NEW OPENING FORMED PROVIDING ACCESS TO LLYS AWELON AT 

FIRST FLOOR AS SHOWN IN GREEN.  

 EXISTING LLYS AWELON LOUNGE TO BE SHARED WITH AWELON 

CARE CENTRE RESIDENTS. 

 LAUNDRY TO REMAIN OPERATIONAL DURING PHASE 1. 

 KITCHEN, DINING AREA, SWITCH ROOM AND PLANT ROOM TO 

REMAIN OPERATIONAL UNTIL PHASE 4. 

 BUFFER ZONE BETWEEN EAST AND WEST WINGS ESTABLISHED IN 

READINESS FOR PHASE 2 DEMOLITION. 

 CANOLFAN AWELON REMAINS OPEN TO SERVE THE LOCAL 

COMMUNITY. 

 

PHASE 1 GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

PHASE 1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 98



 65 

5.5 OPTION 2b 
PHASE 2 

 CANOLFAN AWELON, EAST WING LOUNGE, KITCHEN AND DINING 

PROVISION REMAINS WITH PLANT ROOM AND SWITCH ROOM IN 

TACT. 

 BUFFER ZONE BETWEEN EAST WING AND CONSTRUCTION SITE 

MAINTAINED DURING DEMOLITION. 

 LAUNDRY REQUIREMENTS TO BE HANDLED OFF-SITE. 

 SAFE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE ESTABLISHED (SHOWN GREEN). 

 AWELON ENTRANCE MODIFIED TO SERVE RESIDENTIAL CARE AND 

LLYS AWELON TO REAR.  

 PARKING LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO RELOCATE CAR PARKING 

PROVISION FOR LLYS AWELON. 

 CONTRACTOR’S SITE COMPOUND ESTABLISHED WITH AGREED 

POSITION FOR DELIVERIES AWAY FROM RESIDENTIAL ENTRANCE.   

 SERVICES DISCONNECTED TO WEST WING PRIOR TO DEMOLITION.  

 REFUSE COLLECTION POINT RELOCATED AND EMERGENCY 

GENERATOR ACCESS RETAINED. 

PHASE 2 SITE PLAN 

P
age 99



 66 

5.5 OPTION 2b 
PHASE 3 

 NEW THREE STOREY WEST WING CONSTRUCTED WITH EXTRA 

CARE APARTMENTS ON FIRST AND SECOND FLOORS. 

 EXISTING RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS WISHING TO STAY 

DECANTED ACROSS TO THE NEW WEST WING.  

 AN AGREED NUMBER OF EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS ARE 

DESIGNED TO BE FLEXIBLE TO PROVIDE RESIDENTIAL CARE.   

 CANOLFAN AWELON MOVES TO NEW BUILDING.  

 COMMUNITY CENTRE AND KITCHEN WITHIN NEWLY BUILT WEST 

WING PROVIDES TEMPORARY DINING FACILITY FOR RESIDENTIAL 

CARE RESIDENTS AND LLYS AWELON. 

 NEW ACCOMMODATION LINKED DIRECTLY TO LLYS AWELON SO 

STAFF AND RESIDENTS CAN ACCESS ALL FACILITIES INCLUDING 

LIFTS AND LOUNGES AT ALL THREE FLOOR LEVELS. 

 NEW ENTRANCE AND SAFE ROUTE TO LLYS AWELON 

ESTABLISHED. (SHOWN GREEN). 

 NEW PLANT + SWITCH ROOMS  BUILT TO SERVE NEW PHASE 3  

WEST WING AND FINAL PHASES. 

 NEW ‘LANDSCAPED COMMUNITY GARDEN’ CREATED TO 

NORTHWEST CORNER AFTER CONTRACTOR’S COMPOUND  

MOVES. 

 PARKING LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO MAINTAIN CAR PARKING FOR 

LLYS AWELON. 

PHASE 3 SITE PLAN 

P
age 100



 67 

5.5 OPTION 2b 
PHASE 4 

 CONTRACTOR’S SITE COMPOUND RE-ESTABLISHED IN READINESS 

TO DEMOLISH THE OLD CANOLFAN AWELON  AND EAST WING 

BUILDINGS. 

 SECURE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE ESTABLISHED (SHOWN GREEN). 

 COMMUNITY FACILITY ENTRANCE USED TO ACCESS LLYS AWELON. 

 EAST WING AND CANOLFAN AWELON SERVICES ISOLATED AND  

DISCONNECTED AS NECESSARY TO ALLOW DEMOLITON TO TAKE 

PLACE. 

 DELIVERIES BROUGHT IN VIA EXISTING TURNING HEAD. 

 ACCESS TO LLYS AWELON BLOCK B MAINTAINED. 

 CAR PARK LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO MINIMISE LOSS OF CAR PARKING 

PROVISION. 

 

PHASE 4 SITE PLAN 

P
age 101



 68 

5.5 OPTION 2b  
PHASE 5 

 NEWLY BUILT EAST WING CONSTRUCTED AND LINKED TO WEST 

WING COMPLETES DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING ADDITIONAL 

EXTRACARE APARTMENTS, ALONG WITH DINING, KITCHEN AND 

LOUNGE AREAS.  

 NEW CENTRALISED MAIN ENTRANCE TO COMPLETED LLYS 

AWELON IS CONVENIENTLY LOCATED TO LINK DEVELOPMENT.   

 RESIDENTIAL CARE RETAINED WITHIN EXTENDED LLYS AWELON 

FOR AS LONG AS NEEDED.  BUILDING FLEXIBILITY ALLOWS FOR 

FUTURE ADAPTATION SHOULD RESIDENTIAL CARE NEEDS CHANGE 

AT LLYS AWELON. 

 FINALISED CAR PARKING LAYOUT SET OUT TO PROVIDE PARKING 

FOR EXTRA CARE AND NEW COMMUNITY CENTRE. 

 FORMER LLYS AWELON CARPARK TO NORTH BECOMES A NEW 

LANDSCAPED GARDEN FOR COMMUNITY CENTRE AND RESIDENTS. 

 EXTERNAL WORKS / SOFT LANDSCAPING COMPLETED WITH MOST 

APARTMENTS AND RESIDENTIAL CARE LOOKING OVER GREEN 

AREAS WITH POSITIVE OUTLOOK. 

 EXTRA CARE DINING AND COMMUNAL FACILITIES PROVIDED 

WITHIN NEW EAST WING HAVE ACCESS TO SECURE LANDSCAPED 

GARDENS WITH SITTING OUT AREAS   

 COMMUNITY CENTRE HAS SEPARATE ENTRANCE AND PARKING 

ALLOCATION THAT  IS VISIBLE FROM MAIN SITE ENTRANCE. 

PHASE 5 SITE PLAN 

P
age 102



 69 

5.6 OPTION 2b 
INDICATIVE LAYOUT 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

IN SUMMARY, THIS NEW BUILD OPTION ON COMPLETION COMPRISES: 
 
 8 NO. NEW 1 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 50M2 
 21NO. NEW 2 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 65M2 
 NEW DINING, KITCHEN AND SHARED COMMUNAL FACILITIES 
 NEW CANOLFAN AWELON  
 
THEREFORE ON COMPLETION THE TOTAL NUMBER OF EXTRA CARE 
APARTMENTS CREATED WOULD BE 50 TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION 
THE EXISTING 21 APARTMENTS CURRENTLY ON-SITE WITHIN LLYS 
AWELON; PROVIDING FOLLOWING MIX: 
 

 11NO. 1 BEDROOM APARTMENTS  

 39NO. 2 BEDROOM APARTMENTS 

 
 
NOTE : A NUMBER OF NEW APARTMENTS COULD BE SET ASIDE FOR 
RESIDENTIAL CARE INITIALLY AND DESIGNED FLEXIBLY TO ALLOW 
CONVERSION AS PREVIOUSLY DESCRIBED. 
 
AS BEFORE FINAL LOCATION AND SIZE OF ROOMS TO BE DEVELOPED 
WITH GRŴP CYNEFIN/DENBIGHSHIRE AND STAFF/END-USERS. 
 
AREA SCHEDULE 
NEW BUILD EXTRA CARE 
GROUND FLOOR   1082sqm 

FIRST FLOOR   1286sqm 

SECOND FLOOR   1282sqm 

Total     3650sqm 

 

COMMUNITY FACILITY 

Total      360sqm 

P
age 103



 70 

5.6 OPTION 2b 
INDICATIVE LAYOUT 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 104



 71 

5.6 OPTION 2b 
INDICATIVE LAYOUT 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 105



 72 

5.7 OPTION 2b 
MASSING 

MASSING MODEL SHOWING HOW NEW BUILDING RELATES 

TO RETAINED LLYS AWELON BUILDINGS 

P
age 106



 73 

OPTION 2b - COST SUMMARY 

  
  

  £ 

Minor Alterations and Demolition Works  150,000 
  

New Extra Care Apartments (3,650m2)  2,971,000 
  

New single-storey Canolfan Awelon facility (360m2)  455,000 
  

Mechanical and Electrical Installations  1,452,000 
  

External Works  200,000 
  

Drainage  100,000 
  

External Services  91,000 
  

Sub Total  £5,419,000 
  

Main Contractor’s General Preliminaries (Say)  1,157,000 
  

Sub Total  £6,576,000 
  

Contingency and Design Reserve (Say)  329,000 
  

Estimated cost for Option 2b Works (Excluding VAT)  £6,905,000 
  

BRIEF SUMMARY OF WORKS 

  
 Forming new internal access from Awelon Care Centre to Llys 

Awelon. 
  

 Existing plant located in East Wing to remain operational until first 
phase incorporating new plant is complete. 

  
 Existing kitchen located in East Wing to remain operational until first 

phase incorporating new kitchen is complete. 
  

 Modification of existing Care Centre entrance. 
  
 Demolition of the existing West Wing. 
  
 New three-storey building comprising Canolfan Awelon including 

temporary dining room and kitchen and 6 No. flexible residential or 
extra care apartments. New plant and switch rooms. 

  

 Contractor’s compound relocated. 
  
 Demolition of East Wing, existing entrance and Canolfan Awelon. 
  

 New build East Wing constructed and linked to West Wing via new 
entrance. 

  

 Completed development to comprise of an additional 8 No. one-
bedroom and 21 No. two- bedroom extra care apartments, dining 
room, kitchen and shared communal facilities.  

 
 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 360m2 at ground floor level 

with separate entrance.  
 
 Preliminaries reflect phasing requirements and relocation of 

Contractor’s compound. 
  

5.8 OPTION 2b 
COSTINGS 

P
age 107



 74 

P
age 108



 75 

‘The Council would enter into a partnership with the owner of 

Llys Awelon to develop additional extra care apartments on the 

site, replacing the existing residential and community provision.‘ 

 

An opportunity exists to consider the use of Llys Awelon Block B, 

as a potential Residential Care facility, allowing the extra care 

provision to benefit from greater connectivity. 

6.0  OPTION 3 

P
age 109



 76 

6.1 OPTION 3 
PHASE 1 

 EXISTING RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS TO BE ACCOMMODATED 

WITHIN LLYS AWELON BLOCK B, ONCE CURRENT EXTRA CARE 

RESIDENTS HAVE BEEN RELOCATED WITHIN THE MAIN BUILDING 

OF LLYS AWELON. 

 4 EXISTING EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS CONVERTED INTO 8 

RESIDENTIAL CARE BEDROOMS, WITH EN-SUITE FACILITIES 

CREATED FOR ALL BEDROOMS. 

 DINING PROVISION TO BE LOCATED ON GROUND FLOOR, WITH A 

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION CREATED TO PROVIDE A NEW LOUNGE 

AREA FOR 8 RESIDENTS. 

 EXISTING ASSISTED BATHROOM AND WC RETAINED. 

 BEVERAGE KITCHEN RETAINED ON EACH FLOOR. 

 THE SINGLE BEDROOM OF EACH APARTMENT TO BE USED BY 

STAFF AS OFFICE OR SLEEP OVER ROOM. 

PHASE 1 GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

PHASE 1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 110



 77 

6.1 OPTION 3 
PHASE 2 

 AFTER RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS HAVE BEEN RELOCATED TO 

LLYS AWELON AT FRONT OF SITE, CONTRACTOR’S SITE 

COMPOUND ESTABLISHED IN READINESS TO DEMOLISH THE 

AWELON CARE CENTRE. 

 EXISTING KITCHEN / HALL WITHIN CANOLFAN AWELON USED TO 

PROVIDE DINING FACILITY FOR EXTRA CARE AND RESIDENTIAL 

CARE RESIDENTS. 

 SECURE PEDESTRIAN ROUTE THROUGH THE SITE TO LLYS AWELON 

BUILDING ESTABLISHED.(SHOWN GREEN). 

 CANOLFAN AWELON TO REMAIN OPERATIONAL UNTIL PHASE 3, 

WHEN NEW CENTRE IS PROVIDED. 

 CAR PARKING LAYOUT ADJUSTED TO MINIMISE LOSS OF CAR 

PARKING PROVISION. 

 REFUSE COLLECTION POINT RELOCATED, SUBSTATION AND 

EMERGENCY GENERATOR ACCESS RETAINED. 

PHASE TWO SITE PLAN 

P
age 111



 78 

6.1 OPTION 3 
PHASE 3 

 NEW THREE STOREY DEVELOPMENT CONSTRUCTED (SHOWN 

BLUE) PROVIDING ADDITIONAL EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS, NEW 

COMMUNITY CAFÉ, KITCHEN, COMMUNITY CENTRE AND SHARED 

FACILITIES. 

 NEW CANOLFAN AWELON COMMUNITY CENTRE AND KITCHEN 

WITHIN NEWLY BUILT FACILITY PROVIDES TEMPORARY DINING 

FACILITY FOR RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS AND LLYS AWELON. 

 FORMER LLYS AWELON CAR PARK TO NORTH BECOMES A NEW 

LANDSCAPED GARDEN FOR COMMUNITY CENTRE AND LLYS 

AWELON RESIDENTS. 

 NEW PLANT ROOM TO BE INCORPORATED WITHIN THIS PHASE ON 

NEW BUILD. 

 CENTRALISED MAIN ENTRANCE CREATED INCORPORATING NEW 

ACCESS AND DROP OFF TO EXISTING LLYS AWELON FROM THE 

SOUTH, WITH ADDITIONAL ACCESS TO COMMUNITY FACILITY 

VISIBLE FROM THE SITE ENTRANCE. 

 ACCESS MAINTAINED TO SUBSTATION AND EMERGENCY 

GENERATOR. 

 

  

PHASE THREE SITE PLAN 

P
age 112



 79 

6.1 OPTION 3 
PHASE 4 

  

PHASE FOUR SITE PLAN 

 AFTER PHASE 3 IS COMPLETED AND COMMUNITY CENTRE HAS 

MOVED, CANOLFAN AWELON SITE AREA TO BE CORDONED OFF IN 

READINESS FOR DEMOLITION.  

 SAFE ACCESS TO BE MAINTAINED TO LLYS AWELON. 

 CONTRACTOR’S SITE COMPOUND ESTABLISHED. 

 SAFE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS MAINTAINED THROUGH THE SITE 

(SHOWN GREEN). 

P
age 113



 80 

6.1 OPTION 3 
PHASE 5 

 NEWLY BUILT 3 STOREY EAST WING CONSTRUCTED AND LINKED 

TO WEST WING COMPLETES DEVELOPMENT.  FURTHER NUMBERS 

OF EXTRACARE APARTMENTS ON FIRST AND SECOND FLOORS. 

 EXTRA CARE DINING AND COMMUNAL FACILITIES PROVIDED ON 

GROUND FLOOR WITHIN NEW EAST WING HAVE ACCESS TO 

SECURE LANDSCAPED GARDENS WITH SITTING OUT AREAS   

 NEW CENTRALISED MAIN ENTRANCE TO COMPLETED LLYS 

AWELON  IS CONVENIENTLY LOCATED TO LINK DEVELOPMENT.   

 RESIDENTIAL CARE  RETAINED WITHIN EXTENDED LLYS AWELON 

FOR AS LONG AS NEEDED.  BUILDING FLEXIBILITY ALLOWS FOR 

FUTURE ADAPTATION SHOULD RESIDENTIAL CARE NEEDS CHANGE 

AT LLYS AWELON. 

 FINALISED CAR PARKING LAYOUT SET OUT TO PROVIDE PARKING 

FOR EXTRA CARE AND NEW COMMUNITY  CENTRE. 

 FORMER LLYS AWELON CARPARK TO NORTH BECOMES A NEW 

LANDSCAPED GARDEN FOR COMMUNITY CENTRE AND LLYS 

AWELON RESIDENTS. 

 EXTERNAL WORKS / SOFT LANDSCAPING COMPLETED WITH  MOST 

OF APARTMENTS AND RESIDENTIAL CARE LOOKING OVER GREEN 

AREAS WITH POSITIVE OUTLOOK. 

 COMMUNITY CENTRE HAS SEPARATE ENTRANCE AND PARKING 

ALLOCATION THAT CAN BE SEEN FROM MAIN SITE ENTRANCE. 

PHASE FIVE SITE PLAN 

P
age 114



 81 

6.2 OPTION 3 
INDICATIVE PLANS 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

IN SUMMARY, THIS NEW BUILD OPTION IS SIMILAR TO OPTION 2B ON 
COMPLETION AS IT COMPRISES: 

 

 11 NO. NEW 1 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 50M2 

 39NO. NEW 2 BEDROOM EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS @ 65M2 

 NEW DINING, KITCHEN AND SHARED COMMUNAL FACILITIES 

 NEW CANOLFAN AWELON SAME AS OPTION 2B @ 360M2 (MORE 
EXPANSIVE THAN OPTION 2A AND LOCATED WHERE THE WEST 
WING USED TO BE) 

 

ON COMPLETION THE TOTAL NUMBER OF EXTRA CARE APARTMENTS 
CREATED WOULD BE 46 INITIALLY (TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION THE 
EXISTING 17 APARTMENTS OF LLYS AWELON TO THE NORTH) AND 50 
EVENTUALLY IF 4 APARTMENTS AT FRONT REVERT BACK TO EXTRA CARE 
USE.  

NOTE : REMEMBER THIS OPTION USES THE SMALL LLYS AWELON 
BUILDING AT THE FRONT FOR THE RESIDENTIAL CARE RESIDENTS 
WISHING TO STAY ON THE SITE.   

WHILE THIS WOULD BE CONVERTED TO RESIDENTIAL CARE USE FOR THE 
DURATION OF THE NEWBUILD, IT COULD BE DESIGNED FLEXIBLY TO 
ALLOW CONVERSION BACK TO EXTRA CARE.  

AS BEFORE FINAL LOCATION AND SIZE OF ROOMS TO BE DEVELOPED 
WITH GRŴP CYNEFIN/DENBIGHSHIRE AND STAFF/END-USERS. 

P
age 115



 82 

6.2 OPTION 3 
INDICATIVE PLANS 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

AREA SCHEDULE 

NEW BUILD EXTRA CARE 

GROUND FLOOR   1082sqm 

FIRST FLOOR   1286sqm 

SECOND FLOOR   1282sqm 

TOTAL    3650sqm 

 

RESIDENTIAL CARE 

(LLYS AWELON BLOCK B) 

GROUND FLOOR   250sqm 

First FLOOR   219sqm 

TOTAL    469sqm 

 

COMMUNITY FACILITY 

TOTAL    360sqm 

P
age 116



 83 

6.2 OPTION 3 
INDICATIVE PLANS 

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 117



 84 

6.3 OPTION 3 
MASSING 

 

MASSING MODEL SHOWING HOW NEW BUILDING RELATES 

TO RETAINED LLYS AWELON BUILDINGS 

P
age 118



 85 

OPTION 3 - COST SUMMARY 
  

  £ 

Refurbishment and Extension Works to Llys Awelon Block B  60,000 
  

Demolition of the East and West Wings and Canolfan  145,000 
  

New Extra Care Apartments (3,650m2)  2,971,000   

New single-storey Canolfan Awelon (360m2)  455,000   

Mechanical and Electrical Installations  1,553,000   

External Works  200,000 
  

Drainage  100,000 
  

External Services  91,000 
  

Sub Total  £5,575,000 
  

Main Contractor’s General Preliminaries (Say)  1,122,000 
  

Sub Total  £6,697,000   

Contingency and Design Reserve (Say)  338,000   

Estimated cost for Option 3 Works (Excluding VAT)  £7,035,000   

BRIEF SUMMARY OF WORKS  
  
 Alteration and extension of Llys Awelon Block B to accommodate 

residential care residents wishing to be decanted from Awelon Care 
Centre. 

  
 Existing kitchen located in Canolfan Awelon to provide temporary 

dining facility. 
  
 Demolition of the existing East and West Wings. 
  
 New three-storey building comprising Canolfan Awelon and extra 

care apartments. New kitchen within Canolfan Awelon used as 
temporary dining facility. New plant and switch rooms. 

  

 Contractor’s compound relocated. 
  
 Demolition of Canolfan Awelon. 
  

 Completion of new build East Wing. 
  

 Completed development provides an additional 29 extra care 
apartments (8 No. one-bedroom and 21 No. two- bedroom),  dining 
room, kitchen and shared communal facilities. 

 
 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 360m2 at ground floor 

level with separate entrance.  
 

 Preliminaries reflect phasing requirements and relocation of 
Contractor’s compound. 

  

6.4 OPTION 3 
COSTINGS 

P
age 119



 86 

VARIATION TO OPTION 3b - COST SUMMARY  
  

  £ 

Provision of temporary kitchen  75,000 
  

Demolition of the East and West Wings and Canolfan  145,000 
  

New Extra Care Apartments (3,650m2)  2,971,000   

New single-storey Canolfan Awelon (360m2)  455,000   

Mechanical and Electrical Installations  1,452,000   

External Works  200,000 
  

Drainage  100,000 
  

External Services  91,000 
  

Sub Total  £5,489,000 
  

Main Contractor’s General Preliminaries (Say)  855,000 
  

Sub Total  £6,344,000   

Contingency and Design Reserve (Say)  315,000   

Estimated cost for Option 4 Works (Excluding VAT)  £6,659,000   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

BRIEF SUMMARY OF WORKS  
 
This option represents a situation where residents decide to move 
elsewhere and the community centre closes temporarily. That 
situation would allow single phase demolition and subsequent new 
build construction phase: 
  
  
 Provision of a temporary kitchen. 
 
 Demolition of the Awelon Care Centre and Canolfan Awelon and 

erection of New three-storey building comprising Canolfan 
Awelon and additional extra care apartments connected with 
Llys Awelon. New plant and switch rooms. 

 
 Contractor’s compound remains static for the duration of the 

project. 
  
 Completed development provides an additional 29 extra care 

apartments (8 No. one-bedroom and 21 No. two- bedroom), 
dining room, kitchen and shared communal facilities. 

 
 Replacement Canolfan Awelon facility @ 360m2 at ground floor 

level with separate entrance.  
 

  

  

P
age 120



 87 

7.0  DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 

P
age 121



 88 

IMPACT OF BUILDING WORK 

Each option would have its own set of difficulties that may affect the 

health and well being of residents and staff and separate risk 

assessments would be required to evaluate the various options before 

proceeding: 

OPTION 1 

Option 1 involves the retention and refurbishment of the west wing of 

the existing Awelon Care Centre building to create 15 en-suite 

residential care bedrooms. 

Due to the nature of the existing building’s construction, there would 

be a great deal of structural alterations required. There would also be 

unavoidable disruption to residential care residents - first of all during 

phase 1, where the residents currently located within the west wing 

would be required to be decanted to rooms within the east wing. 

Once all existing residents are located in the east wing of the building, 

and sharing the ground and first floor lounge spaces within Llys 

Awelon, building works would commence to transform the west wing 

into en-suite accommodation, before residents could then return to 

occupy the retained west wing of the Awelon Care Centre building. 

The existing stair and lift area at the centre of the building could form 

a vital ’buffer zone’ between residents and the building works in order 

to minimise disruptions such as noise and dust.  

During phase 3 or the works, meals would be prepared in a temporary 

kitchen located on the car park at the north of the site. The lounge 

areas within Llys Awelon would be used for dining purposes until the 

new kitchen and restaurant/dining hall is constructed. 

Once the east wing of the Awelon Care Centre building, along with the 

Canolfan Awelon building are demolished, construction would start 

on the new build extra care provision and new community facility. 

Again, the existing Awelon entrance space would form a temporary 

’buffer zone’ between the residential care residents and the 

construction works.  

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
IMPACT ON RESIDENTS AND STAFF 

D 

HEALTH AND WELL-BEING OF RESIDENTS AND STAFF 

Disruption -The well-being of residents and staff is of paramount 

importance, and which ever option was chosen every measure would be 

taken to minimise disruption and the effect of development as much as 

possible.  

Decanting -Within each option the existing residential care residents 
would be required to move out from their current bedrooms on at least 
one occasion, and within some options it would be necessary to propose 
that some residents move twice.  It must be remembered that single 
moves would still be needed within the existing Awelon building and 
residents’ health and wellbeing at the time is currently impossible to 
predict. 

Noise—The impact of noise on the well-being of residents is another 

major issue to consider, and in each option a buffer zone is proposed 

between the residents and any construction works. Within Option 3 the 

effect of noise is reduced further by locating residents at the front of the 

site, well away from any construction work. 

Dealing with Change - Change can also be a worry for older residents.  

Even after careful consultation and planning with residents and their 

families, there is considerable risk that moving would prove traumatic, 

and residents’ health could change at a critical time. This could be 

exacerbated if more than one move is envisaged in fairly short 

succession. 

Staff - The impact upon the ability of staff to perform their jobs is also of 

key importance. Within each option there would be challenges  such as 

enabling family members to visit, enabling hospital and other 

appointments, and the need to provide a temporary kitchen solution 

during part of the works.  

Maintaining access - Ease of access and egress within each option must 

be maintained as far as possible at all times. The retention of the 

existing Awelon building entrance within most options would help to 

maintain safe access while the works proceed. Within each option, safe 

access for visitors needs to be maintained for vehicles and pedestrians.  

Following the completion of the main construction works within phase 

4, some further internal modifications to the layout would be required in 

order to create a feeling of connectivity between the residential care 

and Extra Care facilities.  

OPTION 2  

Option 2 involves the phased demolition of the existing Awelon Care 

Centre building, in order to create additional extra care provision linked 

to Llys Awelon while reinstating Canolfan Awelon community facilities.  

OPTION 2a 

Phase 1 involves the decanting of some residents to the west wing in 

readiness for the demolition of the east wing of the Awelon building as 

well as the Canolfan Awelon building. Due to the position of the existing 

boiler house and the service routes under the ground floor slab, there 

would be disruption to the heating provision while new connections are 

made to the second floor boiler room of Llys Awelon. 

Similar to Option 1, a temporary kitchen would need to be established, 

and residents dining would be within the shared lounge areas of Llys 

Awelon until the new kitchen and dining hall are constructed in Phase 3. 

At this point, residents would be decanted once again to the newly built 

east wing before the west wing can be demolished.   Any disruption 

during construction works within phase 4 should then be limited to 

noise, and the new facility should function well during the works.  

OPTION 2b 

The key difference between options 2a and 2b is the order in which the 

east and west wings are demolished. In Option 2b, some of the existing 

residents would firstly be moved into the east wing of the Awelon 

building, while the west wing is demolished and replaced with new 

accommodation and community facilities.  

Following the completion of phase 3, residents would need to be 

decanted to the newly built west wing. Disruption while providing 

residents meals could be minimised by utilising the kitchen and hall 

P
age 122



 89 

7.0 DESIGN  IMPLICATIONS    
  IMPACT ON RESIDENTS AND STAFF 

within the new build community facility as a temporary dining space. 

Loss of external space has also been minimised with the introduction of 

a landscaped garden in place of the car park to the north of the site. 

OPTION 3 

Option 3 involves the use of Llys Awelon Block B at the entrance to the 

site as a Residential Care facility.  This has many advantages; once the 

building is unoccupied and the internal layout modifications have been 

made, existing residential care residents would only be required to move 

once into their new accommodation. The position of Block B at the front 

of the site means that residents would be away from the main 

constructions works of phases 2 and 3. 

The building also benefits from more suitable vertical circulation, with a 

larger lift accessing the first floor, as well as a more considerately 

designed staircase. 

Staff facilities could also be accommodated within the building, and 

meals  provided locally from a domestic scale kitchen with Block B or 

from the existing hall and kitchen of Canolfan Awelon if required. This 

would involve residents travelling between buildings, and in bad 

weather could be an issue.  

Construction work moves closer once the demolition of the Canolfan 

Awelon building commences in phase 4, although safe access to the 

building is maintained with car parking provision.  The effect of noise is 

reduced by the fact that Llys Awelon Block B is of better construction 

than the Awelon building with greater sound reduction provided. 

During phase 4,  main dining provision moves temporarily further away 

to the newly built west wing community facility. Moving residents across 

the site during this phase may be challenging for staff, and potentially 

distressing for residents in poor weather conditions. 

However this issue of providing meals to residents could be resolved if it 

is felt that the space within the extended lounge space was suitable at 

ground floor level for 8 residents to dine. 

 

P
age 123



 90 

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
SERVICES PROPOSALS 

1.0 GENERAL 

The scheme comprises the demolition and/or alteration of the existing 
Denbighshire County Council care facility at Ruthin and the construction 
of a new extra care development for Grwp Cynefin. The new/modified 
building would be an extension to the existing Group Cynefin 3 storey 
extra care facility which adjoins the Denbighshire County Council 
building. 

There are 4 options under consideration for the scheme, as follows: 

Option 1  

 15 N° Residential Care bedrooms with en-suite facilities within 
‘shell’ of the existing building west wing 

 8 N° new 1 bedroom Extra Care Apartments @ 50m 

 13 N° new 2 bedroom Extra Care Apartments @ 65 m² 

 New dining, kitchen and shared communal facilities 

 New Canolfan Awelon 

Option 2a 

 17 N° new 1 bedroom Extra Care Apartments @ 50 m 

 39 N° new 2 bedroom Extra Care apartments @ 65 m² 

 New dining, kitchen and shared communal facilities 

 New Canolfan Awelon 

Option 2b 

 11 N° new 1 bedroom Extra Care Apartments @ 50 m² 

 39 N° new 2 bedroom Extra Care apartments @ 65 m² 

 New dining, kitchen and shared communal facilities 

 New Canolfan Awelon (more extensive than Option 2a and located 
where the West Wing used to be) 

Option 3 (similar to option 2b) 

This option uses the small Llys Awelon building at the front for the 
residential care residents wishing to stay on site. While this would be 
converted to residential care use for the duration of the new build it 
could be designed flexibly to allow conversion back to extra care use). 

 11 N° new 1 bedroom Extra Care Apartments @ 50 m² 

 39 N° new 2 bedroom Extra Care apartments @ 65 m² 

 New dining, kitchen and shared communal facilities 

New Canolfan Awelon (more extensive than Option 2a and located 
where the West Wing used to be) 

From the mechanical and electrical services point of view the new 
installations would be similar for all of the above options and for the 
purposes of this report the extent of the installations are considered 
to be generally the same, unless indicated otherwise. 

  

2.0 SERVICES CONCERNS RELATING TO OPTION 1 

The concerns relating to the phasing within Option 1 should be noted, 
in particular the risks associated with modifying the existing services 
under Phase 1 to allow the East wing of the existing building to be 
operated independently of the West wing (to allow the West wing to 
be refurbished). The existing services within the existing main block 
largely date back to their original installation approximately 45 years 
ago. The extent of modification that would be required, particularly in 
relation to heating, water and electrical services, is such that the risk 
of failure of those services is so severe that the selection of this 
Option should be considered only with a full understanding of the 
associated risks. In simple terms, failure of services could result in the 
need to close the facility. 

In addition to the above, the disruption to Block A that would be 
caused during Phase 2 of Option 1 by connection of new services to 
the existing boiler room within Block A may not be feasible without 
the provision of temporary external boiler plant which, again, may 
cause unacceptable disruption. 

So, in summary, although the proposals under Option 1 are possible, 
the recommendation is that this Option should be avoided for the 
reasons given.    

 

 

 

3.0 MECHANICAL SERVICES PROPOSALS 

3.1 Incoming gas supplies 

Existing 

There are 2 No. statutory gas meters feeding the main accommodation 
blocks (Block A and the original block) at Awelon and individual statutory 
meters for each of the 4 No. apartments and Landlord’s areas in the 
detached block (Block B). There is also a dedicated statutory meter for 
Awelon Day Centre.  

Block A has a supply rated at 400kWh with the meter located within a 
kiosk on the site boundary (Park Road – A494). There is a 125MDPE 
underground main from the meter that enters Block A in the Store to 
the rear of the main lift. This main then rises to the 2nd floor as 100 steel 
to feed the boilers located within the 2nd floor boiler room. There is no 
other gas requirement within Block A. 

The original accommodation block is also provided with a dedicated gas 
supply from a meter located within a 2nd kiosk on the site boundary 
(Park Road – A494). The supply from this kiosk is routed underground to 
the main boiler room to feed the gas boilers and water heater. A third 
meter is located in a room close to the kitchen with a dedicated metered 
gas supply to the kitchen. The rating of these meters needs to be 
checked, however the main meter is currently providing in excess of 
500kWh of gas load. It is understood that there have been problems 
with gas leaks with the existing underground gas mains to the main 
meter which have been corrected, however it is unclear as to the age 
and condition of the main (the building was believed to have been 
constructed in the early 1970s). 

Block B is provided with 5 No. statutory meters feeding 4 No. 
apartments and the Landlord’s areas. These meters are located within 
external kiosks and are fed from the statutory main within School Road 
to the rear of the site.   

The dedicated statutory meter for Awelon Day Centre is located within 
the Day Centre boiler room and is fed from the statutory main within 
School Road to the rear of the site.   

P
age 124



 91 

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
SERVICES PROPOSALS 

 

Proposed  

An upgraded meter would be needed to feed the development, includ-
ing the new boiler room, kitchen and the existing Block A boiler room. 
The existing statutory meter and associated pipework that feeds the 
existing kitchen and the statutory meter that feeds the existing main 
boiler room would need to be removed. 

The existing gas main to Awelon Day Centre would be removed. A dedi-
cated gas supply would be required to the proposed new Community 
Centre to serve the dedicated heating plant. 

 

3.2  Metering 

Energy usage for each apartment would be metered. This would allow 
for control of energy usage and billing to the tenants, if appropriate. 
Metering would include electric, heat and water. As would be ex-
plained, the most appropriate form of metering for this development 
would be sub-metering for the apartments within the extension, ie 
Landlord controlled, and not Statutory metering.  

As the proposed new Community Centre is to be operated and serviced 
separately to the accommodation, dedicated metering would be provid-
ed. 

3.3  Heating  

Under all options, it is proposed that a dedicated boiler room would be 
provided within the new build to provide heating and hot water services 
for the new build elements. It is also recommended that this plant be 
sized to allow connection into the existing heating and hot water ser-
vices within Block A that are derived from the 2nd floor plant room. This 
would be a straightforward exercise with minimal disruption 
(changeover could be within a single day). 

Each of the new apartments would be provided with a dedicated indi-
rect heat interface unit (HIU) which would provide metered and con-
trolled heating and hot water (with the exception of the bedrooms in 
Option 1 and 3 which would be fed from the Landlord’s variable tem-
perature heating circuit). The HIU would be located in the store of each 
apartment and would measure approximately 600wide x 800high x 
400deep. The Landlord’s CT heating circuit would be piped to each HIU. 

The accommodation communal areas would be fed from the Land-
lord’s VT circuit.  

Dedicated heating plant would be provided for the proposed Commu-
nity Centre to ensure that it can be operated independently. 

The option to provide additional accommodation within Block B can 
be relatively easily accommodated with the existing combination boil-
ers. 

All radiators would need to be LST with individual thermostatic con-
trol. All pipework feeding the radiators would be protected. 

 

3.4 Hot and cold water services 

Existing 

There is a single 63mm alkathene main to Block A that is fed from the 
statutory meter located within the pavement of Park Road. This main 
feeds all domestic services within Block A. 

The original block and Awelon Day Centre are fed from a single main 
that enters Awelon boiler room. This main then runs within the under-
ground ducts under the main block and also feeds Awelon Day Centre. 
The main is fed from the statutory meter located within the pavement 
of School Road. 

Block B is provided with 5 No. statutory metered supplies fed from a 
manifold arrangement in the pavement of School Road. These supplies 
feed the 4 No. apartments and the Landlord’s area. 

Proposed 

Welsh Water will only guarantee approximately 1.5Bar at the meter to 
any property. This equates to 15m water pressure, i.e. insufficient to 
provide at least 1Bar at any outlet within the proposed 3-storey devel-
opment. In practice, the available pressure is significantly more than 
1.5Bar, however space should be allowed for the provision of a future 
water tank and booster should Welsh Water decide to reduce the 
available pressure to the development. The existing development 
(Block A) is 3-storey and there is ample pressure on the top floor, 
without the need for any water boosting. 

It is therefore proposed that the incoming water supply to the develop 

ment is increased in capacity to 90mm alkathene (it is currently 63mm  

alkathene) and sub-metering provided to each of the apartments. The  

meter would be located within the store cupboard of each apartment  

and, along with the electric and heat meters, would allow for complete  

energy monitoring. 

Hot water for each apartment, Landlord’s kitchen, assisted bathroom 
and WCs would be generated instantaneously through HIUs. There 
would be no requirement for any hot water storage or for any piped hot 
water flow and return other than from the HIUs.  

Dedicated hot water plant or local point of use electric water heaters 
would be provided to the proposed new Community Centre. 

The option to provide additional accommodation within Block B can be 
relatively easily accommodated with the existing combination boilers. 

 

3.5 Ventilation 

Ventilation to all apartments would be provided by dedicated extract 
fans discharging through the external elevation. A kitchen fan, bathroom 
fan and recirculatory domestic kitchen canopy would be provided for 
each apartment. 

Consideration would need to be given to the Building Regulations Part F 
requirements relating to ‘single exposed elevation’, ie the need for high 
and low level trickle vents on windows or permanent trickle ventilation. 

The commercial kitchen will need to be ventilated with dedicated supply 
and extract ventilation plant, with the exhaust routed to above roof lev-
el. 

 

P
age 125



 92 

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
SERVICES PROPOSALS 

ELECTRICAL SERVICES PROPOSALS 

4.1 Incoming electricity supply  

The existing electricity supply for both the existing Denbighshire County 
Council and Grwp Cynefin buildings originates from a free-standing 
substation on the site and the supply terminates within the existing 
switchroom on the ground floor of the DCC facility. The supply to the 
Grwp Cynefin building is sub-metered from the DCC switchroom. 

A new supply would be provided from the existing substation to 
terminate in the new switchroom within the new build. The supply to 
the existing Grwp Cynefin development would be replaced with a new 
sub-metered supply from the new switchroom. A temporary supply 
would be provided to the existing Grwp Cynefin development to 
maintain its operation for the duration of the works. 

If feasible a separate metered electricity supply would be provided to 
serve the new Canolfan Awelon building. This would depend on whether 
the facility is accessible from the residential development. If this is the 
case the development would be classed as one building and provision of 
a separate metered electricity supply would not be allowed on safety 
grounds. Should this be the case then a sub-metered supply would need 
to be provided from the residential development. There is likely to be 
little difference in cost between providing a separate metered supply 
and a sub-metered supply so the decision as to which option is adopted 
is would be based on the building operational details rather than 
financial. 

4.2 Telephone services 

The requirements for incoming telephone lines would be agreed with 
the client. It is envisaged that lines would be required as follows: 

Apartments – 1 line per apartment 

Admin – 3 lines 

Fire alarm monitoring – 1 line 

Lift monitoring – 1 line 

Warden call system monitoring – 1 line 

A separate telephone service (N° of lines to be agreed) would be 
provided to serve Canolfan Awelon.  

BT New Sites would be approached to agree external duct routes and 
cable draw chamber requirements etc, 

4.3 Switchgear, sub –mains distribution and metering 

A moulded case circuit breaker (MCCB) main switchboard would be 
provided in the main electrical intake room. The panel would feed out 
to consumer units within each apartment and distribution boards for 
landlord’s services, kitchen, laundry etc. 

Sub-meters would be provided to monitor energy usage as follows: 

Each apartment 

Landlord’s lighting (ground floor 

Landlord’s power (ground floor) 

Landlord’s lighting (first floor) 

Landlord’s power (first floor) 

Landlord’s lighting (second floor) 

Landlord’s power (second floor) 

Kitchen 

Mechanical plant 

Lift  

Existing Grwp Cynefin facility 

New Canolfan Awelon (unless a separate incoming supply 
can be provided 

All sub meters would be pulsed output type for connection to the 
BMS to facilitate remote reading such that the client can bill the ten-
ants etc. as appropriate. 

Sub-mains cables would generally be XPLE/SWA/LSF type distributed 
in corridor ceiling voids and vertical risers on galvanised cable trays/
baskets. 

4.4 Lighting  

Lighting would be provided to all apartments and communal areas in 
accordance with the recommendations of the CIBSE Code for interior 
Lighting. Night lighting would be provided in corridors and automatic 
control of lighting would be provided in appropriate areas. 

All luminaires in Landlord’s areas etc would be LED type. 

Emergency lighting would be provided to communal areas and corri-
dors in accordance with BS 5266. 

4.5 TV/Satellite system  

A Sky Plus or similar system would be provided to distribute TV/Satellite 
services to all apartments and communal lounges. The tenants would 
need to provide their own ‘set top’ box to subscribe to the various Sky 
channels 

 

4.6 Telephone/Data system  

Telephone and data wiring distribution systems would be installed to 
provide telephone and IT services to each apartment.  

Telephone facilities and a networked data system would be provided to 
the Landlord’s facilities etc (specification and extent to be agreed with 
Client). WiFi access would be provided throughout. 

 

4.7     Fire alarm system  

A new fully addressable fire alarm system would be provided to comply 
with BS5839:Part 1 and Part 6 to communal areas and apartments. 

A control and indication panel would be provided at the main entrance 
and this would be networked with the panel serving the existing Grwp 
Cynefin development such that the origin of an alarm activation would 
be displayed at both new and existing panels. 

 

4.8 Warden call system  

A warden call monitoring system would be provided as appropriate. The 
requirements for the system would be agreed with the Client. The new 
system would be interconnected with the existing system serving the 
existing Grwp Cynefin facility. 

 

4.9 Door access system 

A door access system would be provided. The system would comprise of 
an intercom/call system at the main entrance door with a handset incor-
porating remote release facilities within each apartment. 

P
age 126



 93 

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
SERVICES PROPOSALS 

 

4.10   Security services  

A CCTV system would be provided to monitor the main entrances and 
the external areas. The system would incorporate digital recording 
facilities. 

It is not proposed to provide intruder alarm facilities although power 
supplies would be provided within each apartment to allow tenants to 
install their own systems should they wish. 

 

4.11 Lightning protection system  

The existing lightning protection system would be extended and/or 
modified as appropriate to provide full prtotection to the existing and 
new buildings in accordance with BS6651. Electronic surge suppression 
devices would be incorporated at the main switchboard and on feeds to 
external services (external lighting etc). 

 

4.12    Hearing induction loops 

Hearing induction loops would be provided at the reception desk and 

other areas as agreed with the client. 

4.13     External lighting 

The existing external lighting installation would be modified as 
appropriate to suit the new development. The external lighting would 
comply with the relevant standards to ensure that spill lighting and light 
pollution etc are kept within acceptable limits. 

External lighting would be controlled via photocell and timeswitch with 
manual override switch for testing purposes. 

4.14   Lift supply 

A power supply would be provided to the lift as required by the lift 
installer. 

It would need to be established if the lift needs to be evacuation lift. If so 
a standby generator would need to be provided to facilitate operation of 
the lift(s) in the event of mains power failure. 

 

5.0 RESIDENTIAL AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SPECIFICATION  

5.1 Extent of Works 

A residential sprinkler installation would need to be provided to the 
new building. Block A is currently provided with a 5.4m3 tank and this 
tank could be used to feed the entire development (Block A and the 
new build). The capacity of the existing pumps would need to be 
checked but it should be acceptable to provide a new feed from the 
pumps to the new building. The systems would be designed and in-
stalled in accordance with LPC Rules BS5306 Part 2. 

5.2 Water supplies 

For this project, the water supply would need to be approximately 
150-200l/min at a pressure of approximately 3Bar. The dedicated wa-
ter tank and pump arrangement would need to meet this demand. 

5.3 Sprinkler system 

All sprinklers would fit flush with the ceiling line. There would be no 
requirement for sprinklers in any rooms of less than 5m2 or cupboards 
of less than 2m2.  Voids of 800mm or greater would require protec-
tion. It is likely that the roof would require protection, although this 
would need to be verified. 

Sprinklers heads would need to conform to BS9252, with a coverage 
of not more than 15m2. A minimum flow rate of 15l/min would be re-
quired at the furthest head, this being achieved by correct pipework 
sizing and selection of sprinkler heads. The temperature rating of each 
sprinkler head is 68°C. The location of the head within each kitchen 
would need to agreed. Pipework would need to be installed in accord-
ance with best practice, using either copper to BS EN1057, steel tube 
to BS1387 or approved (LPCB) plastic pipes and fittings. 

5.4 Sprinkler tank, pump and valving arrangement 

The existing sprinkler tank is designed to hold 30 minutes water sup-
ply which equates to a minimum of 5.4m3 nominal capacity. A single 
electric automatic fire pump would be required for each system and 
associated sprinkler valve sets. A maintenance jockey pump would be 
provided for each system to avoid inadvertent operation of the main 
pump due to minor variations in system pressure. The tank, pumps 
and valve set should all be located within the same room, ideally at 
ground floor level and readily accessible.  

It could be feasible to locate the tank within the roof space in an accessi-
ble location, with the pumps and valve arrangement on the second floor 
below the tank, although this would be dependent on pipe lengths etc. 
The tank would also need to be easily accessible. 

5.5     Sprinkler monitoring panel 

The existing sprinkler monitoring panel would be retained, located with-
in the main entrance of Block A, close to the fire panel, with visual and 
audible warning of sprinkler activation. An external xenon flashing bea-
con and sounder would be required on the front elevation of the new 
building which would provide warning of activation of the flow switch.  

5.6 Operation of the system 

When activated by fire, the sprinkler head would operate, providing the 
required discharge of water for a minimum of 10minutes. The internal 
and external alarms would activate, until the Fire Brigade turn the sys-
tem off. 

6.0 OTHER ISSUES 

6.1 Building Regulations and Planning  

The development would require a SBEM assessment and/or SAP calcula-
tions depending on Building Control requirements. Any issues relating to 
noise, external lighting and sustainability need to be highlighted. 

6.2 Sustainability 

It is anticipated the new development would need to achieve a BREEAM 
rating of Very Good or Excellent. This may not be achievable in Option 1. 
In addition to the requirement for BREEAM AP, LZC reports, overheating 
checks, commissioning monitoring and excellent building fabric perfor-
mance, it is proposed to provide the following systems:  

                    Photovoltaics (capacity to be agreed) 

Minimal hot water storage 

Highly efficient boiler plant, water systems, ventilation, 

lighting and lighting controls  

Leak detection on incoming main 

Comprehensive metering 

Power factor correction 

Automatic water shut-off 

P
age 127



 94 

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
DRAINAGE 

C 

B A 

 
 EXISTING 

We understand from Datrys Consulting Engineers that the original 

drainage system installed for the Awelon site comprised a combined 

system that discharged to the north-east corner of the site. A private 

combined drain in the A494 then connected with the adopted combined 

sewer system.  

The new build development to deliver Llys Awelon creating an additional 

21 extra care apartments in two blocks, known as Phase 1 resulted in an 

increase in both the foul flow and the total impermeable area draining 

into the combined system.  To offset this potential increase in the storm 

water flow, a partial attenuation system was installed which kept the 

total outflow of the development on completion at the same rate as that 

prior to the development of Phase 1.  

The present drainage system is illustrated on the drawing to the right, 

with the hard-standings being attenuated to meet the desired maximum 

rate of 3 litres per second (to secure Welsh Water approval) and storm 

flows being stored underground in the north-west corner of the site. The 

roof rainwater flows are collected downstream of the hydro-brake and 

discharge into the combined outfall without attenuation. This 

arrangement was agreed with the regulatory authorities. 

OPTION 3 

Datrys have advised that the proposed layout for new build Option 3 

(taken as typical for the consideration of drainage) would not result in an 

increase in the effective impermeable area of the site. However there 

have been changes in the approach to attenuation of flow since the 

completion of Phase 1. One of these is the increase in climate change 

allowance from 20% to 30% of the total calculated storm water inflows. 

The second is the need to restrict outflows to lower levels than might 

previously have been accepted. It is anticipated that DCWW (Welsh 

Water) would require a reduction in the outflow from the site. Such a 

reduction would result in the need to attenuate at least some of the 

flows which presently discharge freely in to the combined drain outlet. 

The site levels are such that it would be difficult to include the roof 

drainage at the north of the site but the drainage system for the new 

building could be incorporated into a new attenuation system. DRAINAGE LAYOUT 

P
age 128



 95 

7.0 DESIGN IMPLICATIONS 
 DRAINAGE 

 

PROPOSAL 

 

The following Drainage Strategy is proposed by Datrys Consulting 

Engineers for any new development: 

To allow the new roof drainage to be attenuated and to allow space for 

the resulting storage it is suggested that the new drainage should be 

designed in accordance with the following principles: 

 the storm water drains for the roads and car parking should continue  
       to drain through the existing attenuation system. 
 

 Agreement would be sought with DCWW (Welsh Water) for a 
minimum rate of discharge of 8 litres per second for the whole of the 
site. 

 

 the drainage for the new building should drain to the east and would  
       be attenuated for storage in a new storage tank. 
 
 The on-site foul and surface water drains should be separated to  
       allow the maximum control of storm water discharge. 
 

The above proposals would allow the principles of the present system to 

be maintained whilst addressing the anticipated requirements of DCWW 

to reduce the storm water discharge from the development in the 

course of the planning process. 

Surface Water  

Attenuation tank  

located here  

P
age 129



 96 

FEASIBILITY  CONCLUSIONS  
 
Generally, the anticipated construction costs for each option increase 
in relation to the size of the scheme being considered.  For example, 
Option 2a has the greatest floor area while providing the largest 
number of new units from all of the options being considered and is 
therefore expected to be the most expensive overall.  However the 
quality of new accommodation provided and value for money needs 
to be carefully evaluated when comparing Option 1  (with  partial 
refurbishment) and the Newbuild Options 2a, 2b and 3. The 
complexity of phasing needs to be considered. Also if it was 
considered necessary to give existing residents in Awelon the option 
of remaining on site while the works commence, there are 
considerable implications for health and safety. This will inevitably 
impact on costs and the ability to deliver the project within  
guaranteed timescales.  
  
OPTION 1 

  
This is the smallest option in terms of floor area and accommodation 
provided and was expected to be the least expensive overall.  
However, the comparable cost/m2 is greater than that for the new-
build Option 2a. 15 residential care bedrooms with en-suite shower 
rooms are indicated for existing residents within a retained and 
remodelled part Awelon. 21 additional extra care apartments are 
created with  communal facilities and a replacement Canolfan Awelon 
@ 260m2. 
  
The element of refurbishment work is contributing to a lower cost per 
m2, with the refurbishment cost being £738/m2 compared to £814/
m2 for the new build extra-care apartments and £1,265/m2 for the 
Community Facility respectively (all excluding M&E costs). This is due 
to some of the main structural elements being retained (i.e. 
foundations, external walls, ground and intermediate floors).   
 
While it may be easy to assume this option would deliver the shortest 
construction period (other than perhaps Option 3b) as it provides the 
smallest amount of new/upgraded accommodation, programme 
certainty would be difficult to predict and  there is a significant project 
risk with retaining the existing structure. Phasing complexity and 
unforeseen complications may arise when the proposed alteration 
and refurbishment works are undertaken. To reflect this greater risk, 
the highest allowance of £570,000 has been included for 
Contingencies/Design Reserve in Option 1.    
  

 OPTIONS CONSIDERED Option 1 Option 2a Option 2b Option 3 Alternative  

Option (3b) 

Refurbishment Works 520,000 - - 60,000 - 

Demolition Works 120,000 150,000 150,000 145,000 145,000 

New build Extra-Care Apartments 2,212,000 3,270,000 2,971,000 2,971,000 2,971,000 

Community Facility 329,000 329,000 455,000 455,000 455,000 

Mechanical and Electrical Installations 1,250,000 1,335,000 1,452,000 1,533,000 1,452,000 

Temporary Kitchen 75,000 75,000 - - 75,000 

External Works 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 

Drainage 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 

External Services 128,000 108,000 91,000 91,000 91,000 

Sub Total £4,934,000 £5,567,000 £5,419,000 £5,575,000 £5,489,000 

Main Contractor’s Preliminaries 776,000 1,218,000 1,157,000 1,122,000 855,000 

Sub Total £5,710,000 £6,785,000 £6,576,000 £6,697,000 £6,344,000 

Contingency and Design Reserve 570,000 340,000 329,000 338,000 315,000 

Comparable Total Estimated Cost       

(Exclusive of VAT) £6,280,000 £7,125,000 £6,905,000 £7,035,000 £6,659,000 

Floor area 3,683m2 4,277m2 4,010m2 4,010m2 4,010m2 

Comparable Estimated Cost/m2 £1,705/m2 £1,666/m2 £1,722/m2 £1,754/m2 £1,661/m2 

Anticipated Contract Length Uncertain 122 Weeks  116 Weeks 120 Weeks  82 Weeks  

Number of  Residential Care bedrooms  

provided with en-suite facilities 

15  

(within Awelon)    

 8 

(in Newbuild) 

 8 

(in Newbuild) 

8 

(within Block B) 

Nil 

Number of new Extra-care apartments 

created  initially. 

21 31 25 25 

(29 - 4 in Block B) 

29 

Total  number of new Extra-care apartments 

created  (if residential care need ends). 

21 

(stays  same) 

35 29 29 N/A 

Total Number of  Extra-care apartments  

created  in final scenario . 

42 56 50 50 

 

50 

  

8.0  SUMMARY COMPARISON 

P
age 130



 97 

OPTION 2A 
  
This is the largest of the four potential options being considered and  
delivers 35 new apartments and shared communal facilities. A number 
of the apartments (possibly 4) could be adapted to provide residential 
care for around 8 of the existing Awelon residents wishing to remain on 
site.  These could be converted later to suit extra care if required.  In 
terms of floor area being provided, it is therefore anticipated to be the 
most expensive overall.  The new community centre is close to the site 
entrance with its own separate entrance.  
 
The smaller scale of Canolfan Awelon @ 260m2 in this proposed scheme 
is helping to keep the overall cost per m2 down. This is reflected in both 
the building costs and the mechanical and electrical services costs. The 
anticipated duration of this option, together with complicated phasing 
and the relocation of the Contractor’s compound is however 
contributing to high Preliminaries costs in comparison to Option 1. 
 
The overall build period is expected to be around 122 weeks. 
  
OPTION 2B 
  
This option would deliver 29 new apartments with a number (possibly 4) 
adapted to provide residential care for (around 8) relocated Awelon 
residents wishing to remain on site to be converted later to suit extra 
care as required. Shared communal facilities are provided and the new 
community centre is placed to the West with its own separate entrance.  
 
This is anticipated to be the least expensive of the new build options 
being considered (i.e. Options 2a, 2b and 3). This is due to the lesser 
floor area being proposed.  
 
The increased size of Canolfan Awelon @ 360m2 compared to Option 2a 
is however contributing to the higher cost per m2 for this option. It is 
expected that the smaller scheme would result in a shorter construction 
period and therefore, the anticipated Contractor’s Preliminaries costs 
are comparatively lower than Option 2a. 
 
The overall build period is expected to be around 116 weeks. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 

As can be seen from the Summary Cost Comparison provided by Metrics 
included on the previous page, it is anticipated that Option 1 would be 
the cheapest in terms of overall cost expenditure but would most 
certainly present the greatest project risks in terms of cost certainty and 
project management mainly due to the retention and remodelling of 
part of the Awelon Care Centre.  Not only would the cost and 
programme be very difficult to manage in Option 1, but the exposure of 
vulnerable older residents and staff to ongoing and prolonged building 
activities in close proximity, decanting, noise and disruption would be 
challenging for all concerned and best avoided if possible. 
 

While different scenarios could be formulated on how the health and 
well being of residents and staff might be protected  for the duration of 
Option 1, there are many variables and unforeseen problems that could 
emerge during the works, placing an unreasonable burden on the 
contractor and those responsible for ensuring the safety and wellbeing 
of the occupiers. For example if buried services are disrupted and 
heating is lost for long periods then this would be unacceptable in the 
context of  vulnerable nature of those being looked after.  
 

Conversely, in terms of cost per m2 of accommodation being proposed, 
then the Alternative Option (3b) clearly offers the best value for money 
with the shortest building programme, while reducing the risk to 
occupants and building operatives carrying out the works.  Demolition 
and newbuild operations could be carried out more efficiently with 
greater safety  while providing safe corridors and routes to Llys Awelon 
which could remain occupied for the duration of the works. 
 

Options 2a and 2b provide opportunities to provide uprated residential 
care bedrooms but some of the apartments  would have to be set aside 
and flexibly planned to revert to extra care later on.  
 

Finally, if the commissioners were of a mind to offer accommodation for 
those residents determined to stay at Awelon (and all the other options 
have been explored) then it would seem, subject to availability, that  
Option 3 offers a more manageable area further away from building 
operations close to the site entrance.  

OPTION 3 
 

This option delivers 29 new apartments and shared communal 
facilities. Provision is made for up to 8 of the existing Awelon 
residents to be relocated to Llys Awelon (Block B) with 4 apartments 
converted for residential care use. That would reduce the additional 
extra care apartments during this period.  One benefit of this option 
is that if some residents from Awelon wish to stay on the site and 
space became available in Llys Awelon at the front of the site, then 
space could be afforded for vulnerable residents away from the 
building works. A new community centre, (Canolfan Awelon @ 
360m2 similar to Option 2b) is provided to the West with its own 
separate entrance and parking facilities.   

This option has the same floor area as Option 2b, but is anticipated to 
be more expensive due to the additional refurbishment and 
extension works being proposed to Llys Awelon Block B. This is 
reflected in both the build costs and M&E installation costs. This in 
turn is contributing to the higher cost per m2. The Contractor’s 
Preliminaries costs are however expected to be less for this option 
due to a potentially more efficient construction programme.   

 The overall build period is expected to be 120 weeks. 

ALTERNATIVE  OPTION  (3b) 

This variant of Option 3 represents the situation should the residents 
of Awelon Care Centre move elsewhere, and community centre 
activities currently undertaken at Canolfan Awelon are paused and 
temporally moved elsewhere but return later on completion. In that 
event, the demolition of the care centre and community building 
would be undertaken in a single operation.  A temporary kitchen 
would be required to service the existing extra care residents and less 
remodelling work would be required  to  Llys Awelon but this is seen 
as feasible.   
 
The Construction Estimate of £6,659,000 is the lowest of the full 
newbuild options. The build period could be expected to be the 
shortest at around 82 weeks with the Contractor’s Preliminaries costs 
being reduced considerably due to this more efficient construction 
programme . 

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Ruthin Awelon Extra Care Proposal

Wellbeing Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of a proposal on the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-
being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 108

Brief description: The proposal is to reconfigure Awelon Care Centre as Extra Care
Accommodation

Date Completed: Version: 0

Completed By:

Responsible Service: Community Support Services

Localities affected by the proposal: Ruthin,

Page 133

Phi94517_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 7



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider how the
proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in a manner which seeks
to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

Could some small changes in your thinking produce a better result?
(3 out of 4 stars)

Actual score: 23/ 24.

Summary of impact

Wellbeing Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Positive

A more equal Denbighshire Positive

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Main conclusions

Page 134



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

The development will have a very positive effect on the well-being of older people in
Denbighshire and will enable them to continue to participate in their local
communities. Working in the development will enhance the skills of the workforce and
the scheme will provide an attractive and sustainable workplace. The completed
scheme will provide a vibrant communal centre which will be open to all the
community to encourage well-being. The replacement centre will be energy efficient
and will reduce carbon emissions significantly compared to the existing building. The
Building will

Positive consequences identified:

The current old and energy inefficient Awelon Building will be replaced with a modern sustainable building
reducing the carbon footprint of the centre. The building will be highly insultated and draught proffed with triple
glazing throughout and will be looking to achieve BREEAM "Excellent " standard.
The development will employ local contractors and tradespersons which will add to the local economic
development
The completed development will be staffed by carers who are trained to encourage and promote independence
The carers and support workers who work at the scheme will hone their skills in reablement

Unintended negative consequences identified:

The scheme is likely to need less staff than are currently employed as the principle of Extra Care enables and
encourages older people to stay independent for longer and thereby be less reliant on paid carers
During the build phase the development is likely to have a negative impact on transport in Ruthin centre but this
disruption will be kept to a minimum

Mitigating actions:

With Partner promote the awareness of the new development in the local community.
Work with HR to ensure that all existing staff are aware of redeployment opportunities.
Have a robust access and transport strategy.

Page 135



A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:
This proposal will have a positive impact because the primary objective is to replace
an old and energy inefficient building with a modern building which will meet exacting
environmental and sustainability standards.

Positive consequences identified:

This proposal involves replacing an existing building with a new building which will conform to the highest
BREEAM standards and will therefore have a neutral impact on biodiversity and the natural environment
This proposal involves replacing an existing building with a new building which will conform to the highest
BREEAM standards and will therefore have a neutral impact on biodiversity and the built environment
Tenants will be supported and encouraged to reduce and recycle waste.
This proposal involves replacing an existing building with a new building which will conform to the highest
BREEAM standards and will therefore have a positive impact in reducing energy. The principle of extra care is that
older people are encouraged to remain independent but if they do require care the carers are located on site
which reduces the fuel consumption for carers who would otherwise be traveling around the area to provide care.
The site of the development is not considered to be in a flood risk area and will have a neutral impact on flood risk
management,

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

We will raise awareness of environmental issues with tenants and will encourage recycling and minimising waste.

Page 136



A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

The scheme will contribute to "A healthier Denbighshire" by promoting: Encouraging
and promoting independence Contributing to and promoting Age friendly
communities Falls prevention Dementia Supportive Communities Preventing
loneliness and isolation

Positive consequences identified:

The whole ethos of extra care Housing is about encouraging and supporting health and well-being.
The extra Care facility will provide food that is healthy and of good quality and wherever possible locally sourced.
The scheme will facilitate participation in a range of leisure opportunities for the tenants and the local community
to overcome social isolation.
regular activities will include: gentle mobility, hand and feet yoga, arts and crafts, Digital Inclusion projects, guest
speakers and social events.
The scheme will contribute to the overarching aims and outcomes of the Denbighshire's Ageing Well Plan 2015 -
2019 by promoting:
Age friendly communities
Falls prevention
Dementia Supportive Communities
Preventing loneliness and isolation
The scheme will support and promote good access to healthcare.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 137



A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:
The scheme will contribute to the overarching aims and outcomes " A more equal
Denbighshire" by promoting benefit and grant take up and reducing household bills
for energy and utilities.

Positive consequences identified:

The scheme will improve and promote the well being of older people and vulnerable adults.
The scheme will address and reduce health inequalities in older and vulnerable adults and in particular for people
with dementia by encouraging supporting and promoting independence and reducing the need for residential
care.
The scheme will tackle poverts for older people and vulnerable adults by supporting and encouraging access to
benefits and by reducing energy costs. Extra Care costs help people to budget through the provision of the main
meal of the day and by dramatically reducing spending on energy and utilities.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 138



A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact: Positive

Justification for Impact:

The scheme will contribute to the overarching aims and outcomes of ""A Denbighshire
of cohesive communities" by promoting community participations, by providing a safe
environment for older people and vulnerable adults to live in and by promoting the
independence and reliance of the tenants and community participants.

Positive consequences identified:

Extra Care housing provides a safe home environment for the individuals who live there and gives peace of mind
to their families and carers.
The new scheme will promote and encourage community participation and will encourage the resilience of the
tenants, groups and individuals who utilise the community centre and who participate in the wide range of social
activities that will be available.
The design of the development will be in keeping with the character, appearance and diversity of the local
community.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 139



A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact:

Justification for Impact:

By adopting and implementing a comprehensive Welsh language policy. Every aspect
of services will be available bilingually, and that approach would be applied diligently
to the face to face housing, care and support services at the scheme as well as other
aspects such as signage and literature

Positive consequences identified:

The Housing Association partner in the scheme Cynefin has adopted and is implementing a comprehensive Welsh
language policy, and are able to provide every aspect of their services bilingually, and that approach would be
applied diligently to the face to face housing, care and support services at the scheme as well as other aspects
such as signage and literature
All staff at the scheme will be bilingual and will promote the Welsh Language . All literature and support will be
offered equally in Welsh and English.
The scheme will promote and respect the local culture and heritage.

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 140



A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact:

Justification for Impact:
The scheme will promote the Human rights of everyone working within the scheme
and will be aware of responsibility to promote human rights through responsible
sourcing of suppliers .

Positive consequences identified:

The scheme will employ responsible, accredited local suppliers.
The scheme will promote the Human rights of everyone working within the scheme and will be aware of
responsibility to promote human rights through responsible sourcing of suppliers

Unintended negative consequences identified:

Mitigating actions:

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  6 January 2017 
 
Lead Member/Officer: Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Corporate Plan 
    Head of Facilities, Assets & Housing 
 
Report Author: Facilities, Assets and Housing Programme Manager – 

Business Change 
 
Title: Procurement Strategy & Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) – 

progress and impact to date 

 
 

 
1. What is the report about? 

 
Following approval at Council on 23rd Feb 2016, the Council adopted a new 
Procurement Strategy and CPRs.  The Procurement Transformation Board are 
requesting that Performance Scrutiny considers how effectively the strategy is being 
implemented and its impact, and how consistently the contract procedure rules are 
being applied across the organisation. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 

 
To provide information regarding the Procurement Transformation Programme, 
specifically: 

 What progress has been made on implementation of the Procurement 
Strategy? 

 Has implementation of the Procurement Strategy resulted in efficiency gains? 

 What impact has implementation of the Procurement Strategy had on the local 
economy? 

 Are services across the organisation applying the revised contract procedure 
rules? 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

 

For the Committee to determine whether the new Procurement Strategy and revised 

CPRs have resulted in improved performance of the organisation in relation to 

procurement activity, and/or identify areas where further work/improvement are 

necessary. 

 
4. Report details 

 
The Strategy (attached as appendix 1) focusses around achieving two outcomes: 
 

 Denbighshire County Council achieves value for money from the goods, 
services and works it procures; and 

Page 143

Agenda Item 6



 Denbighshire County Council improves the contribution its procurement 
activity has on the local economy. 

 
In terms of the first outcome, progress has been made in several areas: 
 

 New processes have been introduced with the new CPRs, including the 
introduction of a “Commissioning Form” (attached as appendix 2) which is now 
required at the planning stage for any contract over £25K.  This form requires 
the service where the procurement activity is taking place to outline what is 
planned, timescales, financial requirements, etc.  The form is then assessed 
by the Procurement Team and any comments passed back to the service for 
final consideration and sign-off by the management structure in that service.  
This new process has improved the planning of procurement activity and has 
enabled much earlier scrutiny and quality assurance, helping to avoid 
problems before they occur.  It has also helped provide a better corporate 
overview of what procurement activity is taking place at any one time in the 
organisation. 

 

 Within the new CPR’s the authorisation processes for procurement decisions 
have been standardised and aligned with the scheme of delegation in the 
Constitution.  Previously, different financial thresholds and different authorisers 
were required at different points in the process, leading to errors where the 
wrong thresholds were being applied to a decision.  Standardisation has 
removed these errors and thus created efficiencies. 

 

 The Council has adopted Proactis as our Procurement system and this is now 
being used consistently across the organisation for the award and evaluation 
of all contract over £10K.  The electronic system creates a “pathway” for 
users, ensuring that all required tasks are completed before moving on to the 
next stage.  This has created a much more consistent approach and ensures 
compliance.  The Procurement Team has also introduced a number of quality 
assurance procedures whereby they regularly check the content being 
inputted into Proactis, and are taking action where issues are identified.  Often 
this is in the form of additional training or support for the service in question, 

 

 Following the introduction of the new strategy and CPR’s, regular 
communication was made with the middle management team to ensure there 
was widespread awareness of the changes and key new requirements.  In 
conjunction with this, a training course on the strategy and CPR’s was run, 
and by the end of Q2 (Sep 16) – 17 courses had been run with 183 officers 
attending, 94% of whom rated the training as either good or very good. 

 
In terms of the second outcome, progress has been somewhat hampered by a series 
of long-term illness absences within the Procurement Team which has reduced 
capacity.  Despite this, the following has been achieved: 
 

 Development of the Procurement Strategy and CPR’s was undertaken with the 
involvement and endorsement of the Federation of Small Businesses (FSB) 
and the NW Business Council, with the FSB still having representation on the 

Page 144



Procurement Transformation Board to ensure that the needs of local 
businesses remains a key consideration. 

 

 The Procurement Team has attended a number of events, including the Flint & 
Denbigh Show and the NW Business Council, providing direct advice and 
support to local businesses on procurement issues. 

 

 Publication of a new “Selling to the Council” guide (attached as appendix 3), 
outlining what potential bidders need to do in order to do business with the 
Council. 

 

 The website has been refreshed to present a more “business friendly” 
approach to procurement information, with links to the Council’s electronic 
procurement system available from the website. 

 
The performance measures for this outcome are as follows: 
 

 2014/15 – 31% (£35,529.000) spend with Denbighshire businesses 

 2015/16 – 24% (£31,161,000) (Note that there was a significant increase in 
capital spend in this year, predominantly associated with the new Rhyl school, 
and as expenditure for this measure is against the main contractor, the figures 
do not reflect the 68% spent on this major contract with local businesses) 

 2016/17 (end of Q2) – 31% (£16,096,502); 50% with NW businesses 
(£26,073,095); and 55% (£29,033,710) with Welsh businesses. 

 
Overall, progress against these two outcomes in the first 6 months of implementation 
has been positive.  Confirmation that the new approach is having a positive impact is 
borne out in a survey of middle managers.  When the survey was first undertaken in 
summer 2015, only 8% of middle managers considered their knowledge of 
procurement to be either good or very good, with a very significant 49% considering 
their knowledge to be poor.  When this survey was repeated in summer 2016, 37% 
considered their knowledge to be either good or very good, with only 5% considering 
their knowledge to be poor (the majority considered their knowledge to be OK). 
 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

The strategy and CPRs relate to priorities within the Economic & Community 

Ambition Strategy and in relation to this will address the two specific pieces of work 

within the Corporate Plan of: 

 How the council works with its suppliers; and 

 Community benefits 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

 

There is no additional cost associated with the implementation of the Procurement 

Strategy and CPRs – costs are contained within existing budgets.  The delivery of the 

transformation programme impacts on all services, as all services procure.  Regular 

presentations and engagement with the Senior Leadership Team, and 

Page 145



communication with middle managers, have taken place to ensure all services are 

engaged and aware of all the changes. 

 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? 
 
This is a review of activity to date and as such no Well-being Impact Assessment is 
required.  Development of the strategy and CPRs pre-dated the requirement to 
undertake a Well-being Impact Assessment. 

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 

 
 Development of the new Procurement Strategy and revised CPRs has been subject 
to a comprehensive internal and external consultation process. 

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

 

The new arrangements should enhance the council’s procurement processes and 

help ensure compliance with internal and external regulations.  A robust procurement 

framework will help ensure value for money is achieved. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
  

Full details of the risk associated with the Procurement Transformation Programme 
have been entered and are managed through Verto – the Council’s project 
management system. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 

 
Section 111, Local Government Act 1972 
 
Section 7.4.2(b) of the Council’s Constitution outlines Scrutiny’s powers in relation to 
policy objectives and performance. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Programme Manager Facilities, Assets and Housing 
Tel:  01824 706702 

 
 
 

Page 146



2016 - 2021  

Procurement & 
Commissioning  
Strategy 
April 2016  

Page 147



2

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

FOREWORD

The Council is dealing with significant financial pressures resulting from reductions in government 
funding, coupled with increasing expectations from our residents and businesses.  We need to make 
savings, and a fundamental part of this will be ensuring that we use our spending power wisely and 
strategically.  In this context, our Procurement and Commissioning Strategy is more important than 
ever.  With an annual spend in the region of £100 million on bought-in goods, services and works, it  
is imperative that we manage this responsibly to ensure we obtain value for money for our citizens  
and support our wider corporate objectives.

The strategy has set out seven key principles which are there to help guide all our procurement and 
commissioning activity and ensure that it is undertaken legally, transparently and with a proper 
understanding of the impact on our local communities – now and into the future.  The strategy also has a 
specific outcome around achieving value for money through our procurement and commissioning activity, 
and outlines how we will consider different delivery models, review our processes, use technology, 
improve our contract management and invest in upskilling our workforce to achieve this outcome.

But the strategy also recognises the impact the money the Council spends on the local economy, 
with around £32 million of our total spend in 2014/15 being with Denbighshire based businesses. 
This spend helps ensure that those businesses continue to provide employment for local people, and 
provides them with the opportunity to grow and create new jobs in the County.  The strategy has a 
specific outcome around improving the contribution our procurement and commissioning activity has 
on the local economy, and how it will achieve this by working with our local supply chain, developing 
new approaches to how we procure and commission to ensure there are opportunities for local 
businesses going forward, and using clauses in contracts to help deliver wider community benefits such 
as training placements and supply chain opportunities for local businesses.

We acknowledge that delivering this strategy will require some significant changes from the way we 
currently procure and commission, and will result in new ways of working and, in some cases, changing 
roles and responsibilities.  The Council is committed to making this change and will provide the clear 
leadership and support that will be needed to ensure success.

Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill
Lead Member for Finance and Efficiency

Page 148



3

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

INTRODUCTION 

Purpose of the Strategy
Denbighshire County Council currently spends in the region of £100 million a year with private and 
third sector organisations on the goods, services and works needed to deliver public services.  It is the 
Council’s responsibility to manage this money efficiently and effectively to achieve Council objectives.  
The purpose of this strategy is to set out how we are changing procurement and commissioning within 
the Council and to provide the vision and strategic direction necessary to better achieve our objectives.

This strategy is aimed at promoting effective commissioning and procurement across the whole 
organisation.  It will assist all internal officers who are involved in commissioning and procurement 
to better understand their role in supporting the delivery of this strategy.  It also provides a basis 
for interaction with other key stakeholder groups; primarily our suppliers, the wider public and their 
elected members.

The aims of this strategy are to:

•  Establish a clear strategic direction and priorities for change

•  Establish key commissioning and procurement policy principles

•  Clearly set out what we are going to do and why

The strategy has been developed with a full appreciation of the complex regulatory framework within 
which procurement and commissioning operates.  It also recognises that it is an area with high risks – 
with potentially significant impacts on service delivery, financial management and legal compliance, as 
well as the overall reputation of the Council.

What is Procurement?
For the purposes of this strategy, we have used the same definition of procurement as detailed in the 
Wales Procurement Policy Statement (June 2015):

The process whereby organisations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities in 
a way that achieves value for money on a whole life basis in terms of generating benefits not 
only to the organisation, but also to society and the economy, whilst minimising damage to 
the environment

Page 149



4

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

What is Commissioning?
Commissioning of public services is about public sector agencies working with purchasers, providers 
and, most importantly, communities, to identify and understand end users’ needs so that services can 
be designed to meet them.  This is done by working within a structured and planned process called 
the commissioning cycle (see below), which ensures services are improved and developed against past 
experience and current community need.

The Commissioning Cycle

Commissioning

Legislation  
and Guidance

Gap analysis

Commissioning  
strategy

Service  
design

Population needs 
 assessment

Review Service  
Provision

Resource  
Analysis

Review  
strategic  
outcomes

Review strategy  
and market  

performance
Manage provider  

relationships

Capacity  
building

Market/ 
provider  

development

Assess individual  
needs

Develop  
service  
specifications and 
contracts/SLAs

Purchasing Plan

Identify intended  
outcomes

Analyse providers

Contract  
monitoring 

Review  
individual  
outcomes

Arrange services 
and supports

Contract  
Management

Purchasing 
contracting

Analyse

Review

Plan

Do

Outcomes 
for People

Page 150



5

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

Good commissioning is underpinned by the following principles:

1.  Understand the needs of those using the service

2.  Consult provider organisations when setting priorities

3.  Put outcomes for users at the heart of the process

4.  Map the fullest practical range of providers

5.  Consider investing in the provider base

6.  Ensure contract processes are transparent and fair

7.  Ensure long-term contracts and risk sharing

8.  Seek feedback to review effectiveness of the commissioning process

Where Council services directly impact upon communities and influence the day to day lives of citizens, 
such as in the field of social care, service areas will use the commissioning cycle to develop specific 
strategies and plans which adhere to the eight principles of good commissioning.

Page 151



6

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS
Joint Collaborative Procurement Team
 
On 1st July 2014 an agreement was signed between Denbighshire County Council and Flintshire County 
Council which established a new collaborative procurement service.  The vision for this new service is:

•  to implement a shared, skilled and excellent corporate procurement service that ensures the  
required support for the two organisations and individual services in delivering corporate and 
service objectives and efficiency targets;

•  to maximise procurement savings for the benefit of the residents and businesses of Denbighshire 
and Flintshire; and

•  to develop professional capacity and resilience to create a top performing procurement team, 
delivering organisational benefit and personal professional development for the team.

The team is hosted by Denbighshire County Council (i.e. employment contracts are with Denbighshire 
rather than Flintshire), but provides a joint service across the two councils.  The team consists of one 
Strategic Procurement Manager, five Senior Procurement Officers and four Procurement Officers.  In 
terms of scope of activities, the remit of their responsibilities are:

•  Policy – provide advice on legislation and regulatory framework polices that impact on procurement; 
develop, and maintain and implement the Council’s respective Corporate Procurement Strategies.

•  Day-to day management – manage relevant corporate contracts (e.g. Matrix Agency Framework); 
providing a strategic lead covering all procurement activities; working with service areas to 
identify opportunities for coordination and cooperation; coordinate initiatives aimed at improving 
purchasing power and lowering prices; lead on corporate procurement initiatives and projects (e.g. 
eProcurement); undertake performance measurement; and carry out procurement research.

•  Advice – advise and support service areas on the preparation of tender documents; develop and 
deliver a procurement training programme; develop and produce clear, user-friendly guidance and 
information on procurement; and disseminate examples of procurement best practice.

•  Compliance – develop corporate systems and performance indicators to monitor the supply of 
goods and services; ensure that agreed procurement processes are adhered to; develop, promote 
and maintain supply chain management solutions; analyse trends and expenditure to identify 
areas for improved coordination of purchasing; produce an annual report on procurement activity, 
expenditure and savings; and ensure corporate procurement standards across all service areas,

•  Liaison – represent the Council(s) on external procurement related bodies; liaise and manage 
relationships with other public sector purchasing bodies and external consortia; and provide a 
central link between the Council(s) and the supply/provider market.

Page 152



7

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

THE NATIONAL CONTEXT
 
There are a number of regulatory, strategic and policy initiatives that impact on procurement and 
commissioning at a national level.  Ensuring that the procurement strategy acknowledges these and 
maps out how we can ensure compliance where required and help deliver wider outcomes.

Public Contracts Regulations 2015
The 2014 EU Procurement Directive became a legal requirement in Wales with the coming in to force 
of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 in February 2015.  One of the key themes of the Regulations 
is to make public procurement faster, more flexible and easier – especially for small and medium sized 
enterprises (SME’s).  The procurement strategy must ensure that the council is legally compliant with 
the revised regulations in all of its procurement and commissioning activity.  Some of the regulatory 
changes also raise some more immediate requirements, including:

•  the need to review and revise current Contract Procedure Rules to align with the new legislation;

•  reviewing the existing pipeline of procurement projects at the OJEU threshold being planned, to 
ensure staff appreciate the need to have procurement documents available “up front”, and embed 
this as best practice even at sub-OJEU levels; and

Page 153



8

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

The Wales Procurement Policy Statement
In December 2012 the Welsh Government launched the Wales Procurement Policy Statement (WPPS) 
which set out the principles by which they expected public sector procurement to be delivered in Wales.  
Since that launch the Welsh Government has secured legislative powers in respect of procurement for 
Wales, and has subsequently reviewed the document and, in June 2015, launched a revised Statement.

The ten principles of Welsh Public Procurement Policy are:

•  Strategic – procurement should be recognised and managed as a strategic corporate function.

•  Professionally resourced – procurement expenditure should be subject to an appropriate level of 
professional involvement and influence.

•  Economic, Social and Environmental Impact – Value for Money should be considered as the optimum 
combination of whole-of-life costs.

•  Community Benefits – delivery of social, economic and environmental benefit through effective 
application of Community Benefits policy.

•  Open, accessible competition – public bodies should adopt risk based, proportionate approaches to 
procurement to ensure that contract opportunities are open to all.

•  Simplified Standard Processes – procurement processes should be open and transparent and based 
on standard approaches.

•  Collaboration – areas of common expenditure should be addressed collectively using standardised 
approaches.

•  Supplier Engagement and Innovation – dialogue with suppliers should be improved to help get the 
best response from the market place.

•  Policy Development and Implementation – deployment of policy which supports the achievement  
of the seven well-being goals for Wales as set out in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)  
Act (2015)

•  Measurement and Impact – in accordance with good management practice, procurement 
performance and outcomes should be monitored to support continuous improvement.

The National Procurement Service (NPS)
The National Procurement Service (NPS) for Wales became operational in November 2013, and was set 
up to enable the Welsh public sector to collaborate more closely in procuring goods and services in the 
face of unprecedented budgetary pressures.  The NPS is hosted by the Welsh Government and for the 
first 3 years of operation it is funded with £5.9m from the Welsh Government’s Invest to Save Fund.  
After the first 3 years the intention is that the NPS will become self-funding.

Denbighshire County Council is one of over 73 public sector organisations in Wales that have signed 
up and made a 5 year commitment to using contracts and frameworks facilitated by the NPS in areas 
of common and repetitive spend.  While savings in goods and services will be a priority for the NPS, 
promoting local economic regeneration, community benefits and supporting SMEs and the voluntary 
sector in competing for Welsh public sector contracts will also be important.

Page 154



9

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act (2015)
The Well-being and Future Generations (Wales) Act is about improving the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.  It is designed to make public bodies think more about 
the long-term, work better with people and communities and each other, look to prevent problems and 
take a more joined-up approach in order to create a Wales that we all want to live in - now and in the 
future.  The Act puts in place the following 7 well-being goals:

1.  A prosperous Wales – an innovative, productive and low-carbon society which recognises the 
limits of the global environment and therefore uses resources efficiently and proportionately; and 
which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an economy which generates wealth and 
provides employment opportunities.

2.  A resilient Wales – a nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural environment with 
healthy functioning ecosystems that support social, economic and ecological resilience and the 
capacity to adapt to change (for example climate change).

3.  A healthier Wales – a society in which people’s physical and mental well-being is maximised and in 
which choices and behaviours that benefit future health are understood.

4.  A more equal Wales – a society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what their 
background or circumstances.

5.  A Wales of cohesive communities – attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities.

6.  A wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language – a society that promotes and protects 
culture, heritage and the Welsh language, and which encourages people to participate in the arts, 
and sport and recreation.

7.  A globally responsible Wales – a nation which, when doing anything to improve the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may 
make a positive contribution to global well-being.

Page 155



10

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

THE LOCAL CONTEXT
At a more local level, it is important to recognise the contribution 
procurement can make to delivering our aspirations and priorities.

Corporate Plan 2012 - 2017
The Corporate Plan 2012 – 2017 sets out the Council’s ambition not only to maintain the quality of its 
services, but also to improve on them.  It identifies 7 key priorities for the Council and the additional 
funding that will be required to deliver on this ambition.  Clearly how effectively we spend that 
money will have a direct impact on our ability to deliver our ambition and priorities.  Thus the Council 
recognises that an effective commissioning and procurement strategy is fundamental to achieving 
organisational success and is instrumental in the delivery of the Corporate Plan, as it will:

•  have a direct impact on overall spend, savings, value for money and the cost of service provision to 
the people of Denbighshire;

•  help shape the delivery of services to meet the needs of citizens, communities and customers;

•  contribute to the achievement of corporate and service objectives; and

•  provide a mechanism for delivering key policy objectives.

Economic & Community Ambition Strategy 2013 - 2023
A key outcome within Denbighshire’s Economic & Community Ambition Strategy 2013 – 2023 is that 
the Council’s procurement activity benefits local businesses and residents.  The Council’s ability to 
direct its procurement activity to local businesses is constrained by procurement regulations and the 
need to deliver value for money from cheaper contracts, and balancing this with the desire to support 
local businesses will be a key challenge.  However, the procurement strategy can help by:

•  identifying mechanisms to improve communication and support for local businesses so that they 
are aware of opportunities to sell to the Council and understand the requirements of the public 
procurement processes adopted by the Council;

•  simplifying and standardising our processes to make it as straightforward as possible for businesses 
to bid for Council contracts; and

•  using information and performance management data more strategically to support local businesses 
bid for future supply opportunities, or even to develop or attract new businesses to supply the 
Council where market gaps exist in the local area.

Page 156



11

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

Denbighshire Wellbeing Plan 2014 - 2018
The Denbighshire Wellbeing Plan has been developed by Denbighshire’s Strategic Partnership Board, 
whose membership is made up of senior officers from Denbighshire County Council, Betsi Cadwaladr 
University Health Board, Public Health Wales, North Wales Police, North Wales Fire and Rescue Service, 
Coleg Cambria, Grwp Llandrillo Menai and Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council.  The plan focusses 
on Independence and Resilience – recognising that people are independent when they have the freedom 
to make choices for themselves and the ability to live their lives with minimal help from others, and 
that they are resilient when they use resources and knowledge to cope with adversity and prepare 
for the future.  Priority areas include tackling the challenges of our rural areas; supporting the most 
disadvantaged to build their resilience; and building the capacity of communities to develop and thrive.  
The Procurement Strategy will have a key role in achieving success in these areas by:

•  considering how we might collaborate more effectively with partner organisations on procurement 
or commissioning to more effectively deliver services in our priority areas; and

•  enabling change so that the services we provide, rather than disabling or restricting  
individuals’ and communities’ independence and resilience, actually reinforce people’s 
independence and wellbeing.

Page 157



12

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

THE FUTURE CHALLENGES FOR 
PROCUREMENT
There are clearly a number of challenges which need to be addressed as part of this procurement 
strategy.

The need for savings versus the local economy
The Council is aware of the impact a reduction in overall spend could have on the local economy and 
over the next few years the Council will have to continue to make some difficult decisions to balance 
the need for savings with support for the local economy.  In order to achieve the required savings, the 
council will have to consider how it might generate economies of scale through the letting of larger 
contracts or through collaboration with partner organisations such as the National Procurement Service 
and/or other public sector organisations.  This approach could potentially disadvantage smaller local 
businesses who may not be big enough to service such larger contracts, or do not have the time or 
expertise to engage in the bidding process.

The procurement strategy will need to respond to this challenge by:

•  Advocating a partnership approach with organisations such as the Federation of Small Businesses 
(FSB), Business Wales and Denbighshire Voluntary Services Council to ensure that there is sufficient 
training and support for local businesses and the third sector when competing for council contracts.

•  Outlining how we can engage proactively with the National Procurement Services to ensure that 
contracts let at a national level are structured in a way that provide opportunities for businesses 
in Denbighshire, and/or provide guidance on under what circumstances we might wish to opt 
out of national arrangements where we think better value or more significant economic, social or 
environmental benefits can be achieved through a more local approach.

The expectations of Welsh Government
The recent revision of the Wales Procurement Policy Statement clearly demonstrates the importance 
that the Welsh Government attribute to procurement and it potential role in helping to achieve its policy 
objectives – particularly around tackling poverty – and more generally in helping to secure substantial 
cost savings.  The Welsh Government is also expected to pass secondary legislation in relation to 
procurement under the new powers it expects to secure following the publication of a Command Paper 
in February 20151, and the first area they are likely to focus on is community benefits.

The procurement strategy will need to respond to this challenge by:

•  Ensuring that in the development of any local procurement approaches or policies, we are mindful 
of the expectations set out in the Wales Procurement Policy Statement and the prospect of new 
secondary legislation.

•  Setting out clear policies and expectations in relation to community benefits and how they should be 
built into tender and contract documentation.

1. Powers for a Purpose: Towards a lasting devolution settlement for Wales” Feb 2015 (HM Government)Page 158



13

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

Shortcomings of procurement activity within services
A recent procurement review2 identified a number of shortcomings in relation to how procurement is 
undertaken within the services, including:

•  the expertise, skills and knowledge of service department staff with procurement, commissioning and 
contract management responsibilities varies significantly across departments;

•  training and development for procurement, commissioning and contract management within service 
departments appear to be highly informal and under-developed;

•  performance management of individuals engaged in procurement, commissioning and contract 
management within service departments is infrequent to non-existent;

•  there is an inconsistent approach to the supply market with various approaches being adopted;

•  a “silo mentality” is restricting opportunities to operate collaboratively internally;

•  there is often a lack of proper planning of procurement activities; and

•  Contract Procedure Rules are not always complied with.

All this is often leading to a “fire-fighting” approach both within service areas and within the corporate 
procurement team that is supporting them, and in more extreme cases is leading to breaches in regulations 
and associated financial penalties for the Council.  The lack of consistency and proper planning also creates 
confusion for our suppliers and can create barriers to them accessing opportunities with the council.

How we improve awareness and expertise within service areas will be one of the key challenges for 
procurement going forward, and the strategy needs to respond by:

•  Outlining what measures and support will be put in place to support improved procurement processes 
and compliance within service areas

•  Detailing how more corporate oversight of procurement activity will be established to ensure better 
planning and a greater degree of accountability for non-compliance issues

Budget constraints versus internal capacity to deliver 
excellence in procurement
Whilst the Wales Procurement Policy Statement advocates a minimum of one procurement professional 
per £10 million of expenditure, the Council recognises that it already falls far short of that aspiration, 
with the current corporate procurement team providing approximately one officer per £20 million across 
Denbighshire and Flintshire.  In the current and likely future financial situation, it is difficult to envisage 
a scenario whereby the Council could increase the budget of the procurement team to meet the Welsh 
Government aspiration.  Indeed, a more likely scenario is one of reduced resources which would see a 
reduction in the team size and a greater gap between the aspiration and the reality.

2. Bangor University Institute for Competition and Competitiveness 2013Page 159



14

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

Added to this, the same review referenced in the previous section identified that legal support for 
procurement activity is also inadequate in terms of capacity which is leading to bottlenecks in the 
system and unnecessary complications.  Service and team restructures within the wider organisation 
is also likely to see a reduction in staff numbers which could create additional capacity pressures on 
those staff who remain and are involved in procurement activity (both corporately and within services).

The procurement strategy will need to respond to this challenge by:

•  Consideration of how we can maintain an effective corporate procurement service in the face of 
shrinking budgets

•  Within that corporate team some consideration of what measures could be could in place to manage 
workloads effectively, support continuing professional development, and more generally how we can 
retain, or recruit, motivated and dedicated procurement officers.

Embedding the use of new technology
One of the key tools for improving performance, consistency and compliance, whilst also helping to 
achieve savings, will be the introduction and use of new technology such as the use of Proactis for the 
submission and subsequent assessment of tenders.  To optimise the benefits, such technology needs 
to be used corporately throughout the organisation, and needs to be as intuitive and straightforward to 
use as possible to promote a “right first time” result.

The financial investment in the required technology solutions has already been made, but this needs 
to matched by investment of resources to ensure that the technology is rolled out effectively, support 
is put in place to aid its practical application, and there is a cultural shift so that the new technology 
becomes the business as usual norm and any previous systems and processes are de-commissioned.

The procurement strategy will need to respond to this challenge by:

•  Outlining how technology will be used to improve performance and compliance, and what 
management measures will be put in place to support its implementation

Joint Procurement Service with Flintshire
The Joint Collaborative Procurement Service with Flintshire will deliver some tangible benefits but it also 
presents some challenges.  Ideally all processes and policies would be completely aligned in order to 
maximise the benefits in terms of a consistent approach to procurement activity both internally with 
council officers, but also externally with our suppliers.  Currently there are some variations between the 
two authorities, for example our CPR’s do not exactly align.  Whilst different organisational structures, 
management arrangements and political priorities will always present a challenge to full alignment, the 
strategy should seek to:

•  Develop the format of the strategy document and associated materials in manner which can be 
easily translated across and adopted by Flintshire; and

•  Align as far as possible the processes and policies between the two authorities

Page 160



15

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

THE STRATEGY
Key principles
Denbighshire County Council is committed to setting rigorous quality standards and robust 
commissioning and procurement procedures to ensure that all commissioning and procurement is 
managed and conducted appropriately in compliance with all legislative requirements and local, UK and 
EU guidelines.  We are committed to making sure that every pound we spend provides value for money 
for the council and our constituent residents and businesses.

This strategy outlines how we intend to deliver on that commitment, but in order to achieve this the 
council requires that all staff that are involved in commissioning and procurement to adhere to and 
promote the following principles:

1.  To help reduce or eliminate non-essential spend all staff, before commencing any commissioning 
or procurement activity, will first consider whether there is an alternative approach to delivering the 
outcome without the need for the council to spend at all, or at least to reduce the spend.

2.  In undertaking any procurement or commissioning activity, all officers must have due consideration 
of our duties under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 to take into account the 
impact of any decisions we make on the people of Wales – now and in the future.  The “sustainable 
development principle” should be applied to all procurement activity

3.  All service areas will work with the corporate procurement team to develop and implement 
appropriate strategies and mechanisms for delivering value for money in the goods, services or 
works that they procure.

4.  Every procurement exercise will be managed and led by an officer with skills appropriate to the 
value and risk associated with that arrangement and be conducted with openness, honesty and 
accountability.

5.  The council’s regulatory framework (contract procedure rules, delegations and financial regulations), 
UK and EU legal requirements will be complied with.

6.  All staff involved in the purchase of goods, services or works will utilise corporate negotiated, 
council wide contracts or frameworks where they exist.

7.  Ensure that due regard is made in all commissioning and purchasing decisions to local economic 
prosperity.

Page 161



16

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

OUTCOME 1
Denbighshire County Council achieves value for money 
from the goods, services and works it procures
The council has always had a duty to ensure we can demonstrate value for money in the delivery of our 
services, and with increasing budgetary pressure and the need to balance cost reductions against the 
increasing demand on services, achieving value for money on our bought goods, services and works is 
more important to the council than ever.  However, the ongoing austerity measures and the prospect 
of ever decreasing budgets means that we now need to go beyond just seeking value for money in the 
goods, services and works we procure, and be much more proactive in our consideration of options to 
avoid the need to spend at all, or at least a consideration of how we can significantly reduce the amount 
we spend.  In addition, the administrative cost of sourcing, ordering and paying for goods, services and 
works is significant.  We therefore need to ensure that the way we work is efficient and effective.

We will work to achieve this outcome by:
1.  Considering different delivery models and more collaborative working for the services we provide 

that reduce or remove the need for council expenditure;

2.  Continually reviewing our processes and endeavour to make them as simple as possible for both 
internal users and our suppliers, whilst still ensuring we remain legally compliant;

3.  Making better use of technology to deliver efficiencies in the commissioning and procurement   
process; and

4.  Improving our contract management to ensure that the contracts we enter into are delivered to 
budget and in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions, including the delivery of any 
required community benefits.

5.  Investing in people and skills to ensure that we have a well organised and appropriately skilled 
workforce, who have the motivation and resilience to deliver excellence in all our commissioning  
and procurement activities.

Page 162



17

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

Delivery Models
Why is this important?

With the current financial situation and budget pressures the Council faces, it is important that we 
continually review what and why we are procuring, rather than just doing what we have always done.  
In the same way that when a member of staff leaves there is a consideration of whether the post needs 
to be replaced at all, or whether there are alternative approaches to delivering the required service, the 
same approach should be applied to procurement.  Before any decision to procure is made we should 
always consider whether there is an alternative delivery model which would remove, or at least reduce, 
the need to spend.  This could include collaborating with other public sector partners, fundamentally 
reviewing the nature of a service that we currently provide, or working more closely with third sector 
organisations to deliver essential services.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we expect to see more of our services being delivered through 
alternative delivery models which are helping us to achieve better value for money.

 
Processes
Why is this important?

Mistakes and omissions cost time and money to rectify, so “getting it right first time” is a critical 
requirement if we want to improve efficiency in the procurement process.  This is best achieved 
through simple systems and processes which are easily understood and straightforward to follow.  
We will always need to balance the requirement for any systems and processes we use with the need 
for us to remain compliant with the law, but we should seek to make all our systems and processes 
“good enough” to achieve this compliance, rather than add extra and unnecessary complexity.  In  
some instances, we may need to introduce new systems and processes to ensure we comply with the 
law and our own internal contract procedure rules.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we expect all staff involved in procurement activity to be 
familiar with and competent in using whatever systems and processes are in place, and to have no 
instances of non-compliance with the law or our own internal contract procedure rules.

Page 163



18

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

Use of Technology
Why is this important?

Technology has a key role to play in delivering efficiencies in the procurement process.  Effective 
application on technology will reduce transaction costs for both the council and its suppliers, speed 
up delivery timescales, improve compliance with procurement law and regulation, and generally 
improve transparency of the whole procurement process.  It also enables the capture of management 
information which is critical to support intelligence-led decision making.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we want to demonstrably be using technology to provide an 
end-to end electronic procurement service to improve delivery quality and consistency.

 

Contract Management
Why is this important?

We have traditionally placed a lot of emphasis on the point in the procurement process where we invite 
bids and award contracts, but not always on the subsequent management of those contracts.  Making 
sure that these contracts deliver what is expected – in terms of costs, time, specification, and where 
included community benefits – is fundamental to achieving value for money.  This requires active 
management and regular review of the contract, rather than a “let and forget” approach.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we expect all of our contracts to be delivered in line with the 
cost contained in the terms and conditions of the contract at award stage, except where variations to 
this have been formally agreed and recorded.

People & Skills
Why is this important?

We have an ambitious strategy with demanding targets to achieve, and we will only be a successful if 
we have the right people, with the skills, development opportunities and support in place.  This applies 
to both the officers in the corporate procurement team, but also to officers throughout the council who 
are undertaking commissioning and procurement activity.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we want to have a well organised and appropriately skilled 
workforce, who have the motivation and resilience to deliver excellence in all our procurement activities.

Page 164



19

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

OUTCOME 2
Denbighshire County Council improves the contribution  
its procurement activity has on the local economy
The council’s spend is a major driver for local economic development and creation of a thriving and 
prosperous economy.  However, the need to deliver savings and efficiency improvements will invariably 
lead to a reduction in the number of suppliers and contractors that directly trade with the council.  To 
ensure that our procurement activity continues to have a positive impact on the local economy, it is 
important for us to look at ways to improve access to the council and its business opportunities and to 
support the development of local suppliers.  We want to be confident that our procurement policies and 
procedures do not disadvantage local businesses, and that they find it easy to do business with us.

We will work to achieve this outcome by:

1.  Working proactively on local supplier development to ensure that businesses and the third sector 
are aware of the opportunities to sell to the council and are capable of submitting high quality bids 
to opportunities that arise;

2.  Developing new approaches to how we structure our offers to the market and related contracts to 
ensure we create opportunities for local businesses to bid and potentially win business from the 
council;

3.  Delivering more and better community benefits through the procurement process

Local Supplier Development
Why is this important?

With the likelihood of the amount the Council spends on goods, works and services reducing year on 
year for the foreseeable future, it is ever more important to ensure that where we are spending there 
are opportunities for Denbighshire based businesses to bid for and win contracts with the Council.  
To ensure this is the case, we need to be working closely with key partners like the Federation of 
Small Businesses (FSB), North Wales Business Council and Business Wales to provide the advice and 
support Denbighshire’s business community will need to submit good quality bids for contracts the 
Council advertises.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we want to demonstrably be providing more and better 
opportunities for local businesses to purchase from the Council.

Page 165



20

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

New Approaches
Why is this important?

As well as the external-facing support we need to provide to businesses, we also need to look internally 
and consider how we approach the market for the goods, services and works that we require.  The 
manner in which we do this can have a significant impact on how attractive and accessible that offer will 
be to Denbighshire based businesses.  For example, a bid evaluation process and contract that includes 
criteria for after-sales service or minimum response times will create opportunities for local businesses, 
whereas contracts that exclude these type of requirements may not.  We also need to make sure that it as 
straightforward as possible to do business with us by reviewing, simplifying and standardising processes 
we require businesses to follow when bidding to supply the Council and subsequently in delivering 
contracts.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we want to be confident that our procurement policies and 
procedures do not disadvantage local businesses, and that they find it easy to do business with us.

Community Benefits
Why is this important?

Community benefits are contractual clauses which can be used to build a range of economic, social, or 
environmental conditions into the delivery of our contracts.  They allow us to align our procurement 
activity with our corporate objectives and in so doing contribute to our ambition of developing the local 
economy, creating more jobs and tackling poverty in the county.

Where we want to be

By the end of the strategy period (2021) we want to demonstrably be delivering more and better 
community benefits through the procurement process.

Page 166



21

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

DELIVERING THE STRATEGY
Delivering the outcomes described in this strategy is not the preserve of any one Council service or team, 
but will require contributions from all teams and departments.  All services procure, and therefore all have 
a contribution to make to improve our performance in terms of both achieving value for money, and on the 
impact our procurement activity has on the local economy.

Action Plan
Accompanying this strategy is an Action Plan which sets out the individual actions that are planned in order 
to deliver the agreed outcomes. To ensure clarity, accountability and to effectively monitor progress the 
Action Plan will apply the following principles:

•  An annual report detailing performance in relation to the identified Indicators and Performance 
Measures will be produced annually by the Corporate Procurement Team, broken down to individual 
services wherever data is available at this level;

•  The Action Plan will be reviewed and revised annually by the Corporate Procurement Team based on 
the information provided in the above referenced report, to ensure actions and resources are targeted 
based performance over the preceding 12 months;

•  The individual actions within the Action Plan will be entered onto and monitored using the Council’s 
Verto system;

•  Each action will have one manager from Middle Management Team (MMT) identified as responsible for 
ensuring the action is delivered, rather than individual officers or teams.  This manager may delegate 
the action, or work in partnership with other areas of the Council or partner organisations to deliver the 
action, but for the purposes of clarity and accountability only one name – from MMT – will be entered in 
the Action Plan;

•  Each action will have clearly identified what evidence will demonstrate the action has been completed.  
This will provide clarity and enable a consistent approach to monitoring using the Verto system 
whereby:

 GREEN:  action on track to be delivered to the agreed deadline

 YELLOW:  experiencing obstacles and may not be delivered to the agreed deadline

 ORANGE:  experiencing obstacles and highly unlikely to be delivered to the agreed deadline

 RED:  delivery deadline has passed and the action is still outstanding

 BLUE:  action completed

Page 167



22

Procurement & Commissioning Strategy 2016 - 2021  

OUTCOME OWNERS
To ensure senior management engagement with the delivery of the strategy, it is proposed that each of 
the two outcomes will have a member of the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) assigned as the “Outcome 
Owner”.  The key purpose of this role is to monitor the delivery of outcome, providing a strategic 
overview to:

•  ensure the outcome actions are being delivered on time and to an acceptable quality threshold;

•  have a clear sight of the outcome’s indicators and performance measures, and continually monitor 
and evaluate whether or not the agreed actions are helping to deliver the outcome;

•  help ensure that resources – time and money – are used effectively and in a way that optimises the 
delivery of the outcome;

•  be an advocate of procurement’s transformation and ensure that the required culture change is 
embedded with both officers and members; and

•  more generally ensure that communication with key stakeholders (including national bodies and 
other public sector organisations) is taking place.

It is also considered appropriate that the Outcome Owner for Outcome 2: Local Economy should also 
perform the role of “Community Benefits Champion” for the Council.  This role is advocated in the 
Wales Procurement Policy Statement, and is required to promote and increase the use of community 
benefits in our procurement activity.

Governance arrangements
A Procurement Transformation Board has already been established to monitor the delivery of this 
strategy and the revision of the Council’s Contract Procedure Regulations (CPRs).  It is proposed that 
the Board will continue to meet to monitor delivery of the Action Plan and ensure progress is being 
made towards achievement of the outcomes.  As of March 2016 Board membership is as follows:

Jamie Groves Head of Finance, Assets & Housing
Steve Parker Head of Highways & Environmental Services
Phil Gilroy Head of Community Support Services
Mike Learmond FSB/NW Business Council Representative
Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill Lead Member for Finance & Efficiency
Cllr Hugh Evans Lead Member for Economic Development
Cllr Barbara Smith Lead Member for Modernising & Performance
Cllr David Simmons Chair of Performance Scrutiny
Cllr Jason McLellan Chair of Corporate Governance Committee

Updates on progress towards the outcomes will also be reported to relevant Council committees and 
groups as and when required.

Page 168



Commissioning Form       

This form is to be completed by the commissioning service or department for all procurement 
proposals with a total value above £25,000.  If you are you seeking an exception from Contract 
Procedure Rules or exception from the requirement to tender, you must complete an Exception 
Form. 

Title   PROCUREMENT TEAM USE ONLY 
      

Head of Service:   Officer   
      

Manager:   Priority High/Med/Low  
      

Report Completed by:   Category   
      

Date:   Received DD/MM/YYYY  
      

Total Estimated Value: 

£ 

 Complete by DD/MM/YYYY  
     

  

Est Hrs 
Required 

 
 

 

     

 

Type                                                                                                                          Copy and paste: 

Goods 

Services: services not subject to the ‘light touch regime’ (i.e. most services) 

LTR: certain social, health, education & other services subject to the ‘light-touch regime’ 

Works 
  

Does the proposal include Land contracts or the appointment of developers? Yes No 
    

 

If Yes, has the Monitoring Officer (Legal) been consulted? Yes  No 

If Yes state the Monitoring Officer’s advice.  If No, state why not: 

 
  

Does the proposal include Information & Communication Technology, 
property or works?

Yes No 
    

 

If Yes, has the relevant council service been involved? Yes  No 

If Yes state the services’ involvement.  If No, state why not: 

 
 

Procurement Level                                                                                       Copy and paste: 

Intermediate Value: £25,000 to OJEU threshold* 

High Value:  above relevant OJEU threshold* 
 

Procurement Process                                             Copy and paste: 
 

Is there a corporate purchasing arrangement or National Procurement 
Service framework or other framework agreement relevant to your proposal?   

Yes  No 
    

If Yes, state which below: 

 

Are you planning to make use of any corporate purchasing arrangement or 
framework agreement identified above? 

Yes  No 
    

Page 169



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

If Yes, will the process be direct award or mini competition? 

 
 

If No, state the relevant grounds to justify an exemption: 

 
 

Are you using a competitive market process? Yes  No   
 

If yes, indicate which process. Open Tender  Restricted Tender   
 

Competitive Dialogue  Dynamic Purchasing System  E-Auction  
 

Competitive Procedure With Negotiation  Innovation Partnership   
 
 

Don’t know  

 

Timescales 

Date Milestone 

DD/MM/YYYY Authorisation of Commissioning Form 

DD/MM/YYYY Final contract terms, specification & evaluation methodology agreed by 
Procurement/Legal 

DD/MM/YYYY Tender advertised 

DD/MM/YYYY Tender closed to responses, start evaluation 

DD/MM/YYYY Evaluation finalised (start of 10 day standstill period) 

DD/MM/YYYY Contract award 

DD/MM/YYYY Contract start 

 

Outline 
Briefly describe the proposal                                                                                          Copy and paste: 

 



 

  

Are there any links to other existing or planned commissions, projects or 
programmes or is this part of a multi-phase project (internal or external)? If 
yes please specify.

Yes No 

    

 
  

 

Need / Demand 
Briefly explain your evidence for the need or demand for this proposal. 



 

 

Output / Benefit 
What will the output and benefit of the proposal be?  What will it deliver? What will it achieve?

Page 170



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

 

 

Options                                                                                                                   Copy and paste: 
 

Has a zero cost option been considered?  Yes  No 
 

Has a reduced cost option been considered?  Yes  No 

State whether and why zero and/or reduced cost options have been adopted or discounted: 

 

 
 

Price / Quality Weighting 

Please state the percentage weightings being given to price and quality in your tender evaluation:- 
 

Price    Quality  
 
 
 

Welsh Language Standards 

All advertisements in Sell2Wales and, where relevant, in the Office Journal of the European Union 
(OJEU), must be published bilingually in Welsh and English.  The advertisement must state that 
quotations or tenders may be submitted in Welsh, and that a quotation or tender submitted in 
Welsh will be treated no less favourably than a quotation or tender submitted in English. 

It is a requirement that all tender and contract documents are produced in Welsh in the following 
circumstances:- 

a) If the subject matter of the tender for a contract suggests that it should be produced in 

Welsh, or 

b) If the anticipated audience, and their expectations, suggests that the documents should be 

produced in Welsh. 

                      Copy and paste: 
 

Is there a requirement to produce the documents in Welsh?  Yes  No 
 

State why you have selected either Yes or No: 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Procurement Checklist                                                                             Copy and paste: 
 

Has a Sustainability / Wellbeing Impact Assessment been Yes  No N/A 



 %  % 

Page 171



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

completed?       

 

Have you identified and mitigated any potential conflicts of 
interest? 

Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you conducted market dialogue, research, analysis? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you consulted stakeholders, partners and/or end users? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you consulted the Insurance and Risk Manager on potential 
insurance issues? 

Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you instructed the legal team to develop contract terms? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you sought advice on safeguarding issues? Yes  No N/A 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Have you sought advice on any TUPE, IPR or other legal issues? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you specified contract management & information 
requirements? 

Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you determined whether to use lots (e.g. to encourage 
SMEs)? 

Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you considered how to encourage subcontractors or 
consortia? 

Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Could you reserve the contract for public mutuals or social 
enterprises? 

Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you completed the tender specification? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you developed evaluation criteria & scoring methodology? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you identified the scorers/evaluators? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you drafted questions and guidance to bidders & scorers? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Will you need to arrange interviews, presentations, site visits etc.? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Have you drafted the tender advertisement? Yes  No N/A 
      

 

Is this proposal funded wholly or in part by EU grant? Yes  No N/A 
      

 
If you wish to expand on any of your responses to these questions please give details in the box 
below: 

 

 

Finance                                                                                                                   Copy and paste: 

Page 172



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

Capital Funding Source Amount 

A
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 

A
p
p

lie
d
 f

o
r 

A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d

 

 £ 

 £ 

Total Capital Funding: £ 
 

Revenue Funding Source Amount

 £ 

 £ 

Total Revenue Funding: £ 
 

Estimated Total Value: £ 

Estimated Annual Value £ 
  

Cost Code  

 

If the contract is a collaboration with external partners the figures quoted should include 
the total contract value not just the Local Authority element. 

 

*N.B: Approved – written approval exists; Applied for – no written approval but application 
made; Approached – initial approach to or by funding body but no application submitted 
 

Contract 

Provide basic details of any contract to be awarded 

Type of contract Choose an item. 

Terms and Conditions:       Choose an item. 

Proposed Start date:  

Proposed End date:  

Proposed options for extension (if any):  

Maximum duration (including extensions):  

 

Community Benefits                                                                                  Copy and paste: 
 

Are you including community benefits?  Yes  No 

If Yes, provide details below: If No, state why community benefits have not been included 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Local Economy                                                                                 Copy and paste: 
 

Page 173



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

Have you considered ways in which this proposal might benefit 
the local economy and increase opportunities for local 
businesses?

 
Yes   No

     

 

If Yes, provide details below: If No, please state why not. 

 

 
 
 

Risk Assessment 

What is the total estimated value of the proposal? Choose an item. 

How many external organisations are involved in developing the proposal? Choose an item. 

Has the Local Authority done this kind of thing before? Choose an item. 

If things go wrong, what is the operational risk to the Local Authority? Choose an item. 

If things go wrong, what is the reputational risk to the Local Authority? Choose an item. 

If things go wrong, what is the financial risk to the Local Authority? Choose an item. 
  

Page 174



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

   

 PROCUREMENT TEAM ASSESSMENT  

 N.B: This section is to be completed by the Procurement Team following receipt of an 
appropriately completed form from the commissioning service. 

 

 Section Sign-Off?   Comments  

    Yes  No  

 Type        
        

         

 Procurement Level        
        

         

 Procurement Process        
        

         

 Timescales        
        

         

 Outline        
        

         

 Need / Demand        
        

         

 Output / Benefit        
        

         

 Options        
        

         

 Price/Quality Weighting        
        

         

 Welsh Language        

         

 

Procurement Checklist      

  

         

 Finance        
        

         

 Contract        
        

         

 Community Benefits        
        

         

 

The Local Economy      

  

         

 Risk Assessment        
        

         

         

 PROPOSED START DATE  TARGET END DATE   
    

 RECOMMENDATIONS:  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 RED  ORANGE  YELLOW  GREEN   

   

 PROCUREMENT OFFICER  DATE   

   
 

Page 175



Commissioning Form/Ver 1.3/Sep 16 

AUTHORISATION 

N.B:  This section is to be completed by the commissioning service following the completion and 
return of the Procurement Team Assessment (above). 

For details of authority to decide procurement strategy and invite competitive bids see CPR 2.7.2 

 
 
Response to Corporate Procurement Team Assessment 

Please detail your response and plan of actions to the Corporate Procurement Team’s 
assessment. In particular, if you are choosing not to abide by their recommendations please state 
why not. 
 

 

 
Subject to compliance with the instructions above, the undersigned authorise the commissioning 

proposal described in this document to go ahead. 
  

HEAD OF SERVICE:  (Mandatory) 

Signature  Date  

 

  

SECTION 151 OFFICER (Finance): (Mandatory for all contracts above £250,000) 

Signature  Date  

 

  

MONITORING OFFICER (Legal): (Mandatory for all contracts above £250,000) 

Signature  Date  

 

  

LEAD CABINET MEMBER: (Mandatory for all contracts above £1,000,000) 

Signature  Date  

 
  

N.B: Contracts over £2,000,000 also require Cabinet approval and the completion of a 
Cabinet report 
 

 

Page 176



 

Report to:    Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:   6 January 2017 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Lead Member for Finance, Corporate Plan and Performance  

Head of Business Improvement & Modernisation 
 
Report Author:  Strategic Planning Team Manager 
 
Title:    Corporate Plan Performance Report  

Quarter 2 – 2016/17 
 

 

 
1. What is the report about? 
 
1.1 This report presents an update on the delivery of the Corporate Plan 2012-17 as at 

the end of quarter 2 of 2016/17.  
 
1.2 Appendix 1 provides the Executive Summary including achievements and key 

exceptions. 
 
1.3 Appendix 2 contains the full quarterly report generated from the Verto Performance 

Management System, focussing on the exceptions only. 
  

2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
 
2.1 To provide information regarding the council’s progress as at the end of quarter 2, 

2016-17 in delivering the Corporate Plan outcomes.   
 
2.2 Regular reporting is an essential monitoring requirement of the Corporate Plan to 

ensure that the Council exercises its duty to improve. 
 
2.3 We monitor our performance regularly, take quarterly reports to Scrutiny and Cabinet 

meetings and produce an Annual Performance Report to evaluate progress. 
 
3.  What are the Recommendations? 
 
3.1 It is recommended that the Committee uses this report to identify specific service 

areas (or areas of work) that would benefit from detailed scrutiny to improve 
outcomes for citizens and the Council’s overall performance, and facilitate delivery of 
the Corporate Plan.  

 
4. Report details 
 
4.1 The Executive Summary (Appendix 1) contains details of achievements as well as 

key exceptions. 
 

Page 177

Agenda Item 7



 

4.2 The Quarter 2, 2016-17 Performance Report (Appendix 2) looks at the Corporate 
Plan 2012-17 and provides an evidence-based assessment of the current position. 
  

4.3 Exceptions have been highlighted as follows:   

 ‘Red’ for measures or indicators which are identified as a `Priority for 
Improvement’, or 

 Grey’ where clarification with the data is required.   
 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
5.1 This report is about our progress in delivering the Corporate Plan.  Any decisions 

made should contribute to the successful delivery of our Corporate Priorities. 
 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
6.1 The Corporate Plan 2012-17 sets out how much additional money the council aims to 

invest in each corporate priority over the five years.  It is anticipated the Corporate 
Plan will be delivered using this additional investment and within existing budgets. 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? The 

completed Well-being Impact Assessment report can be downloaded from the 
website and should be attached as an appendix to the report 

 
7.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was undertaken on the Corporate Plan and 

presented to Council on 9th October 2012.  No further assessment is required 
because the recommendations in this report will not have a direct impact on staff or 
our communities. 

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
8.1 The information necessary to produce this report comes from services, and the draft 

exceptions have been discussed and circulated to enable Senior Leadership Team 
(SLT) to take any corrective action they deemed necessary in order to produce this 
report for Performance Scrutiny and Cabinet. 

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
9.1 A Chief Finance Officer statement is not required for this report. 
 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
10.1. We have a strong performance management framework, a robust Service 

Performance Challenge process and a strong Performance Scrutiny Committee.  
 
10.2 There are no specific risks attached to this report.  It is the role of our Corporate and 

Service Risk Registers to identify (and manage) the potential risk events which could 
lead to the council being unable to deliver its Corporate Plan.  
  

  

Page 178

http://wellbeing.denbighshire.gov.uk/


 

11. Power to make the Decision 
 
11.1. Performance management and monitoring is a key element of the Wales Programme 

for Improvement, which is underpinned by the statutory requirements of the Local 
Government Act 1999 and the Local Government "Wales" Measure 2009. 
 

11.2 Section 7 of the Council’s Constitution outlines Scrutiny’s powers and duties with 
respect of scrutinising the Authority’s performance. 

 
 Contact Officer: 
 Strategic Planning Team Manager 
 Tel:  01824 712346  

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



CONTENTS 

1 
 

Appendix 1 – Summary 

Corporate  

Performance Report 

 

 
 

QUARTER 2, 2016-17 

This document provides a SUMMARY of performance against the council’s  

corporate priorities at the end of quarter 2, 2016-17 

 

Page 181



CONTENTS 

2 
 

 
 

 

 

 ..................................................................................................................... 3 

 ............................ 4 

 ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

 ........................... 6 

 .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

 ................................................................................................ 7 

 ................................ 8 

 

 

 

 

 ..................................................................................... 13 

 ....................................................................................................................................... 18 

 ........................................................................................................... 22 

 .......................................................................................................................................... 24 

 ............................................................................................................ 28 

 ............................................................. 29 

 .................................................................................................................................... 33 

 

Page 182



CONTENTS 

3 
 

This performance report looks at the Corporate Plan 2012-17.  It provides an evidence-based 

assessment of the current position.  Below is a summary of the key issues identified. 

 

This is the summary position for each outcome in the Corporate Plan as at the end of Quarter 2 

(September 30th, 2016). The overall evaluation for each outcome has been determined by taking 

account of the indicators, performance measures, and improvement activity. 

Overall performance for this priority is positive with all activities and projects 

categorised as `on track’ or at a `good’ level as at the end of quarter 2. 

 

The majority of the headline indicators for this priority are annual and were reported 

on in quarter 4, 2015/16.   

 

The 2016 Business survey results are now included, which show: 

 

 100% (10) of businesses who responded to this question were satisfied with 

access to advice/support. Most businesses do not access any support of any 

kind.  

 70% (347) of businesses who responded sold or sourced goods or services 

online 

 20% (100 out of 496) of businesses who responded to the survey reported  

difficulties in recruiting due to applicants not having the right skills  

 63% (103/162) of town centre businesses reported confidence in future 

prospects 

 

Work led by the Economic & Business Development Team to support Vibrant & 

Viable High Streets across the county has seen the #LoveLiveLocal campaign 

increase its reach on Facebook by almost 50% in this quarter.  Just under 25,000 

people have now seen information on Facebook about our campaign to support local 

shops and businesses. Working with the Communications Team we increased the 

amount of posting on Twitter and have been more strategic with audience targeting. 

This has enabled us to triple the amount of engagements over the two month period 

July – September to more than 56,000. 

Page 183



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    4 

Over 40 businesses have engaged with the campaign so far either using the hashtag 

or being photographed as supporters, but business understanding of social media is 

limiting engagement in the campaign. Many still don’t have accounts and are 

reluctant to engage with consumers in this way, making our task more 

challenging.  When businesses have engaged it has been really positive and 

outcomes are positive. 

 

As part of the ECA Programme Board’s work on developing the local economy we 

have seen benefits from our new approach to handling investment enquiries; 

securing Wagg Foods investment in the county at Bodelwyddan (£5m, 20 jobs 

initially followed by up to 50 more over the next 4 years). Interaction with Wagg 

Foods was via the new process set out in our recently adopted ‘Investment Toolkit’. 

Our process was described as one of best practice by Legat Owen commercial 

agents to colleagues in Ynys Mon and recommended for implementation in relation 

to the development of Wylfa. The Managing Director of the business complemented 

the council on its work and said their confidence was significantly boosted by our 

organised and professional approach, proving that a focus on sound process can 

result in positive outcomes. 

 

The decision has been taken to postpone recording outputs for the following 

indicators for the time being: 

- ECA3.2i No. of new jobs in Growth Sectors 

- ECA3.3i No. of Denbighshire residents employed in Growth Sectors 

The reason for this decision is that both indicators are dependent on the 

development of ‘move-on accommodation’ to allow for Growth Sector expansion. A 

business case is currently being prepared for this, on the back of the recent demand 

study that was commissioned, which acknowledged that St. Asaph Business Park 

lacked further warehouse space. In fact, the study revealed that some Growth Sector 

firms have had to reconfigure office space at a high cost, due to lack of suitable 

accommodation. 

The overall position for this outcome is Red: Priority for Improvement.  

A higher benchmark for excellence in educational attainment is being used where 

‘Green: Excellent’ is the best in Wales. There are five indicators considered to be a 

priority for improvement, and two performance measures. These are detailed below.  

The only new data for this quarter relates to the total rate per 1,000 pupils of fixed-

term exclusions; and the percentage of pupils who leave compulsory education, 

training or work based learning without an approved external qualification.   

Looking at the exclusions data for 2014/15 academic year, there were 734 fixed-

term exclusions lasting 5 days or less, and 26 lasting over 5 days. This is a 31% 

increase on 2013/14 where there were 563 and 17 respectively. This, therefore 

remains red and a `priority for improvement’. 

Page 184



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    5 

In terms of the percentage of pupils who leave compulsory education, training or 

work based learning without an approved external qualification, Denbighshire 

maintained its position among the best in Wales with no pupil leaving without a 

qualification in 2014/15 academic year.  

Robust monitoring of attendance has continued this quarter, aiming to continue the 

good progress made in the last academic year to improve attendance across the 

board (national data will not be confirmed until summer 2017). However, though 

holiday absence is usual in the first term, there does appear to have been an increase 

this September, which is currently causing some concern. It is left to the discretion of 

Headteachers whether or not to approve holiday absence. 

In terms of our modernising education programme, the demolition of the old Rhyl 

High School building is now complete with the car park being resurfaced and the 

leisure centre re-clad. Bodnant Community School’s extension has also officially 

opened, which includes 7 new classrooms, a hall, community room, a new reception 

and offices. There is also a new staff and visitors car park which can be accessed 

from Ffordd Parc Bodnant. As part of the project the existing building was also 

refurbished. Work continues to progress well at Glan Clwyd School and planning has 

been approved for the £10.5 million new shared school site in Ruthin. 

There is one Project – Ruthin Review – New Area School for Llanfair DC and 

Pentrecelyn which is `red’.  The Judicial Review verdict has been delivered and the 

judges ruled against the Council. As a result the additional survey and design works 

on the project have now been stopped until we establish what this result means and 

the way forward. A report on the way forward will be presented to Cabinet in the 

Autumn.    

This outcome is supported predominantly by annual indicators and measures which 

were reported in quarter 4, 2015/16.  

Throughout the year the Council has undertaken a programme of planned and 

remedial activities to improve the road network across Denbighshire. 50% (3) of 

activities were completed in quarter 1 with microasphalt laying and surface dressing 

works being completed ahead of schedule.  The remaining 50% (3) continue to be ‘on 

target’ during quarter 2. 

Significant improvement has been made in the percentage of damaged roads and 

pavements made safe within target time, with quarter 2 reaching 100% `excellent.  

All 98 defects reported were dealt with within 7 days. 

 

Page 185



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    6 

The overall position for this outcome is Yellow: Good.  

The quarterly indicator relating to ` the percentage of the population (aged over 18) 

who cannot live independently’ continues to be ‘red’ as reported in quarter 1, 

2016/17.  As at the end of quarter 2 the percentage of adults needing residential 

care because they were unable to live independently was 0.66% (496 people).  Work 

is ongoing to reduce the number of new admissions to residential care homes 

through the use of both modern and traditional care packages in the home and by 

working with people to maximise their independence. Overall the number of people 

supported in residential care is reducing but it will take a number of years to bring 

the total to an acceptable level due to the long term nature of the services already 

being provided and the delays in developing new Extra Care Schemes. 

The percentage of initial core group meetings due in the year which were held within 

10 working days of the initial child protection conference. 

Quarter 2 data is awaited.  Systems are currently being realigned to meet the 

requirements of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (2014). This indicator has been 

removed from the national indicator set for Children’s Services.   

The percentage of child protection reviews carried out within statutory timescales 

during the year – in quarter 2, 92 out of 98 (93.88%) were carried out within 

timescale.  Six children experienced a short delay of 9 days in attending their review 

conference as a result of sickness absence. 

Overall our performance is `good’.   

 

We aim to provide an attractive environment for residents and visitors alike, primarily 

through keeping our streets clean and tidy and tackling identified eyesore sites 

across the county.  

 

This outcome is supported by annual indicators which were reported in quarter 4, 

2015/16.   

 

The two quarterly measures maintained their ‘excellent’ performance in quarter 2:  

 The rate of fixed penalty notices (all types) issued (rate per 1,000 population = 

44.36, 4,205 notices served to date) 

 The rate of fixed penalty notices (dog fouling) issued (rate per 1,000 

population = 0.28, 27 notices served to date) Page 186



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    7 

Both activities (100%) that support the clean and tidy streets priority are ‘on target’. 

In providing access to good quality housing the Authority is ‘on track’ in 86% (24) of 

all the activities planned to support delivery of this priority.  

 

The number of calendar days taken to let empty properties (council stock only) has 

increased to 66 days in quarter 2 and remains a priority for improvement. New 

lettable standards have been adopted by the council and unanimously endorsed by 

Scrutiny. The Service is working hard to ensure that these better standards are met 

prior to a property being let and that more work is carried out to avoid any future 

disruptions to tenants. This is reflected in the 93% of void time being spent on 

maintenance of properties. There were 29 applicable lets during the quarter with a 

total 1,937 days void. The increase in value is mainly due to the introduction of 

asbestos surveys on all voids (started in June), which prolongs the void process 

before void works can begin. But this is slightly artificial and not comparable to 

previous years, and we expect this to be only short term, whilst the specific asbestos 

work is carried out. Following which, we would expect to see a significant drop in the 

number of days. 

 

The improved performance trend in a range of measures continues in quarter 2: 

 

 In quarter 2 the speed of delivering Disabled Facilities Grants has seen 

improvement.  The average number of calendar days reduced from 139 days in 

quarter 1 to 126 days in quarter 2. 

 

 The percentage of private sector dwellings that had been vacant for more than 

6 months at 1 April that were returned to occupation during the year through 

direct action by the local authority increased with a further 34 empty homes 

brought back into use during quarter 2 (67 in total for 2016/17). 

 

In addition: 

 

 Work is progressing across the North Wales region on a common approach to 

developing Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPGs).  The Pontcysyllte 

Aqueduct and Canal World Heritage Site SPG, which we jointly produced with 

Wrexham and Shropshire, was recently used as a case study and cited as good 

practice by Welsh Government. 

 

 Results were announced in September 2016 for the UK National RTPI Awards – 

Denbighshire are a finalist in the ‘Excellence in Planning for Built Heritage’ 

category, for the conversion of an old derelict ‘eyesore’ listed building in Rhyl, 

for affordable housing.

 

Page 187



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    8 

The Council takes its responsibilities toward its staff very seriously, recognising them 

as a key asset and essential to delivering good quality services. 

There are areas in which the Council recognises performance can be improved, such 

as timeliness of complaints handling and performance appraisal completion. 

In quarter 2, 94% (114 received, 107 responded to within timescale) of all external 

stage 1 complaints were responded to within corporate timescales.  Whilst still 

remaining as a priority for improvement, this quarter has seen a 6% improvement on 

quarter 1. Performance against this indicator is automatically reported to and 

monitored by Scrutiny each quarter. 

The percentage of staff receiving a performance appraisal has increased slightly to 

90% this quarter.  Heads of Service receive monthly HR reports on the service 

performance appraisal completion. The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) are committed 

to ensuring accurate data capture and that 100% is achieved. 

 

The monthly average number of working days/shifts per full time equivalent (FTE) 

local authority employee lost due to sickness absence was 8.35 days in September 

2016 and is at an `acceptable’ level.  This is an improvement from the 8.5 days in 

July and 8.41 in August. It is also slightly lower than the same period last year, 8.71 

days lost in September 2015.  The Council acknowledges the continued need to 

address and drive down sickness absence. The Attendance at Work Policy is currently 

being reviewed.  The new policy will be considered by the Local Joint Consultative 

Committee in February 2017. The intranet has also been refreshed with new content 

for staff about their health and well-being (smoking, alcohol) with future campaigns 

about sugar, diet and mental health are under consideration. 

 

There has been significant progress this quarter with some key projects: 

 

 The Centralised Mailroom project went live in County Hall, Ruthin on 1 

September 2016. All agreed internal and external mail is now directed to the  

corporate store where it is scanned and distributed electronically. This means 

mail can be accessed from any location. Caledfryn will ‘go live’ in November 

2016. 

 

Others have experienced slight delays: 

 

 The Denbighshire Telephony project is experiencing some delays while waiting 

for quotes for handsets from suppliers. However, the overall April 2017 

deadline for the project is still on target. 

 

 There are some issues with the rollout of e-learning for members and officers. 

The expected launch date is during quarter 4. Page 188



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    9 

 

As reported in quarter 1, the 2015/16 carbon emissions data will be reported on in 

quarter 3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 189



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    10 

 

 

Appendix 2 –  

Corporate  

Performance Report 

 

 
 

QUARTER 2, 2016-17 

This document provides and update on performance against the council’s  

corporate priorities at the end of quarter 2, 2016-17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 190



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    11 

 
 .......................................................................................................................................... ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. 

 ........................................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 
 
 

 .................................................................................................................. 13 

PRIORITY – DEVELOPING THE LOCAL ECONOMY ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

PRIORITY – IMPROVING PERFORMANCE IN EDUCATION & THE QUALITY OF OUR SCHOOL BUILDINGS ............................................... 18 

PRIORITY – IMPROVING OUR ROADS ....................................................................................................................................................... 22 

PRIORITY – VULNERABLE PEOPLE ARE PROTECTED & ABLE TO LIVE AS INDEPENDENTLY AS POSSIBLE ................................................ 24 

PRIORITY - CLEAN & TIDY STREETS ........................................................................................................................................................... 28 

PRIORITY – ENSURING ACCESS TO GOOD QUALITY HOUSING ................................................................................................................. 29 

PRIORITY – MODERNISING THE COUNCIL TO BE EFFICIENT & IMPROVE SERVICES FOR CUSTOMERS ................................................... 33 

 

Page 191



KEY 

12 
 

Each outcome contains a number of indicators, performance measures, and improvement 

activities.  This content is used to determine how good the current position of the council is, 

which is based on contextual data to enable a more robust understanding of our performance. 

THE COLOURS 

Green On Target Excellent 

Yellow Experiencing Obstacles Good 

Orange At Risk Acceptable 

Red Compromised Priority for Improvement 

Blue Completed N/A 

Grey No data No data or is a count only 

THE EVALUATION 

 

 The default methodology for performance evaluation is where the upper quartile reflects 

the transition to Excellent, and the Wales median reflects the transition to a Priority for 

Improvement. 

 

 This is true for most except our education attainment indicators, where the ‘best in Wales’ 

reflects the transition to Excellent and the Wales median reflects the transition to a Priority 

for Improvement. 

 

 The default position for activity reporting is documented in the project management 

methodology, summarised above (Action Status).

Page 192



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    13 

This performance report looks at the Corporate Plan 2012-17.  It provides an evidence-based 

assessment of the current position on an exceptions basis i.e. those measures that are Red: 

Priority for Improvement, or where there is an issue with the data that needs to be raised. Those 

measures that are currently showing an acceptable, good or excellent status are not examined in 

any great detail within this report, but are available to view through the Verto Performance 

Management System.  

This report has been generated from the Verto Performance Management System 

 This cluster of indicators are economy-based aspects of the external 

environment in which we'd expect to see an improvement if our Outcomes 

were progressing well. The six Outcomes within the Economic & Community 

Ambition priority will have a discrete set of indicators according to their theme 

(e.g. infrastructure), but collectively should enable progress against this cluster 

of indicators by laying the foundations for economic growth. 

 

The overall status for these indicators is Orange: Acceptable.  

 

An Internal Audit report was completed on the Economic & Community 

Ambition Programme in September 2016, and overall provided a Medium 

assurance rating. 

 

Minor weaknesses were identified around i. the programme’s performance 

management indicators and measures; ii. frequency of the review of the 

programme’s risks; and iii.quality of highlight reports from projects within the 

programme. Agreed actions are i. to review indicators and measures for each 

outcome as the new Corporate Plan is devised; ii. The risk register is now a 

standing agenda item at future board meetings; and iii. Reminders to maintain 

quality, timely records will be sent to project executives and managers, with 

failure to comply resulting in additional scrutiny from the Programme Board. 

 

It was noted that ‘Governance over the programme as a whole is sound and 

ensures alignment with the corporate priority.’ 
 

 

 

 QECAHeadline1 % Job Seekers Allowance claimant count 

 ECAHeadline2   Median Household Income 

 ECAheadline3 The count of births of new enterprises 

 ECAheadline4 1 year survival rate of new enterprises (%) 

 ECAheadline5 3 year survival rate of new enterprises (%) 

 ECAheadline6 Turnover of Denbighshire based businesses (£m) 
  

Page 193



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    14 

 

 

The overall status for these indicators is Orange: Acceptable. 

 

The OFCOM indicator remains a priority for improvement and has not been 

updated by OFCOM for some time.  It should be noted that BT attended 

Performance Scrutiny to discuss the progress of the national Superfast 

Broadband rollout. 

 

 
 

 

 

 PPP_ECA301i Percentage of employment land (ha) that is ready to be developed 

 PPP_ECA302i Percentage of employment land (ha) that has been developed 

 BusSurv1.9 The percentage of businesses selling or sourcing goods or 

services online 

 OFCOMsuperfast Denbighshire's OFCOM five-point ranking for superfast broadband 

availability 

 OFCOMtakeup Denbighshire's OFCOM five-point ranking for broadband take-up 

 

 

 

 ECA 1.2a Digital Denbighshire 15/07/13 31/10/15 

 ECA 1.3b Strategic Employment Sites 06/05/14 31/03/17 
   

 

 

The overall status for this Outcome is Orange: Acceptable.  

 

This outcome is supported by annual indicators which were reported 

on in quarter 4, 2015/16. 

 

Indicators 

 FAA406m 

Annual 

Local procurement spend as a % of total procurement spend 

 BusSurv4.2 % of businesses satisfied with quality of advice/support 

(not included in 2016 survey) 

Page 194



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    15 

 BusSurv4.1 % of businesses satisfied with access to advice/support 

 ECA2.2i 

Annual 

The percentage of contracts worth over £1 million with community benefit 

clauses (New 2016/17) 

 

 ECA 

2.1a/2.2a/2.2c 

Business Advice & Support 12/09/13 31/03/16 

 ECA 2.1b Better Business for All (BFC Phase 1 - Planning & 

Public Protection) 

06/05/14 31/03/16 

 ECA2.3b PROCUREMENT: Local Supplier Development 01/06/15 06/06/16 

 PR003264/ECA 

2.3a 

PROCUREMENT: Strategy & revised CPR's 01/06/15 01/04/16 

     
  

 

 

 

The overall status for this Outcome is Green: Excellent.  

 
 

 
 

 

 CMLi10 

Annual 

STEAM - Total Economic Impact of Tourism (£ million) 

 CMLi11 

Annual 

STEAM - Number of Full Time Jobs Supported by Tourism  

 ECA3.1i No. of businesses in the tourism sector (2015/16 will be published Nov 2016) 

 ECA3.2i No. of new jobs in Growth Sectors 

 ECA3.3i No. of Denbighshire residents employed in Growth Sectors 

 

 ECA 3.2a New Growth Sectors 01/01/15 01/03/17 

 ECA 3.2b/d Regional Growth Opportunities 11/06/14 30/04/18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The overall status for this Outcome is Yellow: Good. 

 

There is one annual indicator that is considered to be a priority for 

improvement, which was reported on in quarter 4, 2015/16. 

 
 

 

Page 195



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    16 

 
  

 Ed004i 

Annual 

The percentage of children aged 16 - 18 Not in Education, Employment or 

Training, at the preceding 31 August in Denbighshire 

 QECA4.6i % of the population aged 18 to 24 claiming JSA 

 BusSurv3.3a % of businesses reporting unfilled vacancies due to unsuitable applicants 

 BusSurv3.3b % of businesses reporting difficulty recruiting staff with the right skills 

 eca4.10i % of people of working age in Denbighshire who are self employed 

 

 ECA 

4.1b,4.2a-

c,4.3a 

Pathways + 01/04/15 31/07/16 

 EDUa009 Soft skills / skills for employment 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa011 Careers advice and support 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa012 Work experience opportunities 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa013 Apprenticeships 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa014 Links between schools, colleges and employers 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa015 Advanced skills for growth sectors 01/04/14 31/03/17 
  

 

 

The overall status for this Outcome is Orange: Acceptable 

 

None of these indicators are updated on a frequency more than an annual, 

and data relating to the WIMD (LSOA) is only updated once every three years.  

 

Latest quarterly data for No. of LSOA with a claimant count (%) greater than 

Great Britain is July 2016 which is at an `acceptable’ level at 21.  

 
 

 
  

 ECA5.1i 

Annual 

% of vacant town centre premises (Denbighshire average) 

 RSQ11 % of residents reporting overall satisfaction with their town centre 

 RSQ2 % of town residents reporting overall satisfaction with their local area 

 BusSurv2.1 

 

% of town centre businesses reporting confidence in future prospects 

 ECA5.2i 

(2014) 

% of LSOA that fall into the 10% most deprived in Wales 

 ECA5.3i No. of LSOA with a claimant count (%) greater than Great Britain 

 ECA5.4i No. of LSOA with a median household income below Wales 

Page 196



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    17 

Annual  

 ECA5.5i 

Annual 

% of the rural working age population claiming Job Seekers Allowance 

 

 ECA 5.1 Town Centre Growth & Diversification Plan 05/05/15 31/03/17 

 ECA 5.3a 

RGF 

Rhyl Regeneration   

 

  

 

 

 

 

The projects are currently at an `Acceptable’ and `Excellent’ status. 

 

 

 

 ECA 6.1a-c Locate in Denbighshire- Inward Investment Marketing 

Campaign 

17/04/14 30/09/16 

 ECA 6.2b / 

1.3a 

Enquiry Handling for Sites & Premises 24/11/14 30/06/15 

    

 

Page 197



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    18 

 

 

The overall position for this outcome is Red: Priority for Improvement:  

 

We are using a higher benchmark for excellence for educational attainment 

where ‘Green: Excellent’ is the best in Wales. Indicators considered to be a 

priority for improvement are detailed below.  

 

Please note that the only new data for this quarter relates to the total rate per 

1,000 pupils of fixed-term exclusions. This remains `red as a `priority for 

improvement’, see details below. 

 

 Ed001i The average capped points score for pupils aged 15 at the preceding 31 

August in schools maintained by the local authority (all pupils) 

 EDU017 The percentage of pupils achieving the level 2 threshold including 

Welsh/English and maths (all pupils) 

 Ed006i The percentage of pupils achieving the level 2 threshold or vocational 

equivalents (all pupils) 

 Ed009i The percentage of pupils who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 

4 (all pupils) 

 EDU002i The percentage of pupils (including those in local authority care) in any local 

authority maintained school, aged 15 as at the preceding 31 August who leave 

compulsory education, training or work based learning without an approved 

external qualification. 

 EDU003all The percentage of pupils who achieve the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 

2 (all pupils) 

 EDU016a Percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools 

 EDU016b Percentage of pupil attendance in secondary schools 

 

 

 EDU101i The total rate per 1,000 pupils of fixed-term exclusions from local authority 

Page 198



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    19 

maintained schools 

 EDU101i The total rate per 1,000 pupils of fixed-term exclusions from local authority maintained schools 

 

  

Quarter 2 

 

Data 

2014/15 

Data for 2014/15 academic year, there were 734 fixed-term exclusions 

lasting 5 days or less, and 26 lasting over 5 days. This is a 31% increase on 

2013/14.  

Data for 2015/16 academic year is not expected to be published until 

September 2017. 
  

 

 

  

 

 

 LMEd20a The number of deficit places as a percentage of the total school places in 

Denbighshire (Primary) 

 LMEd20b The number of deficit places as a percentage of the total school places in 

Denbighshire (Secondary) 

 LMEd21a The number of surplus places as a percentage of the total school places 

in Denbighshire (Primary) 

 LMEd21b The number of surplus places as a percentage of the total school places 

in Denbighshire (Secondary) 

 LMEd22a The number of school places provided through mobile classrooms 

(Primary) 

 LMEd22b The number of school places provided through mobile classrooms 

(Secondary) 

 CES101i* The percentage of primary places provided in Category A schools 

 CES102i* The percentage of primary places provided in Category B schools 

Page 199



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    20 

 CES103i* The percentage of secondary places provided in Category A schools 

 CES104i* The percentage of secondary places provided in Category B schools 

 *Annual These measures are annual and will be reported 2016/17. 

 

 CES102a Funding the 21st Century Schools Programme and 

wider Modernising Education Programme 

01/04/14 01/08/19 

 CES103a To scope options for the future of Primary Provision in 

the Rhyl area 

01/04/15 31/07/16 

 CES104a To scope options for the future of Primary Provision in 

the Bodelwyddan / St Asaph area 

01/04/15 31/07/16 

 CES105a To scope options for the future of Primary Provision in 

the Denbigh area 

01/04/15 31/07/16 

 CES106a To develop the Business Case for investment in Ysgol 

Pendref 

01/04/15 31/07/16 

 CES112a To progress business cases for further investment in 

the school estate 

01/04/14 31/03/19 

 CES208a To secure agreement on location for new Faith 

Secondary Provision in Denbighshire 

01/04/13 31/03/17 

 CES210a To work with Planning to understand the implications 

of the Community Infrastructure levy and to develop 

an appropriate policy 

01/04/14 31/03/17 

 CES230a To develop School Organisation proposals for the 

creation of a new area school to replace the existing 

Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn schools 

01/06/14 31/12/16 

 CES231a To develop School Organisation proposals for the 

future of Ysgol Llanbedr 

18/02/15 31/12/16 

 CES232a To develop School Organisation proposals for the 

future of Ysgol Rhewl 

01/04/14 31/12/17 

 ECA 

4.1b,4.2a-

c,4.3a 

Pathways + 01/04/15 31/07/16 

 ECA 4.2a-c TRAC 07/04/14 31/08/20 

 EDU117a Health and Wellbeing Outcomes for Schools 01/04/15 29/07/16 

 EDUa003 Review current provision for students who access the 

Behaviour support Service and remodel as appropriate 

01/04/13 31/03/17 

 EDUa005 Revisit Service Level Agreement with GwE 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa008 Literacy, Numeracy & ICT Skills development in 

schools 

01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa009 Soft skills / skills for employment 01/04/14 31/03/17 

Page 200



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    21 

 EDUa011 Careers advice and support 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa012 Work experience opportunities 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa013 Apprenticeships 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa014 Links between schools, colleges and employers 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa015 Advanced skills for growth sectors 01/04/14 31/03/17 

 EDUa022 Curriculum Enrichment Programme 01/04/15 31/03/17 

 EDUa023 A consistent approach to attendance in Denbighshire 

schools 

01/09/15 29/07/16 

 PR000055 Bodnant Community School Extension and 

Refurbishment 

20/12/12 31/12/16 

 PR000247 Extending Secondary Welsh Medium Provision - Ysgol 

Glan Clwyd Extension & Refurbishment 

06/01/14 31/08/18 

 PR000319 Ruthin Town: Glasdir Development- Relocation of 

Ysgol Pen Barras and Rhos Street School 

21/04/14 01/09/18 

 PR000330 Ruthin Area Review: New Area School for Ysgol Carreg 

Emlyn 

01/01/14 31/12/17 

 PR000332 Ruthin Review -New Area School for Llanfair DC and 

Pentrecelyn 

01/08/14 03/09/18 

 PR000359 Rhyl New School 30/01/14 23/09/16 

 

 

Page 201



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    22 

 

 

 

The overall position for this outcome is Orange: Acceptable. We compare our 

position for the road condition indicators with a group of similar rural local 

authority areas in Wales on an annual basis.  

  
 

 

 HES101i 

Resident Survey –  

Bi-Annual 

The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with 

the council's work in maintaining rural roads in good 

condition 

 RSQ09A 

Resident Survey –  

Bi-Annual 

The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with 

the council's work in maintaining main roads in good 

condition (excluding don't know) 

 RSQ09B 

Resident Survey –  

Bi-Annual 

The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with 

the council's work in maintaining streets in towns and 

villages in good condition (excluding don't know) 

 THS012 – Annual  The percentage of principal (A) and non-principal (B) and 

(C) roads that are in overall poor condition 

 THS012a – Annual  The percentage of principle A roads that are in overall poor 

condition 

 THS012b - Annual The percentage of non-principal/classified B roads that are 

in overall poor condition 

 THS012c – Annual  The percentage of non-principal/classified C roads that are 

in overall poor condition 

 

 APSEPI03c 

Quarterly  

Percentage of damaged roads and pavements made safe 

within target time 

 HES102m - Annual The percentage of planned dropped-kerbs delivered along 

key routes within the year 

 HIM006- Annual The percentage of Category C (Final) Street Works 

inspections carried out on utility works before their 

guarantee period ends (legislation states 10%) 

 HIM007 – Annual  The number of successful claims against the council 

concerning road condition during the year 

 HIM042 – Annual  The proportion of the planned Highways Capital 

Maintenance Programme achieved (schemes) 

 THS003 - Annual The percentage of the annual structural maintenance 

Page 202



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    23 

expenditure that was spent on planned structural 

maintenance 

 

 HES118a Review the existing method for undertaking 

pothole repairs and minor reinstatements 

01/04/16 31/10/16 

 HES119a Review existing methods of ditch and water 

course maintenance on rural roads 

01/04/16 31/10/16 

 HES120a Resurfacing works 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 HES121a Microasphalt laying works 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 HES122a Surface dressing works 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 HIA004 Implement policy by delivery of dropped kerbs 

on prioritised key routes 

01/04/14 31/03/17 

  

 
 

Page 203



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    24 

 

 

 

The overall position for this outcome is Yellow: Good.   

 

There is one quarterly indicator that is considered to be a `Priority for 

Improvement’, and this is detailed below.  

 

 

 QIndependent18 The percentage adults who live independent of a formal package of 

social care provided/arranged by the council (aged 18 or over) 

 QResidential18 The percentage of the population who cannot live independently 

(aged 18 or over) 

 

 

 

Quarter 2 We are working to reduce the number of new admissions to residential care homes 

through the use of both modern and traditional care packages in the home and by 

working with people to maximise their independence. Overall, this means the  

number of people we support in residential care is diminishing, but will take a 

number of years to bring the total to an acceptable level due to the long term nature 

of the services already being provided and the time delays in developing new Extra 

Care Schemes.  

 

 
  

 

 

Page 204



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    25 

 

 Assistive18 

Annual 

The number of adult clients in receipt of assistive technology (aged 

18 or over) 

 Newcarehome65 

(count only) 

The number of new placements of adults whom the authority 

supports in care homes (aged 65 or over) 

 QPSR002 The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled 

Facilities Grant 

 QSCA001 The rate of delayed transfers of care for social care reasons per 1000 

population aged 75 or over 

 QSupported (a) 18 Of the people who can live independently with a package of care, the 

percentages that are supported to live independently through, 

modern supportive options (aged 18 or over) 

 QSupported (b) 18 Of the people who can live independently with a package of care, the 

percentages that are supported to live independently through 

traditional care options 

 CFS207a Implement actions from Foster Care Profile exercise 

undertaken in 2014/15. 

01/04/15 30/06/16 

 CFS405a Carry out a review of the assessment based service 

provision for children and young people with 

additional needs 

01/04/15 30/06/16 

 CFS406a Improve the approach to inclusive practice of 

mainstream providers of services to children and 

young people, so that these services can be easily 

accessed by children with additional needs 

01/04/15 30/06/16 

 CFS407a Alternative arrangements for residential / respite 

provision 

01/04/15 30/06/16 

 CFS515a Deliver an information, advice and assistance service 

that conforms with the Act 

01/04/15 31/03/16 

 CSS307a We will test a different way of working with citizens at 

risk of losing their independence that is community 

focussed and geared towards promoting 

independence. This will be part of a national 

`Community Led Conversations' programme run by 

the NDTi 

01/04/15 31/03/16 

 PR003057 Community Led Conversations 08/12/14 01/04/16 
    

 

 

 

 

 

Page 205



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    26 

 

 

 

The overall position for this outcome is Yellow: Good.   

 

 
  

 

 

 

 QSCC015 The percentage of initial core group meetings due in the year which were 

held within 10 working days of the initial child protection conference 

 

  

Quarter 2 Quarter 2 is awaited. 

(75% - 9 out of 12 were held within the 10 working days timescale in  

quarter 1.) 
  

 

 

 QSCC034 The percentage of child protection reviews carried out within statutory 

timescales during the year 

Page 206



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    27 

 

 

 

Quarter 2 Numerator = 92, Denominator =98. Six children experienced a short delay of 

9 days in attending their review conference as a result of sickness absence. 
  

 

 

 

 CFS105a Review the impact of the Waking Hours Service 01/04/15 31/03/16 

 CFS106a Develop a Strategy to further strengthen impact of 

early intervention services and an Options Appraisal 

for strengthening the interface between TAF and 

Intake Services 

01/04/15 30/09/15 

 CFS107a Develop the final year plan for delivery of Families 

First to include preparation to exit from the 

programme 

01/04/15 31/03/16 

 CFS108a Develop and deliver an effective training programme 

for `all staff' around providing stability for vulnerable 

families 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 CSS203a Implement the offer to support the Syrian Refugee 

Programme 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 CSS204a Review the operation of the PoVA process and the new 

Adult Safeguarding Team to ensure that the revised 

processes have been fully implemented to address the 

concerns raised by CSSIW 

01/04/16 30/09/16 

   

 

Page 207



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    28 

 

 

 

The overall position for this outcome is Yellow: Good.  

 

This outcome is supported by annual indicators which were reported on in 

quarter 4, 2015-16. 

 
 

 
 

 

 HES201i The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with the cleanliness of 

the streets within their local area 

 HES202i The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with the cleanliness of 

the streets within their local area in relation to dog fouling 

 HES203i The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with the cleanliness of 

the streets within their nearest town centre 

 HES204i The percentage of respondents reporting satisfaction with the cleanliness of 

the streets within their nearest town centre in relation to dog fouling 

 HES207i Clean Streets Survey - Improvement Areas 

 RATE/STS/

006D 

The rate of fly-tipping incidents reported per 1000 population 

 KWT001i Keep Wales Tidy - Cleanliness Indicator 

 

 QPPP110m % of untidy land cases resolved within 180 days 

 STS006 - Annual The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared within 5 

working days 

 QPPP102m  The rate of fixed penalty notices (all types) issues per 1000 population 

 QPPP103m The rate of fixed penalty notices (dog fouling) issues per 1000 

population 

 

 HES204a Collaboration between Streetscene and Public 

Protection in relation to dog fouling 

01/04/15 31/03/16 

 HES205a Streetscene/Countywide engagement with the general 

public in relation to dog fouling 

01/04/15 31/03/16 

  

Page 208



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    29 

 

 

 The overall position for this outcome is Yellow: Good. There is one  

indicator and one performance measure that are considered to be a  

priority for improvement. These are detailed below. 

 

 

 JHLASTAN1i 

Annual  

The years of supply of housing land as determined by the Joint 

Housing Land Availability Study 

 QPSR008a % of HMOs known to the authority, that are eligible to be licensed, 

that have a full licence 

 FAA407i The % of Council House tenants that were at least satisfied with the 

quality of their home 

 PPPAH001 

Annual 

The additional supply of affordable housing, including social 

housing, provided during the year 

 LPIAF-01 

Annual 

The percentage of additional affordable housing units provided 

during the year per 10,000 population 

 

 Q-HMPI102 Percentage of residents satisfied with the most recent repair (when 

surveyed in accordance with the organisation's own survey format) 

 Q-CMPI03 The number of calendar days taken to let empty properties (council 

stock only) - General Need & Housing for Older People 

Page 209



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    30 

 

  

 

Quarter 2 29 applicable lets in the quarter with a total 1,937 days void, 93% of the void 

time was spent with maintenance whilst void works were carried out. 

Increase in value is mainly due to the introduction of asbestos surveys on all 

voids (started in June) which prolongs the void process before void works can 

begin. 
 

 Q-LI/HS/13 The number of potential homeless people assisted to find a home 

 QPLA004c The percentage of householder planning applications determined 

during the year within 8 weeks 

 QPSR002 The average number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled 

Facilities Grant 

 QPSR004 The percentage of private sector dwellings that had been vacant for 

more than 6 months at 1 April that were returned to occupation 

during the year through direct action by the local authority 

 Y-HSG304m 

Annual 

The percentage of council properties compliant with the Welsh 

Housing Quality Standard 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 210



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    31 

 

 CSS301a Develop and implement strategy to improve support 

to people at risk of homelessness 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 FAH313a Submit application to WG for suspension of Right to 

Buy Scheme 

01/06/16 31/12/16 

 FAH401a Conduct condition surveys to update our intelligence 

around the housing stock, to include an analysis 

around high-cost maintenance properties 

01/02/16 31/03/17 

 FAH402a Review approach to surveying tenants about property 

condition / repairs 

01/01/16 30/04/16 

 FAH403a Profiling our tenants to understand current and future 

needs 

01/01/16 30/09/16 

 FAH404a Create a more coherent approach to property 

management and maintenance in order to assure best 

value for money 

01/12/15 30/09/16 

 FAH405a Develop and implement policy to support energy 

efficient housing within the council’s stock 

01/01/16 30/06/16 

 FAH406a Develop programme for the electrical testing of 

properties (dedicated DLO operative) 

01/01/16 30/04/16 

 FAH407a Develop one approach to a Health & Safety policy for 

housing and corporate property (covering asbestos, 

fire, electrical, etc.) 

01/01/16 30/06/16 

 FAH408a Implement enhanced processes around the ‘anything 

else?’ approach to maintenance and repairs, allowing 

flexibility for operatives to deal with ad-hoc tasks and 

reduce the need for repeat visits 

01/01/16 30/06/16 

 FAH409a Evaluate the effectiveness of the Jewson supplier 

contract in preparation for its renewal / replacement, 

in partnership with neighbouring authorities 

01/03/15 31/07/16 

 FAH410a Develop a strategic asset management plan for our 

housing stock (link to Housing Strategy), which 

defines Denbighshire’s own housing quality standard 

01/01/16 30/06/16 

 FAH411a Delivery of planned upgrade works to housing stock 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 FAH412a Integration of housing and corporate property 

services to deliver best value (to include a review of 

the workforce, helpdesk, skill-gaps and contracts, 

etc.) 

01/01/16 31/08/17 

Page 211



Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    32 

 FAH413a Improve strategic approach to the buying and selling 

of housing assets (‘whole-street’ approach), supported 

by intelligence around need and demand, for the 

benefit of housing stock 

01/02/16 31/07/16 

 FAH414a Undertake work to enable identified vacant private 

sector dwellings to be converted into social housing 

and temporary accommodation, in partnership with 

homelessness services 

01/09/15 31/03/17 

 FAH415a Develop a schedule to enhance our open space / play 

assets 

01/10/15 31/10/18 

 FAH416a Acquire sites to enable new social housing 

developments 

01/12/15 31/03/17 

 FAH417a Profiling of current Council Housing stock against 

need and demand with a view to explore 

opportunities of reclassification (i.e Sheltered to 

general needs). Working in conjunction with RSL’s & 

Housing Strategy 

01/02/16 30/09/16 

 FAH418a Review of all IT systems and data recording methods 

in Housing (Keystone, Coms, spreadsheets etc) 

01/01/16  

 FAH504a Develop the tenant handbook 01/02/16 31/12/16 

 FAH517a Consideration for the implementation of SARTH 01/01/16 31/01/17 

 PPP208a Deliver the Housing Strategy and associated actions 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 PPP211a Undertake a Gypsy and Traveller accommodation 

needs assessment. Support delivery of appropriate 

accommodation if a need is identified 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 PPP215a Develop the Council’s Empty Homes Delivery Plan, 

investigate innovative mechanisms for bringing empty 

homes back into use and work with partners to 

develop new initiatives. 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 PPP218a Establish and implement an affordable housing 

delivery / investment programme to enable resources 

to be targeted to priority sites and actions 

01/04/16 01/06/16 

 PPP224a To develop an Energy Conservation delivery plan and 

establish a database to prioritise those in fuel poverty 

01/04/16 01/08/16 

 PPP225a Develop & engage with private rented sector landlords 

& tenants through alternative methods and routes 

01/04/16 01/12/16 

 

 
  

 

 

 

Page 212



 

Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    33 

 

Status 

Outcome 

Summary 

The overall status for this Outcome is Yellow: Good. 

 

 BPP1002 The number of formal recommendations for improvement within the WAO 

Improvement Reports 

 RSQ16B The percentage of residents responding positively to the statement: My 

Council is efficient and well-run 

 RSQ16C The percentage of residents responding positively to the statement: My 

council acts on the concerns of residents (excluding don't know) 

 BIM3110i The percentage deviation from a good practice figure of 75% of Open 

projects generating a Green or Yellow ROYG status in terms of being on-

track to deliver their outputs according to pre-defined scope 

 M102m The percentage of Modernisation projects that were due a post-

implementation review this quarter that have been subject to one 

 PCOTDCC The % of external stage 1 complaints that are responded to within 

corporate timescales (DCC) 

 

 Latest Data Comment 

Quarter 2 114 total received in quarter 2. 107 were completed within Corporate 

timescales = 94% completion. Whilst still remaining as a priority for 

improvement, this quarter has seen a 6% improvement on quarter 1. 

   
  

 

 Page 213



 

Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    34 

 ROCDCC The rate of stage 1 complaints received by Denbighshire County Council 

per 10,000 population 

 

 LDHR201a Develop a business case for expanding webcasting 

and audiovisual facilities, if the prospect seems viable 

(linked to risk 00014) 

01/04/15 30/06/16 

 LDS110a Implement the relocation of Rhyl Register office to 

Rhyl Town Hall (linked to risk 00006) 

01/04/14 31/12/16 

 LHRD2a Increase public engagement with Scrutiny 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 LHRD3a Increase public involvement in council meetings 

during live webcasting 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 PR000073 Brighton Road Office Closure   

 PR000157 Electronic Document and Record Management System 

(EDRMs) 

01/04/13 31/03/17 

 PR000251 Centralised Mailroom Project 01/04/15 30/04/17 

 PR000318 Digital Choice - Getting the council ready 01/10/14  

 PR000494 Archives & Records Management Transformation 01/09/14 31/05/16 

 PR003256 Digital Choice - Making Better Use of our Data 01/07/15 01/12/15 

 WBP6a Develop a County Welsh Language Standards Strategy 01/04/16 31/03/17 
    

 

 

 

The overall status for this Outcome is Orange: Acceptable. 

 

The three measures relating to carbon emissions relates to data for 2014/15 

as reported in quarter 1.  2015/16 data will be inputted in quarter 3. 

  

 

 M202a 

2015 result 

Staff Survey Q3a - The percentage of staff responding positively to the 

statement: I have the skills to do my job effectively 

 SSQ13a 

2015 result 

The percentage of staff responding positively to the statement: I have  

access to the information and IT I need to work efficiently 

 SSQ1A 

2015 result 

The percentage of staff responding positively to the statement: I know what  

is expected of me 

 SACORP (Corporate) The average number of working days/shifts per full time 

equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost due to sickness absence 

 

 ABMCORP The average number of business miles recorded per FTE across all  

corporate services Page 214



 

Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    35 

 CES301 

(count only) 

The percentage of transactions undertaken via the web, compared to the 

 total number of transactions undertaken using all access channels 

 FAA101m Corporate office space occupied by Denbighshire County Council (m2) per  

FTE 

 FAA110i 

2014/15 

Carbon emissions (carbon kgs) per m2 of Denbighshire's corporate office 

space 

 FAA111i 

2014/15 

Carbon emissions (carbon kgs) per m2 in Denbighshire's primary schools 

 FAA112i 

2014/15 

Carbon emissions (carbon kgs) per m2 in Denbighshire's secondary schools 

  ICT106i The percentage of all staff who have been equipped for flexible working 

 SHR104i The percentage of eligible staff that were due a performance appraisal  

within the last 13 months and have received one (corporately) 

 

  

Quarter 2 HR Officers are working with services to ensure appraisals are carried out. 

   
  

 

 

 

 LHRD10a Roll out e-learning for staff and Members 01/04/16 31/03/17 

 LHRD12a Raise awareness of employee health and well-being 

by establishing quarterly health and well-being 

campaigns and alcohol awareness training 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 LHRD21a Raise awareness of employee health and well-being 

by managing sickness absence 

01/04/16 31/03/17 

 PR000073 Brighton Road Office Closure   

 PR000157 Electronic Document and Record Management 

System (EDRMs) 

01/04/13 31/03/17 

 PR000251 Centralised Mailroom Project 01/04/15 30/04/17 Page 215



 

Appendix – Quarter 2 Performance Report 2016/17    36 

 PR000264 Denbighshire Telephony 06/01/14 30/03/17 

 PR000344 Flexible Working 01/08/14 31/12/15 
 

 

 

 

 
  

 
  

 

Page 216



Report to:    Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:   6 January 2017 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Lead Member for Customers and Libraries/  

 Interim Principal Manager, Support Services 

 
Report Author:   Corporate Complaints Officer 
 
Title:     Your Voice report – Q2 2016/17 
 
 
 
 
1. What is the report about? 
 

 The report provides an overview of compliments, suggestions and complaints 
 received by Denbighshire County Council under the Council’s customer feedback 
 policy ‘Your Voice’ during Q2 2016/17. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
 
  To enable the Committee to fulfil its scrutiny role in relation to the Council’s 

 performance in dealing with customer feedback.   
 
  To provide the Committee with information regarding specific examples where 

 Council services have been learning from complaints. 
 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 
 That the Committee considers the content of this report and, if appropriate, identify any 

areas that require further scrutiny. 
 

4. Report details 
  
  Headlines for Q2 (please see appendix 1 for further detail): 
 

 The Council received 121 complaints during Q2 (17% [24] fewer than the previous 
quarter).  As discussed at the meeting on 17th March 2016, the number of complaints 
per quarter tends to fall within the range between 80 and 150, and officers agreed that 
it would be worth doing some additional analysis if we see numbers outside of that 
range (particularly if the numbers are ever significantly higher than 150). 
 

 The Council received 161 compliments during Q2 (11% [16] more than the previous 
quarter). 

 The Council received 21 suggestions during Q2 (28% [8] fewer than the previous 
quarter). 

Page 217

Agenda Item 8



4.2  Complaints regarding commissioned services (please see appendix 1 for further 
 detail): 

 During Q2: 10 stage one complaints were received regarding services   
   provided by Civica (compared to 6 in Q1). 

25 stage one complaints were received regarding services provided by 

Kingdom Security (compared to 24 in Q1). This accounts for 71% of 

complaints received for Planning and Public Protection during Q2. 

   1 stage two complaint was received regarding services   

   provided by Civica (compared to 2 in Q1). 

2 stage two complaints were received regarding services provided by 

Kingdom Security (compared to 3 in Q1). This accounts for 40% of 

complaints received for Planning and Public Protection during Q2. 

Performance – Q2 2016/17 

 94% (107/114) of stage 1 complaints were responded to within the ‘Your Voice’ 
timescale (10 working days). This does not meet the corporate target of 95%. 

 Chart 1 in appendix 1 provides a four year trend of performance in relation to 
responding to stage 1 complaints. Of the eighteens quarters highlighted, the target was 
only met four times.  However, as previously discussed with the committee, the 
corporate targets are purposely very ambitious, and to meet the targets would represent 
a position of “excellence”.   

 100% (11/11) of stage 2 complaints were responded to within the ‘Your Voice’ timescale 
(20 working days). This does meet the corporate target of 95%. 

 Chart 2 in appendix 1 provides a four year trend of performance in relation to 
responding to stage 2 complaints. Of the eighteen quarters highlighted, the target was 
met seven times. 

 93% (113/121) of complaints were successfully dealt with at stage 1, e.g. they did not 
escalate to stage 2 of the procedure. 

 Stage 1 complaints 
Two service areas are highlighted as having RED status for stage 1 complaints (table 1, 
appendix 1). RED status means less than 90% of stage 1 complaints were dealt with 
within the timescale of 10 working days.  Further detail regarding the complaints where 
timescales were exceeded for those services are provided below: 
 
Highways & Environmental Services 

1. Several attempts made to contact customer before written response was sent 
just one day passed target. 

2. Workload pressures resulted in delay of six days passed target.   

Page 218



3. Site visit completed within timeframe but written response was eight days late 

due to administrative error. Action has been taken to ensure that this does not 

occur again. 

4. Manager on annual leave, response was two days beyond target.  

Children’s Services – in both cases the written responses were not provided on time 

due to work pressures.  

 

Learning from complaints – examples of customer feedback influencing service 

design and delivery: 

Finance, Assets & Housing 

 Public conveniences – customer care training provided to staff following complaint 
regarding staff attitude. 

 

Highways & Environmental Services 

 Grounds Maintenance Team – Toolbox Talk provided to staff following complaint 
regarding quality of work. 

 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
  

The Your Voice scheme directly contributes to the corporate priority of: Modernising 

the Council. 

 
6.  What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
  

All costs relating to customer feedback are absorbed within existing budgets. 

 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  
 

This is a performance report and no decision is being sought to make any changes 

 that would impact on staff or the community.  Therefore a Well-being Impact 

 Assessment is not required for this report.  

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 

Monthly reporting to the Senior Leadership Team.  

  
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
  

There are no obvious financial implications arising from the report. 

 
  

Page 219



10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
  

By not dealing with complaints effectively, the reputation of the Council may suffer. 
 
11. Power to make the Decision 
 

Sections 7.3 and 7.4.2(b) of the Council’s Constitution outlines the Committee’s remit 
and powers with respect of Services’ performance. 

 
Contact Officer:  
Corporate Complaints Officer  
Tel:  01824 706169. 
 

Page 220



Page | 1 

 

Appendix 1   
Your Voice information 
 

1 Your Voice reporting periods 

 
The following periods are used for reporting data: 
 

Quarter 1: 1-Apr to 30-Jun 
Quarter 2: 1-Jul to 30-Sep 
Quarter 3: 1-Oct to 31-Dec 
Quarter 4: 1-Jan to 31-Mar 

 

2 Complaint response timescales 

 

The ‘Your Voice’ feedback policy states that the following timescales should be 
adhered to when responding to complaints: 
 

Stage 1: 10 working days 
Stage 2: 20 working days 

 

3 Your Voice performance measures 
 
A traffic light system is used to highlight performance in relation to response 
timescales to complaints. Performance is rated according to:  
 

Red 
 

less than 90% of complaints responded to within timescale 

Amber when more than 90% but less than 95% of complaints 
responded to within timescale 

Green more than 95% of complaints responded to within timescale 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

         

Page 221



Page | 2 

 

Table 1: Overall complaint response times for stage 1 complaints – Q2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Rec'd Within % Rec'd Within %

Business Improvement & Modernisation 0 0 - 0 0 -

Legal, HR and Democratic Services 0 0 - 0 0 -

Customers 8 7 88% 5 5 100%

Revenues and Benefits (ALL SERVICES PROVIDED BY CIVICA) 6 3 50% 10 10 100%

Education 2 2 100% 1 1 100%

Highways & Environmental Services 36 34 94% 27 23 85%

Facilities, Assets and Housing 24 24 100% 19 19 100%

Planning and Public Protection 42 34 81% 35 34 97%

Community Support Services 3 3 100% 2 2 100%

COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES 10 10 100% 9 9 100%

CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES 6 4 67% 6 4 67%

Corporate Total 137 121 88% 114 107 94%

Service
Quarter 1 - Stage 1 Quarter 2 - Stage 1

P
age 222



Page | 3 

 

Chart 1: Stage 1 complaint response times – 4 year analysis 

 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 223



Page | 4 

 

Table 2:  Overall complaint response times for stage 2 complaints – Q2 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Rec'd Within % Rec'd Within %

Business Improvement & Modernisation 0 0 - 0 0 -

Legal, HR and Democratic Services 0 0 - 0 0 -

Customers 0 0 - 0 0 -

Revenues and Benefits (ALL SERVICES PROVIDED BY CIVICA) 2 2 100% 1 1 100%

Education 2 2 100% 1 1 100%

Highways & Environmental Services 0 0 - 1 1 100%

Facilities, Assets and Housing 0 0 - 2 2 100%

Planning and Public Protection 8 7 88% 5 5 100%

Community Support Services 2 2 100% 1 1 100%

COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICES 1 1 100% 0 0 -

CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES 0 0 - 0 0 -

Corporate Total 15 14 93% 11 11 100%

Service
Quarter 1 - Stage 2 Quarter 2 - Stage 2

P
age 224



Page | 5 

 

Chart 2: Stage 2 complaint response times – 4 year analysis 

 
 

P
age 225



Page | 6 

 

Chart 3: Total number of Your Voice complaints received – 4 year analysis 

 
 

 

 
There is a clear downward trend in terms of overall numbers of complaints received. Changes to the way in which complaints are recorded accounts for 
this in part, but numbers are reducing year on year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 226



Page | 7 

 

Table 5:  Compliments received during Q2 

Service Area Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Business Improvement and Modernisation 0 1   

Legal, HR and Democratic Services 1 0   

Customers 16 39   

Revenues and Benefits 0 0   

Education and Children’s Services 2 1   

Highways and Environmental Services 50 42   

Facilities, Assets and Housing 55 22   

Planning and Public Protection 7 16   

Community Support Services 14 40   

 145 161   

 

 

 
Chart 4: Compliments received – 4 year analysis 

 
 

99 

86 

115 116 

99 

136 138 

99 

133 

111 

94 
103 101 

89 

106 

120 

145 

161 

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Compliments received 

P
age 227



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  6 January 2017 
 
Lead Officer:   Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Report Author:  Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Title:    Scrutiny Work Programme 
 
 

 
1. What is the report about? 

  
The report presents Performance Scrutiny Committee with its draft forward work 
programme for members’ consideration. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  

To seek the Committee to review and agree on its programme of future work, and to 
update members on relevant issues. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
That the Committee considers the information provided and approves, revises or 
amends its forward work programme as it deems appropriate. 

 
4. Report details 

 
4.1 Section 7 of Denbighshire County Council’s Constitution sets out each Scrutiny 

Committee’s terms of reference, functions and membership, as well as the rules of 
procedure and debate.   

 

4.2 The Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny committees must set, and 
regularly review, a programme for their future work.  By reviewing and prioritising 
issues, members are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-led 
agenda. 

 
4.3 For a number of years it has been an adopted practice in Denbighshire for scrutiny 

committees to limit the number of reports considered at any one meeting to a 
maximum of four plus the Committee’s own work programme report.  The aim of this 
approach is to facilitate detailed and effective debate on each topic. 

 
4.4 In recent years the Welsh Government (WG) and the Wales Audit Office (WAO) have 

highlighted the need to strengthen scrutiny’s role across local government and public 
services in Wales, including utilising scrutiny as a means of engaging with residents 
and service-users.  Going forward scrutiny will be expected to engage better and 
more frequently with the public with a view to securing better decisions which 
ultimately lead to better outcomes for citizens.  In future the WAO will measure 
scrutiny’s effectiveness in fulfilling these expectations. 

 

Page 229

Agenda Item 9



4.5 Having regard to the national vision for scrutiny whilst at the same time focussing on 
local priorities, the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) has 
recommended that the Council’s scrutiny committees should, when deciding on their 
work programmes, focus on the following key areas: 

 budget savings; 
 achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives (with particular emphasis on the 

their deliverability during a period of financial austerity);  
 any other items agreed by the Scrutiny Committee (or the SCVCG) as high 

priority (based on the PAPER test criteria – see reverse side of the ‘Member 
Proposal Form’ at Appendix 2) and; 

 Urgent, unforeseen or high priority issues 
 
4.6  Scrutiny Proposal Forms 
 As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above the Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny 

committees to prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work.  To 
assist the process of prioritising reports, if officers are of the view that a subject 
merits time for discussion on the Committee’s business agenda they have to formally 
request the Committee to consider receiving a report on that topic.  This is done via 
the submission of a ‘proposal form’ which clarifies the purpose, importance and 
potential outcomes of suggested subjects.  No officer proposal forms have been 
received for consideration at the current meeting. 

 
4.7 With a view to making better use of scrutiny’s time by focussing committees’ 

resources on detailed examination of subjects, adding value through the decision-
making process and securing better outcomes for residents, the SCVCG has decided 
that members, as well as officers, should complete ‘scrutiny proposal forms’ outlining 
the reasons why they think a particular subject would benefit from scrutiny’s input.  A 
copy of the ‘member’s proposal form’ can be seen at Appendix 2.  The reverse side 
of this form contains a flowchart listing questions which members should consider 
when proposing an item for scrutiny, and which committees should ask when 
determining a topic’s suitability for inclusion on a scrutiny forward work programme.  
If, having followed this process, a topic is not deemed suitable for formal examination 
by a scrutiny committee, alternative channels for sharing the information or 
examining the matter can be considered e.g. the provision of an ‘information report’, 
or if the matter is of a very local nature examination by the relevant Member Area 
Group (MAG).  In future no items will be included on a forward work programme 
without a ‘scrutiny proposal form’ being completed and accepted for inclusion by the 
Committee or the SCVCG.  Assistance with their completion is available from the 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator. 

 
 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
4.8 When determining their programme of future work it is useful for scrutiny committees 

to have regard to Cabinet’s scheduled programme of work.  For this purpose a copy 
of the Cabinet’s forward work programme is attached at Appendix 3.  

 Progress on Committee Resolutions 

4.9 A table summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising members on 
progress with their implementation is attached at Appendix 4 to this report.   

  

Page 230



5. Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 

 Under the Council’s scrutiny arrangements the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs 
Group (SCVCG) performs the role of a coordinating committee.  The Group met on 8 
November 2016.  One topic was referred to this Committee for consideration.  This 
relates to the Council’s Bridge Maintenance Strategy.  The report has been listed into 
the Committee’s forward work programme for its next meeting on 26 January 2017.  
The Committee is asked to confirm the report’s scheduling.  

6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

 Effective scrutiny will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities in line with 
community needs and residents’ wishes.  Continual development and review of a 
coordinated work programme will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities, 
improve outcomes for residents whilst also managing austere budget cuts. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Services may need to allocate officer time to assist the Committee with the activities 
identified in the forward work programme, and with any actions that may result 
following consideration of those items. 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? The 
completed Well-being Impact Assessment report can be downloaded from the 
website and should be attached as an appendix to the report 

 
A Well-being Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in relation to the purpose 
or contents of this report.  However, Scrutiny’s through it work in examining service 
delivery, policies, procedures and proposals will consider their impact or potential 
impact on the sustainable development principle and the well-being goals stipulated in 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 

None required for this report.  However, the report itself and the consideration of the 
forward work programme represent a consultation process with the Committee with 
respect to its programme of future work. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 No risks have been identified with respect to the consideration of the Committee’s 
forward work programme.  However, by regularly reviewing its forward work 
programme the Committee can ensure that areas of risk are considered and 
examined as and when they are identified, and recommendations are made with a 
view to addressing those risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Section 7.11 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that scrutiny committees and/or 
the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group will be responsible for setting their own 
work programmes, taking into account the wishes of Members of the Committee who 
are not members of the largest political group on the Council. 

Page 231

http://wellbeing.denbighshire.gov.uk/


Contact Officer:   
Scrutiny Coordinator 
Tel No: (01824) 712554 
e-mail: rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

Page 232

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

 
Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

        

26 January 
2017 
 
(GwE 
representatives 
to be invited) 

Cllr. Eryl 
Williams 
 
 

1. Verified External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance 
of schools and that of 
looked after children; and 
GwE’s impact on the 
educational attainment of 
the County’s pupils. 
 
The report to incorporate 
GwE’s Annual report and 
information on the 5 year 
trend in relation to 
educational attainment in 
Denbighshire 

Scrutiny of 
performance leading to 
recommendations for 
improvement 

Julian Molloy September 
2015 

(tbc) Cllr. Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Update on options 
appraisals for In-
house care services. 
 

[WIA required] 

To consider the results of 
the analysis undertaken with 
respect to potential options 
for future provision of the 
services 

Formulation of 
recommendations with 
respect to the future 
provision of the 
services for 
submission to Cabinet 

Phil Gilroy June 2016 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson-Hill 

3. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest 
version of the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register 

Effective monitoring 
and management of 
identified risk to 
reduce risks to 
residents and the 
Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale 

December 
2015 

 Cllr. David 
Smith 

4. Bridge Maintenance 
Strategy 

To examine the Council’s 
strategy on maintaining the 
county’s bridges 

Identification of safety 
and financial risks 
relating to Council’s 
strategy with a view to 
ensuring that the 
county’s bridges are 
safe for users and fit 

Tony Ward/Jim 
Hall/Tim Towers 

November 
2016 

P
age 233



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

for purpose to support 
the delivery of the 
economic 
development and 
improving the 
highways corporate 
priorities 

        

16 March Cllr. Hugh 
Irving 

1. Your Voice’ 
complaints 
performance (Q 3) 

To scrutinise Services’ 
performance in complying 
with the Council’s 
complaints.  The report to 
include: 
(i) a comprehensive 

explanation on why 
targets have not been 
met when dealing with 
specific complaints, 
reasons for non-
compliance, and 
measures taken to 
rectify the failures and 
to ensure that future 
complaints will be dealt 
with within the specified 
timeframe; and 

(ii) how services encourage 
feedback and use it to 
redesign or change the 
way they deliver services 

Identification of areas 
of poor performance 
with a view to the 
development of 
recommendations to 
address weaknesses.   

Mark 
Southworth/Clare 
O’Gorman/Meinir 
Blunt 

September 
2016 

        

27 April  Cllr. Barbara 
Smith 

1. Local Housing 
Strategy  

To examine progress in 
delivering the 5 themes of 
the Local Housing Strategy  

To support the delivery 
of the corporate 
priority relating to 
‘ensuring access to 
good quality housing’ 

Graham 
Boase/Jamie 
Groves/Angela 
Loftus 

September 
2016 

        

P
age 234



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

8 June TBA 1 Corporate Plan (Q4) 
2016/17 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the  
Corporate Plan 2012-17  

Ensuring that the 
Council meets its 
targets, its Outcome 
Agreements, delivers 
its Corporate Plan and 
the Council’s services 
in line with its 
aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local 
residents, and 
maximises the 
financial incentives 
available through 
meeting its Outcome 
Agreements 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale 

April 2016 

 TBA 2. Corporate Health and 
Safety Annual Report 

To consider the Council’s 
management of general 
health and safety and fire 
safety matters 

Assurances that the 
Authority is abiding 
and conforming with all 
relevant H&S 
legislation and 
therefore mitigate the 
risk of litigation 

Gerry Lapington June 2016 

 TBA 
(required) 

3. Draft Director of 
Social Services 
Annual Report for 
2016/17 

To scrutinise the content of 
the draft annual report to 
ensure it provides a fair and 
clear evaluation of 
performance in 2016/17 and 
clearly articulates future 
plans. 

Identification of any 
specific performance 
issues which require 
further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins/Mark 
Southworth 

June 2016 

 TBA 4 Your Voice’ 
complaints 
performance (Q 4)  

To scrutinise Services’ 
performance in complying 
with the Council’s 
complaints.  The report to 
include: 
(i) a comprehensive 

explanation on why 
targets have not been 

Identification of areas 
of poor performance 
with a view to the 
development of 
recommendations to 
address weaknesses.   

Mark 
Southworth/Ben 
Chandler/Meinir 
Blunt 

September 
2016 

P
age 235



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

met when dealing with 
specific complaints, 
reasons for non-
compliance, and 
measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure 
that future complaints will 
be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe; and 

(ii) how services encourage 
feedback and use it to 
redesign or change the 
way they deliver services 

        

13 July TBA 1. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest 
version of the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register 

Effective monitoring 
and management of 
identified risk to 
reduce risks to 
residents and the 
Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale 

December 
2015 

        

28 September 
 
[GwE 
representatives 
to be invited] 

TBA 1. Provisional External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance 
of schools and that of 
looked after children 

Scrutiny of 
performance leading to 
recommendations for 
improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy 

July 2016 

 TBA 2 Your Voice’ 
complaints 
performance (Q 1) 
including social 
services annual 
complaints report 

To scrutinise Services’ 
performance in complying 
with the Council’s 
complaints.  The report to 
include: 
(i) a comprehensive 

explanation on why 
targets have not been 
met when dealing with 
specific complaints, 
reasons for non-

Identification of areas 
of poor performance 
with a view to the 
development of 
recommendations to 
address weaknesses.   

Mark 
Southworth/Ben 
Chandler/Meinir 
Blunt 

September 
2015 

P
age 236



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

compliance, and 
measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure 
that future complaints will 
be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe; and 

(ii) how services encourage 
feedback and use it to 
redesign or change the 
way they deliver services 

        

7 December        

        

January 2018 
 
(GwE 
representatives 
to be invited) 

TBA 
 
 

1. Verified External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance 
of schools and that of 
looked after children; and 
GwE’s impact on the 
educational attainment of 
the County’s pupils. 
 
The report to incorporate 
GwE’s Annual report and 
information on the 5 year 
trend in relation to 
educational attainment in 
Denbighshire 

Scrutiny of 
performance leading to 
recommendations for 
improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy 

July 2016 

 TBA 2. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest 
version of the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register 

Effective monitoring 
and management of 
identified risk to 
reduce risks to 
residents and the 
Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale 

December 
2015 

 
Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

P
age 237



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

Impact of Budgetary Cuts on the 
Deliverability of the Corporate Plan 
and the Council’s performance in 
delivering services 
(periodically) 
 
[Task & Finish Group] 
 

To detail the impact of present and 
projected budgetary cuts on the 
deliverability of the Corporate Plan 2012-
17; and the Council’s overall performance 

An evaluation of the Plan’s 
deliverability, the anticipated 
impact of the cuts on the Council’s 
performance versus the actual 
outcome to inform the planning of a 
communication strategy to inform 
residents and stakeholders   

Task and Finish 
Group 

October 2014 

Implementation of the Donaldson 
Report ‘Successful Futures’ – 
Independent Review of Curriculum 
and Assessment Arrangements in 
Wales  
[Education] 
 
Dependent upon the legislative 
timetable  

To consider and monitor the plans to 
implement the agreed measures adopted 
by WG following the consultation on the 
review’s findings  

Better outcomes for learners to 
equip them with jobs market skills 

Karen Evans April 2015 

     

 
Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

Monthly 
Information 
Bulletin 

Your Voice Complaints Procedure  Details of number of complaints received and 
dealt  with for each Service via the ‘Your Voice 
procedure to inform the information required in 
the quarterly reports to the Committee 

Mark 
Southworth/Ben 
Chandler/Meinir 
Blunt 

June 2014 

September 2016 & 
March 2017 
 
[Information] 

Corporate Plan (Q1 & Q3) 2016/17 
 
 
To monitor the Council’s progress in 
delivering the  Corporate Plan 2012-17  

Ensuring that the Council meets its targets, its 
Outcome Agreements, delivers its Corporate Plan 
and the Council’s services in line with its 
aspirations and to the satisfaction of local 
residents, and maximises the financial incentives 
available through meeting its Outcome 
Agreements 

Alan Smith/Nicola 
Kneale 

April 2016 

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

26 January 2017 12 January 2017 16 March 2 March  27 April  13 April 

P
age 238



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 7 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
 
Updated 13/12/2016 RhE 

P
age 239



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 2 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate priorities 
(if ‘yes’ please state which priority/priorities) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 241



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Page 242



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

24 January 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Final Budget Proposals 2017/18 To consider the final budget 
proposals including the level 
of Council Tax before 
submission to Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 3 Update on options appraisals 
for In-house Care Services 

To consider and, if 
appropriate, make a decision 
on the potential options for 
future provision of the 
services identified in the 
report 

Tbc Cllr Bobby Feeley / Phil Gilroy 

 4 Housing Rent Setting & 
Housing Revenue and Capital 
Budgets 2017/18 

To seek approval from 
Cabinet for the proposed rent 
increase for council housing 
and to approve the Housing 
Revenue Account Capital 
and Revenue Budgets for 
2017/18 

Yes Councillors Julian Thompson-
Hill & Barbara Smith / Jamie 
Groves / Geoff Davies / 
Richard Weigh 

 5 Ysgol Llanfair – Business Case To consider the options for 
investment in the new school 
for Ysgol Llanfair 

Yes Councillor Eryl Williams / 
Karen Evans 

 6 Rhyl Waterfront Development: For Cabinet to approve the Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 

P
age 243



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Phase 1b commercial elements funding model for the 
commercial elements of the 
Hospitality Phase 

Rebecca Maxwell 

 7 Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment 
Update  

To consider the assessment 
update 

Tbc Cllr Hugh Irving / Angela 
Loftus 

 8 Bodynys Farm, Rhewl, Ruthin To declare surplus to the 
requirements of the 
Agricultural Estate and agree 
disposal 

Yes Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Mair Jones 

 9 Proposed 3-16 Catholic School 
in Rhyl 

To seek approval to proceed 
to formal consultation for the 
new 3-16 Catholic school in 
Rhyl and to recommend 
approval of the funding to 
commence the concept/ 
detailed design stage 

Yes Cllr Eryl Williams / Karen 
Evans 

 10 Land at Tirionfa, Meliden Road, 
Rhuddlan 

To declare surplus and enter 
into an agreement with an 
adjoining owner regarding 
the proceeds of sale 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / David Mathews 

 11 The Waterfront Development, 
Land at East Parade, Rhyl 

To appropriate restrictive 
covenants on land required 
for The Waterfront 
Development, Rhyl 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / David Mathews 

P
age 244



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 12 Recommendations of the 
Strategic Investment Group 

To recommend approval of 
2017-18 capital bids to 
Council 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Humphreys 

 13 Community Planning To consider a new approach 
to community planning in the 
county as an alternative to 
Town and Area Plans 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / Alan 
Smith 

 14 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

28 February  1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 New Asset Management 
Strategy 
 

Adoption of a new asset 
management strategy 

Yes Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Tom Booty 

 3 Welsh Language Strategy Consideration of a new 
Welsh Language Strategy 

Yes Councillor Huw Jones / Emlyn 
Jones 

 4 DCC Wellbeing Objectives To consider a report on the 
Council’s Wellbeing 
Objectives 

Tbc Councillor Hugh Evans / Alan 
Smith 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

P
age 245



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

28 March 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

25 April 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Performance 
Report 2016/17 Q3 

To consider progress against 
the Corporate Plan 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Alan Smith 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

6 June 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Lead Member for Finance, 
Corporate Plan and 
Performance / Richard Weigh 

 2 Corporate Plan Performance 
Report 2016/17 Q4 

To consider progress against 
the Corporate Plan 

Tbc Lead Member for Finance, 
Corporate Plan and 
Performance / Alan Smith 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

P
age 246



Appendix 3 

Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

Cabinet’s attention 

      

 

18 July 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Lead Member for Finance, 
Corporate Plan and 
Performance / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

January 10 January February 14 February March 14 March 
 
Updated 21/12/16 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 247



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 
 

Progress with Committee Resolutions 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and 
title 

Resolution  Progress 

29 
Septemb
er 2016 

5 5.  TEACHER 
ASSESSMENTS 
AND 
PROVISIONAL 
EXAMINATION 
RESULTS  

RESOLVED, subject to the above observations: 
(i) to congratulate the county’s pupils on 

their educational achievements this 
year as outlined in the report, and the 
county on its performance against 
external benchmarks; and 

(ii) that all schools should be supported 
accordingly with a view to achieving the 
best possible outcomes for their pupils. 

The Lead Member and relevant officers 
were informed of the Committee’s 
recommendations. 

 6 6.  PROGRESS ON 
DELIVERING 
DENBIGHSHIRE’S 
HOUSING 
STRATEGY:  
THEME 2 – 
CREATING A 
SUPPY OF 
AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING 

RESOLVED that subject to the above 
observations: 

(i) to endorse the progress made to date 
with delivering Theme 2 of the Local 
Housing Strategy: Creating a Supply of 
Affordable Homes: and 

(ii) instruct the Scrutiny Co-ordinator to 
liaise with the Lead Member for 
Modernisation and Housing and the 
Heads of Service to schedule regular 
monitoring of the delivery of each of the 
Local Housing Strategy’s Action Plan 
themes into the Committee’s Forward 
Work Programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
See Appendix 1 – the Strategy’s five 
themes will be scrutinised by the 
Committee at its meeting on 27 April 2017 

P
age 249



 7 7.  YOUR VOICE 
REPORT – 
QUARTER 1 
2016/17 

RESOLVED that subject to the above 
observations, to receive the report on the 
Council’s performance in dealing with complaints, 
compliments and suggestions under the “Your 
Voice” corporate procedure during the first 
quarter of the 2016/17 year. 

Lead Member and officers advised of the 
Committee’s observations. 

 8 8.  ANNUAL 
REPORT ON 
SAFEGUARDING 
ADULTS IN 
DENBIGHSHIRE 1 
APRIL 2015 TO 31 
MARCH 2016 

RESOLVED that subject to the above 
observations and the concerns raised in relation 
to the additional resource and financial pressures 
placed upon the Social Services budget and 
social care staff: 

(i) to commend the excellent work and 
leadership undertaken by 
Denbighshire’s Social Services 
Department to date in order to protect 
vulnerable adults in the county and to 
address issues raised by CSSIW; and 

(ii) acknowledged the important nature of a 
corporate approach to the safeguarding 
of adults at risk and the responsibility of 
the Council to view this as a key priority 
area and to place it alongside the 
commitment and significance given by 
the Council to Child Protection. 

Lead Member and officers informed of the 
Committee’s observations and 
recommendations. 

 9 9.  SCRUTINY 
WORK 
PROGRAMME 

RESOLVED that:  

 the Forward Work Programme as detailed 
in Appendix 1 to the report be approved 
and the relevant Lead Members be invited 
to attend for items within their portfolio at 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 250



the next meeting on 8 December 2016. 

 Councillor Joe Welch be appointed to be 
the Committee’s representative on the 
Community Support Services – Service 
Challenge Group. 

 

 
 
Relevant personnel advised of Councillor 
Welch’s appointment on the Service 
Challenge Group for Community Support 
Services. 

 10 10.  IN-HOUSE 
CARE SERVICES 
UPDATE 

Resolved: to recommend to Cabinet that it 
should undertake: 

(i) a formal tender process with respect to 
the provision of services at Hafan Dȇ g 
(Rhyl) with a view to transferring the 
building to an external organisation, 
commissioning a day care service 
within the building and, in addition, 
enabling 3rd sector agencies to provide 
early intervention activities for older 
people that reduce social isolation, 
support independence and promote 
resilience; 

(ii) a formal tender process with respect to 
the provision of services at Dolwen 
(Denbigh) with a view to transferring 
the building and the whole service to an 
external organisation that would 
register Dolwen to provided elderly 
mental health (EMH) day and 
residential care services; 

(iii) that all tender documentation specify 
requirements to evidence the quality of 

The Committee’s observations and 
recommendations were reported to 
Cabinet at its meeting on 25 October 
2016.  At that meeting Cabinet:   
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet request Officers 
to undertake – 
(a) a formal tender process with 

respect to the provision of services 
at Hafan Deg (Rhyl) with a view to 
transferring the building to an 
external organisation, 
commissioning a day care service 
within the building and, in addition, 
enabling 3rd sector agencies to 
provide early intervention activities 
for older people that reduce social 
isolation, support independence 
and promote resilience; 

 
(b) a formal tender process with 

respect to the provision of services 
at Dolwen (Denbigh) with an 

P
age 251



care and Welsh language provision that 
would be provided at both 
establishments; and  

(iv) that at the conclusion of the tender 
process bids are evaluated and 
analysed for potential impacts by 
Performance Scrutiny Committee 
before being presented to Cabinet with 
recommendations on the preferred 
provider for each establishment prior to 
potential appointment in order to gain 
Cabinet’s full approval and to achieve 
the most advantageous outcome.  (All 
appointments would be subject to 
Cabinet being satisfied that the transfer 
of assets and the planned provision of 
services at those establishments would 
be in the best interest of services-
users, residents and the Council).    

 
 

external organization with a view to 
transferring the building and the 
whole service to an external 
organisation that will register 
Dolwen to provide elderly mental 
health (EMH) day and residential 
care; 

 
(c) that all tender documentation 

specify requirements to evidence 
the quality of care and Welsh 
language provision that would be 
provided at both establishments, 
and 

 
(d) that at the conclusion of the tender 

process the bids are evaluated and 
analysed for potential impacts by 
the Task & Finish Group before 
being presented to Performance 
Scrutiny and Cabinet with 
recommendations of the preferred 
Provider, before appointment, in 
order to gain Cabinet’s full approval 
and to achieve the most 
advantageous outcome.  (Any 
appointments would be subject to 
Cabinet being satisfied that the 
transfer of assets and the planned 
provision of services at those 

P
age 252



establishments would be in the best 
interest of service-users, residents 
and the Council). 

 11 11.  CORPORATE 
PLAN 
PERFORMANCE 
REPORT – 
QUARTER 1 
2016/17 

RESOLVED subject to the above observations to 
receive the report on the Council’s performance in 
delivering its Corporate Plan during Quarter 1 of 
the 2016/17 year, and note the County’s 
performance in relation to the National Strategic 
Indicators (NSIs) and Public Accountability 
Measures (PAMs) for 2015/16 

Lead Member and officers advised of the 
Committee’s observations and associated 
recommendation. 

 

P
age 253



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	5 UPDATE ON OPTIONS APPRAISALS FOR IN-HOUSE CARE SERVICES
	Awelon Report - App 1 060117
	Awelon Report - App 2 060117
	Awelon Report - App 3 060117
	Awelon Report - App 4 060117
	Awelon Report - App 5 060117
	Awelon Report - App 6 060117
	Awelon Report - App 7 060117

	6 PROCUREMENT STRATEGY AND REVISED CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
	Procurement Strategy & CPR Report - App 1 081216.docx
	Procurement Strategy & CPR Report - App 2 081216.docx.pdf

	7 CORPORATE PLAN (Q2) 2016/17
	Corporate Plan Appendix 1 and 2 - Corporate Plan Performance Report Q2 2016-17

	8 'YOUR VOICE' COMPLAINTS PERFORMANCE (Q2)
	Your Voice Report Q2 2016-17 060117 Apps

	9 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Performance Scrutiny Work Programme - App 1[1]
	Work Programme Report - App 2 E
	Work Programme - App 3
	Work Programme - App 4




